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UTIMCO BOARD OF DIRECTORS

MEETING AGENDA
January 17, 2006

Four Seasons Hotel
1300 Lamar
Houston, Texas

Time ltem # Agenda ltem
Begin End

9:00 a.m. 9:05 a.m. 1 Cail to Order/Consideration of Minutes of November 16, 2005 Meeting*
9:05 a.m. 915 am. 2 Discussion and Consideration of Corporate Resolution*
9:15a.m. 10:00 a.m. 3 Endowment and Operating Funds Update:

- Performance Report

- Liquidity Profile

- Risk Dashboard

- Comprehensive Derivative Report

- Report on Actions Taken Under Delegation of Authority
10:00 a.m. 10:45 a.m. 4 Discussion and Consideration of Committee Reports:

- Audil and Ethics Committee*

- Risk Committee*

- Policy Committee*, **
10:45 a.m. 11:45 a.m. 5 Update on ITF

- Accounting Issues/SITF

Changes to Structure of ITF* **

11:45 am. 12:15p.m. 6 Discussion of Website Security Audit and IT Disaster Recovery
1215 p.m. 1:15 p.m. Lunch
1:15p.m. 2:15 p.m. 7 Discussion of Portfolio Construction Issues

- Structured Active Management

- Leverage

- Hedge Funds as Building Blocks

- Risk Control Versus Position Size Control
215p.m. 2:45p.m. 8 Public Markets Presentations

Update

- Presentation of Investment in Lansdowne's European Long Only Fund
2:45p.m. 3:45 p.m. g Discussion of Investment Environment and Opportunities
3:45 p.m. 4:00 p.m. 10 Presentation of 2005 Annual Report
4:00 p.m. Adjournment

*Action by resolution required; ** Action required by UT System Board of Regents

Next Scheduled Meeting: March 30, 2005 (Annual Meeting)




TAB 1



RESOLUTION RELATED TO MINUTES

RESOLVED, that the minutes of the meeting of the Board of Directors held on
November 16, 2005, be, and are hereby, approved.




MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF
THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF
THE UNIVERSITY OF TEXAS
INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY

The Board of Directors (the “Board”) of The University of Texas Investment Management Company (the
“Corporation”) convened in an open meeting at 9:35 a.m. on the 16th day of November 2005, in the Board
Room of the Four Seasons at Las Cofinas, 4150 North Mac Arthur Boulevard, Irving, Texas, said meeting having
been called by the Chairman, H. Scott Caven, Jr., with notice provided to each member in accordance with
the Bylaws. The audio portion of the meeting was electronicaily recorded.

Participating in the meeting were the following members of the Board:

M. Scott Caven, Jr., Chairman
Clint D. Carlson
J. Philip Ferguson
Woody L. Hunt
Erle Nye
Rabert B. Rowling
Charles W. Tate

thus, constituting & majority and quorum of the Board. Regent McHugh joined a portion of the meeting by
telephone. Mark G. Yudof, Vice Chairman for Policy, was not present at the meeting. Alsc attending the
meefing were R. D. Burck, Advisory Director; Bob Boldt, President of the Corporation: Joan Moeller,
Secretary and Treasurer of the Corporation; Christy Wallace, Assistant Secretary of the Corporation; Cathy
Iberg, Managing Director - Marketable Altemative Investments and Deputy CIO; Bill Edwards, Managing
Director of Information Technology; Larry Goldsmith, Managing Director of Public Markets; Andrea Reed,
Risk Manager; Trey Thompson, Managing Direcior — Non-Marketable Alternative Investments: various staff
members of the Corporation; Jery Turner, legal counsel for the Corporation; Keith Brown of the McCombs
School of Business at UT Austin; Scott Kelley, Philip Aldridge, Charlie Chaffin, Amy Barrett and Cathy Swain
of UT System Administration; and Hamilion Lee of Cambridge Associates. Mr. Caven called the meeting to
order at 9:35 a.m. Copies of materials supporting the Board meeting agenda were previously furnished to
each Director or distributed at the meeting.

Minutes

The first matter to come before the Board was approval of the minutes of the meetings of the Board of
Directors held on October 7, 2005. Upon motion duly made and seconded. the foliowing resolution was
unanimously adopted:

RESOLVED, that the minutes of the meeting of the Board of Directors held on
Qctober 7, 2005, be, and are hereby. approved.



Committee Appointments

Mr. Caven welcomed Regent Colleen McHugh as a Regental member and Woody Hunt as an external
member of the Board. Their appointments were approved at the UT System Board of Regents meeting that
was held on November 10, 2005. Mr. Caven continued by recommending Board committee assignments
and chair designations for the Audit and Ethics Committes, Compensation Committee, Risk Committee and
a newly formed Policy Committee. Upon motion duly made and seconded, the foliowing resolutions were
unanimously adopted:

BE IT RESOLVED, that Woody L. Hunt, Ere Nye and Robert B. Rowling are
hereby designated as the Audit and Ethics Committee of the Board of Directors,
subject to approval by the Board of Regents at their meeting to be held on
February 8-9, 2008, to serve until the expiration of their terms, or until their
successors have been chosen and qualified, or until their earlier death, resignation
or removal; and

FURTHER RESOLVED, that Erle Nye is hereby designated the Chair of the Audit
and Ethics Committee and shall preside at its meetings.

BE IT RESOLVED, that Clint D. Carlson, Philip Ferguson and Robert B. Rowling
are hereby designated as the Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors
to serve until the expiration of their terms, or until their successors have been
chosen and qualified, or until their earlier death, resignation or removal; and

FURTHER RESOLVED, that Philip Ferguson is hereby designated the Chair of the
Compensation Committee and shall preside at its mastings.

BE IT RESOLVED, that H. Scott Caven, Jr., Charles W. Tate and Woody L. Hunt
are hereby designated as the Risk Committee of the Board of Direciors to serve
until the expiration of their terms, or until their successors have been chosen and
qualified, or until their earlier death, resignation or removal; and

FURTHER RESOLVED, that Charles W. Tate is hereby designated the Chair of
the Risk Committee and shall preside at its meetings.

BE IT RESOLVED, that Colleen McHugh, Erle Nye, Robert B. Rowling are hereby
designated as the Policy Committee of the Board of Directors to serve until the
expiration of their terms, or until their successors have been chosen and qualified,
or until their earlier death, resignation or removal; and

FURTHER RESOLVED that Robert B. Rowiing is hereby designated the Chair of
the Policy Committee and shall preside at its meetings.



Asset Allocation and Performance

Mr. Caven asked Mr. Boldt to report on the Corporation's asset allocation and performance.  Mr. Boldt
began by discussing the Market Exposure chart showing market exposure and deviations from policy
targets within tactical policy ranges. He continued by discussing asset allocation and attribution analysis,
the peer universe and value added. Mr. Boldt reported Cumulative Value Added under the Corporation’s
management for periods ended September 30, 2005. He also handed out performance information for
August 31, 2005. The net performance for the one-month period ended September 30, 2005, for the
Permanent University Fund (“PUF") was 1.85% and for the General Endowment Fund ("GEF") was 1.62%,
versus benchmark returns of 1.46% for each fund. The net performance for the one-year period ended
September 30, 2005, for the PUF and GEF were 18.22% and 18.21%, respectively, versus benchmark
returns of 15.04% for each fund. The Short Intermediate Term Fund's (SITF) performance was -.39%
versus its benchmark return of -0.25% for the one-month period, and was 1.95% versus its benchmark
return of .98% for the one-year period ended September 30, 2005. Performance for the Short Term Fund
(STF) was 0.29% versus 0.30% for its benchmark for the one-month period, and was 2.65% versus a
benchmark return of 2.62% for the one-year period ended September 30, 2005.  Also presented was
performance attribution, statistics on liquidity, total derivatives by type and application, and actions taken
under the Delegation of Authority. In reporting the manager hisiory performance summary, it was noted
that Peter Cundhill and Associates, Inc., Canada mandate, was terminated on October 13, 2005.  Mr,
Boldt, Mr. Thompson, Mr. Goldsmith, and Ms. Iberg answered the Directors’ questions. Mr. Hunt observed
that the Policy Committee needs to consider the definition of ‘hedge funds” in view of the apparent trend of
some active managers to hedge risk by taking long/short positions.

Executive Session

Mr. Caven, at 10:29 a.m., announced that, “the Board of Directors of The University of Texas Investment
Management Company having been duly convened in Open Session and notice of this meeting having
been duly given, I hereby announce the convening of & closed meeting as an Executive Session of the
Board, for the purpose of deliberating personnel compensation matters for corporation employees. This
Executive Session meeting of the Board is authorized by Texas Government Code. Section 551.074
(Personnel Matters). The time is now 10:29 a.m.”

In Executive Session, the Board discussed matters regarding personne! compensation matters. No action
was taken and no vote was calied for or taken by the Board.

Reconvene in Open Session

The Board reconvened at 11:10 a.m. in open session and Mr. Caven announced that, “the Open Session of
the Board of Directors of The University of Texas Investment Management Company is now reconvened.
The time is now 11:10 a.m. During the Executive Session, the Board discussed personnel compensation
matters, but did not take any votes "



Compensation Committee Report

Mr. Caven asked for a report from the Compensation Committee. Director Ferguson, Chairman, reported
that the Compensation Cornmittee (the “Committee”) had met that morning, prior to the Board meeting.
The Committee reviewed the peer group for the 2005/2006 Compensation Program as determined by
Cambridge Associates and recommended approval. They also reviewed an item related to the 2005/2008
Compensation Program. In addition to the eligible participants approved by the Committee and the Board
in September 2005, three additional employees have filled analyst positions in the Non-Marketable and
Risk Management area. The Committee reviewed the goals recommended by the President and CEQ for
these positions and the Commitiee requested that the Board apprave the employees as eligible to
participate in the UTIMCO 2005/2006 Compensation Program. The Committee also recommended that the
Board approve the performance compensation awards under the UTIMCO Compensation Program for all
eligible employees, including the President and Chief Executive Officer, and recommended the proposed
performance compensation award of the President and Chief Executive Officer. Cambridge Associates
certified the peer universe performance data and a copy of the memorandum was provided. Upon motion
duly made and seconded, the foliowing resolutions were unanimously adopted:

Peer Group:

WHEREAS, Section 8.14 of the UTIMCO Compensation Program {the “Plan”)
provides that the “Peer Group” will be updated annually at the beginning of each
Performance Period, and Appendix B will be amended accordingly; and

WHEREAS, Section 7.2 of the Plan provides that the Board has the right to amend
the Plan or any portion thereof from time to time: and

WHEREAS, the Board wishes to amend Appendix B to conform to the updated
Peer Group;

NOW, THEREFORE, be it:

RESOLVED, that the updated and amended Appendix B (UTIMCO Peer Group), a
copy of which is attached hereto [see the attachments to these minutes], is hereby
adopted and approved as part of the Plan to replace the current Appendix B,
effective as of July 1, 2005.

New Participants in the Plan:

WHEREAS, Section 5.3(a) of the UTIMCO Compensation Program {the “Plan”)
provides that a UTIMCO employee must be in an “Eligible Position™ and selected
by the Board in order to become a “Participant” in the Plan: and

WHEREAS, Section 5.3(a) of the Plan provides that the Board in its discretion may
designate a newly hired or promoted employee to be in an “Eligible Pesition”
during a Performanee Period: and



WHEREAS, Section 5.3(b) of the Plan provides that an employee in an “Eligible
Position” selected by the Board will become a Participant on the date designated
by the Board; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Sections 5.4(a} and 5.4(d) of the Plan, the President and
CEO set, and the Compensation Committee has approved, the “Performance
Goals” and "weightings” for each proposed new Participant for the 2005/2006
Performance Period; and

WHEREAS, Section 5.5(a) of the Plan provides that, at the time an employes is
designated as a Participant in the Plan, the Board will determine the “Incentive
Award Opportunity” for each Performance Goal set for such Participant for the
Performance Period, including a threshold, target, and maximum award:

NOW, THEREFORE, be it:

RESOLVED, that the Eligible Positions and the associated Incentive Award
Opportunities set forth on the Exhibit attached hereto [see the attachments to
these minutes] are hereby approved for the 2005/2006 Performance Period,
effective as of the date the respective employee employed in each such Eligible
Position is selected as a Participant in the Pian; and

RESOLVED, that Mark Shoberg is hereby selected as a Participant in the Pian,
effective as of October 31, 2005, Scott Bigham is hereby selected as a Participant
in the Plan, effective as of September 1, 2005, and Kate Wagner is hereby
selected as a Participant in the Plan, effective as of October 31, 2005.

Performance Incentive Awards for the Participants:

WHEREAS, in accordance with Section 5.5(d) of the UTIMCO Compensation
Program (the 'Plan”), the Compensation Committee has determined each
Participant's level of achievement of his or her “Performance Goals” for the
2004/2005 Performance Period, except the level of achievement of the President
and CEO with respect to his Performance Goals for such period; and

WHEREAS, Sections 5.5(e) and 5.5(f) of the Plan provide thai, based on the
percentage achieved of each Participant's Performance Goals for a Performance
Period, a “Performance Incentive Award” will be calculated for each Participant for
such Performance Period in accordance with the calculation methodology set forth
in Appendix A of the Pian; and

WHEREAS, Sections 5.5(e) and 5.5(g) of the Plan provide that the Compensation
Committee will review all Performance Incentive Award calculations for all
Participants who have met or exceeded their performance benchmarks for such
Performance Period and submit its recommendations to the Board for approval;
and



WHEREAS, the Compensation Committee has reviewed the Performance
Incentive Awards for all Participants who have met or exceeded their performance
benchmarks for the 2004/2005 Performance Period, approved such Performance
Incentive Awards, and recommended that the Board approve the same: and

NOW, THEREFORE, be it;

RESOLVED, that the Performance Incentive Awards for the Participants {inciuding
the President and CEQ) for the 2004/2005 Performance Period in the total amount
of $2,261,214 are hereby approved.

And the President and CEQO’s Performance Incentive Award:

WHEREAS, Section 5.5(d) of the UTIMCO Compensation Program (the “Pian”)
provides that, at the end of each "Performance Period,” the Board will determine
the level of achievement of the President and CEQ with respect to his
“Performance Goals” for such Performance Period: and

WHEREAS, the Board has reviewed the actual performance of the President and
CEO during the Performance Period and has compared such actual performance
relative to each Performance Goal category for the President and CEQ against his
corresponding Performance Goal for such Performance Period:

NOW, THEREFORE, be it:

RESOLVED, that the Board approves the President and CEO's Performance
Incentive Award for the 2004/2005 Performance Period in the amount of $526,212.

Mr. Ferguson addressed the Staff to let them know that the Committee and the entire Board felt that they
had done an extraordinary job this year and the achievements that they have accomplished in this period of
time should be applauded.

Policy Committee

Mr. Caven explained the purpose of the new Policy Committee. The Policy Committee is to provide
oversight and monitor the development and amendments of the Corporate Board Policies and Document:
and the development and amendment of the investment-related policies of the Board of Regents related fo
the management of funds under the control and management of the Board of Regents; and the amendment
of the Investment Management Services Agreement, the Code of Ethics and Bylaws. Mr. Caven proposed
adopting the Charter with suggested changes by the UT System Office of General Counsel. other than the
suggested deletion of the words “development and” before the words “review of' in the first sentence under
the heading "Investment Policies of the U.T. Board” on the second page of the Charter. Upon motion duly
made and seconded, the following resolution was unanimously adopted:

RESOLVED, that the Proposed Charter of the Policy Committee be, and is hereby,
approved in the form submitted to the Corporation’s Board of Directors with the
changes recommended by Chairman Caven.



Mr. Caven noted that although the Chancellor, as Vice Chairman of Policy, will not be a member of the
Committee, he will continue to have the duties assigned him in that role under the Corporation’s Bylaws
and the Investment Management Services Agreement between the Corporation and the Board of Regents

Delegation of Authority

Mr. Caven asked Mr. Boldt to present the recommended changes to the Delegation of Authority. Mr. Boldt
explained that upon request of the Board, the Staff had redrafted the proposed language related to short
sales of securities to offset existing long positions for risk control purposes. Upon motion duly made and
seconded, the following resolution was unanimously adopted:

RESOLVED, that the amendment to the Delegation of Authority Policy be, and is
hereby, approved in the form submitted to the Corporation’s Board of Directors.

Audit and Ethics Commitiee Report

Mr. Caven asked Mr. Nye, Chairman of the Audit and Ethics Committee, to give a Committee report.  Mr.
Nye reported that the Audit and Ethics Committee met on November 3, 2005, and recommended approval
of the audited financial statements of the Permanent University Fund, General Endowment Fund,
Permanent Health Fund, Long Term Fund, Short Intermediate Term Fund, and the Statement of
Performance Statistics. The financial statements were audited by Emst & Young, LLP. Ricky Richter,
coordinating pariner, presented Emst & Young's Audit Results and Communications letter and answered
questions related to the financial statements. Emst & Young issued unqualified opinions on the August 31,
2005 financial statements. The opinions were dated October 21, 2005, Upon motion duly made and
seconded, the following resolution was unanimously adopted:

RESOLVED, that the separate annual financial statements and audit reports for
the Permanent University Fund, the Permanent Health Fund, The University of
Texas System Long Term Fund, The University of Texas System General
Endowment Fund, and The University of Texas System Short Intermediate Term
Fund, each for the fiscal years ended August 31, 2005 and August 31, 2004 and
the Statement of Investment Performance Statistics for the year ended August 31,
2005 be and are hereby approved in the form as presented to the Board,

The meeting was recessed at 11:40 am. The Board of the Corporation reconvened in an open meeting at
the same meeting location at 12:45 p.m.

Marketable Alternatives Portfolio Update

Mr. Caven asked Ms. lberg to give an update on the Marketable Alternatives Portfolio. Ms. lberg gave &
broad overview of the hedge fund portfolic. She focused on the overall hedge fund industry, portfolic
performance and composition, pooiing of hedge fund managers, and near-term plans for the Program. Ms.
Iberg, Mr. Boldt and Dr. Brown answered the Directors’ questions.



Risk Dashboard

Mr. Caven asked Mr. Boidt to present the next item on the agenda, Mr. Boldt explained each chart on the
new Risk Dashboard, a report that will be sent to the Board on a monthly basis. The report contains a set
of standardized charts and graphs presenting a comprehensive risk analysis of the Endowment Funds. Mr.
Boldt, Ms. Reed and Dr. Brown answered the Directors’ questions.

Discussion of Investment Environment and Qpportunities

Mr. Boldt led an open-ended discussion with the Directors regarding current issues, concems and
opportunities in the investment environment. Mr. Boldt provided a handout of Investment Trends and
answered the Directors’ questions. Mr. Nye and Ms. McHugh left the meeting during discussion.

Intermediate Term Fund (“ITF"}

Mr. Caven asked Mr. Goldsmith to give a presentation on the implementation status of the Intermediate
Term Fund. Mr. Goldsmith presented and discussed the developed timeline. To effectively utilize select
incumbent active endowment managers in the proposed ITF, a request was made by the Staff to raise the
investment ceffing beyond current Delegation of Authority limits, for prescribed managers, in prescribed
amounts as provided. Mr. Boldt and Mr. Goldsmith answered the Directors’ questions. Upon motion duly
made and seconded, the following resolution was unanimously adopted:

RESOLVED, that the Manager Exception List for the Intermediate Term Fund be,
and is hereby, approved in the form submitted to the Comoration's Board of
Directors.

Transaction Interface for Intermediate Term Fund

Mr. Caven asked Mr. Edwards to demonstrate the online system developed to facilitate the trading and
reporting requirements for the system institutions’ holdings of the Short Term Fund and the Intermediate
Term Fund. Training will be provided to the system institutions in January, 2008, prior to the
implementation of the {TF. Mr. Edwards answered the Directors’ questions.

There being no further business to come before the Board of Directors. the meeting was adjourned at
approximately 3:40 p.m.

Secretary:

Joan Moeller

Approved: Date:
H. Scott Caven, Jr.
Chairman, Board of Dirsctors of
The University of Texas Investment
Management Company
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TAB 2



Agenda ltem:
Developed By:
Presented By:
Type of ltem:

Description:

Recommendation:

Discussion:

Reference:

Agenda ltem
UTIMCO Board Meeting
January 17, 2006

Discussion and Consideration of Corporate Resolution
Caven

Caven

Action required by UTIMCO Board

This agenda item seeks approval of appointment of Mr. Woody L. Hunt as Vice
Chairman.

Chairman Caven recommends approval.

Mr. Hunt was appointed Vice Chairman of the Corporation on September 14, 2005,
by the UTIMCO Board. However, upon conclusion of Mr. Hunt's term as a Regent
of the UT System Board of Regents, Mr. Hunt was no longer a member of
UTIMCO's Board. Mr. Hunt was reappointed to the UTIMCO Board as an outside
director by the Board of Regents on November 10, 2005, and this agenda item
seeks to appoint Mr. Hunt as Vice Chairman of the UTIMCO Board.

UTIMCO Bylaws



RESOLUTION RELATED TO CORPORATION OFFICER

RESOLVED, that the following person is hereby appointed to the respective office of
the Corporation set forth apposite his name, to serve until the next Annual Meeting of
the Corporation or until their resignation or removal.

Name Office or Offices
Woody L. Hunt Vice-Chairman




TAB 3



Agenda ltem:
Developed By:
Presented By:
Type of ltem:

Description:

Discussion:

Recommendation:

Reference:

Agenda ltem
UTIMCO Board of Directors Mesting
January 17, 2006

Performance Report
Moeller, Hilt

Boldt

Information Item

The reports presented are for the periods ended October 31, 2005. (Except as
noted.)

In the Domestic Equity asset class Forstmann Leff has been added as Significant
Concem; Watch List.

No action required.

Market Exposure; UTIMCO Performance Summary; Fiscal Year Cumulative Value
Added in Endowment Funds; Fiscal Year Cumulative Value Added in Marketable
Securities; Fiscal Year Cumulative Value Added in Non-Marketable Securities;
Cumulative Value Added in Endowment Funds Since September 2002; Performance
Attribution; UTIMCO Endowment Funds vs. Mellon Trust All Funds Universe;
UTIMCO Endowment Funds vs. Mellon Trust Billion Dollar Funds Universe; UTIMCO
Endowment Funds vs. Mellon Trust Foundation and Endowments Universe; UTIMCO
Endowment Funds vs. Mellon Trust Foundations and Endowments Billion Dollar
Funds Universe; Public Markets Managers Investment Performance Detail
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Agenda item
UTIMCO Board of Directors Meeting
January 17, 2006

Agenda ltem: Liquidity Profile

Developed By: Moeller, Childers

Presented By: Boldt

Type of ltem: Information Item

Description: The reports presented are for the period ended Qctober, 2005.

Discussion: As of October 31, 2005 endowment fund assets classified as liquid were 75.4% of

the fotal assets, and those classified as illiquid were 24.6% of total assets.
Recommendation: No action required.

Reference: Combined Liquidity Profile, PUF Liquidity Profile, GEF Liquidity Profile, Certification of
GEF and PUF Liquidity Profiles, Wiquid Investments Approved/Delegated or Funded
from Last Report to UTIMCO Board, UT Endowments Actual Liquidity Classification,
Domestic Equities, Intenational Equities and Fixed Income Actual Liquidity
Classifications, Marketable Alternatives Actual Liquidity Classification, Non-
Marketable Alternatives Actual Liquidity Classification, and Inflation Hedging Actual
Liquidity Classification



Combined Liquidity Profile
October 31, 2005
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Liquid Iliquid
Current;
10/31/2005 9/30/2005
Market Value Percent Market Value Percent
Liguid 11,040,854,273.64 75.4 11,782,595,847.10 79.1
Tliguid 3,611,287,796.27 24.6 3,105,183,765.08 20.9
14,652,142,069.91 100.0 14,887,779,612.18 100.0
Approved but not yet invested illiquid marketable investments:
10/31/2005 9/30/2005
Market Value Percent Market Value Percent
Liquid 11,020,854,273.64 752 11,282,804,276.10 75.8
Miquid 3,631,287,796.27 24.8 3,604,975,336.08 24.2
14,652,142,069.91 100.0 14,887,779,612.18 100.0

Liguid: Investments that could be converted to cash within a period of 1 day to 3 months in an orderly market at a
discount of 10% or less.
Wiquid: Investments that could be converted to cash in a orderly market over a period of more than 3 months orin a

shorter glriod of tim a ting a discount of more than 10%.
I, » as Risk Manager, certify that I have reviewed the liquidity categories provided by the

Managing Directors and concur with the classifications.

» as Chief Compliance Officer and M} of Accounting, Finance and Administration,
certify that I have verified that the Managing Directors' liquidity classifications have been accurately reported and
that the percentage caiculations are accurate.

1, » as President of UTIMCO, certify that I have reviewed the liquidity categories, classifications by
Managing Directors and the method of calculating statistics presented in this report and concur with the information presented.



PUF Liquidity Profile
October 31, 2005

Percent of Total Portfolic
b2
|
i
|

20 — o
10 —_—
0 —
Liquid Wliquid
Current:
10/31/2005 9/30/2005
Market Value Percent Market Value Percent
Liquid 7,262,990,023.30 75.8 7,712,007,607.27 79.4
Nliquid 2,320,882.610.85 242 1,996,558,062.19 20.6
9,583,872,634.15 100.0 9,708,565,676.46 100.0
Approved but not yet invested illiguid marketable investments:
10/31/2005 9/30/2005
Market Value Percent Market Value Percent
Liquid 7.249,990,023.30 75.6 7.391,466,811.27 76.1
Nliquid 2,333,882,610.85 24.4 2,317,098,865.19 239
9,583,872,634.15 100.0 9,708,565,676.46 100.0

Liquid: Investments that could be converted to cash within a pericd of 1 day to 3 months in an orderly market at a
discount of 10% or less.
Mliguid: Investmeats that could be converted to cash in a orderly market over a period of more than 3 months or in a

shorter od of ti y pting a discount of more than 10%.
I, » as Risk Manager, certify that I have reviewed the liquidity categories provided by the

Mapaging Directors and concur with the classifications.

» as Chief Compliance Officer and MD of Accounting, Finance and Administration,
certiffy that | have verified that the Managing Directors' liquidity classifications have been accurately reported and
that the percentage calculations are accurate.

I, M as President of UTIMCO, certify that T have reviewed the liquidity categories, classifications by

Managing Directors and the method of calculating statistics presented in this report and concur with the information presented.




GEF Liquidity Profile
October 31, 2005
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Liquid Hiquid
Current:
10/31/2005 9/30/2005
Market Value Percent Market Value Percent
Liquid 3,777,864,250.34 74.5 4,070,588,239.83 78.6
Illiquid 1,290,405,185.42 25.5 1,108,625,695.59 21.4
5,068,269,435.76 100.0 5,179,213,935.72 100.0
Approved but not yet invested illiquid marketable investments:
10/31/2005 9/30/2005
Market Value Percent Market Value Percent
Liquid 3,770,864,250.34 74.4 3,891,337,464.83 75.1
Illiquid 1,297,405,185.42 25.6 1,287,876,470.89 249
5,068,269,11.’_55.76 100.0 5,179,213,935,72 100.0

Liquid: Investments that could be converted to cash within a period of 1 day to 3 months in an orderly market at a
discount of 109 or less.
Mliquid: Investments that could be converted to cash in a orderly market over a period of more than 3 months or in a

shorter pefiod of time, by accepting a discount of more than 10%.
1, » as Risk Manager, certify that I have reviewed the liquidity categories provided by the
Managing Directors and concur with the classifications.

» as Chief Compliance Officer and MD of Accounting, Finance and Administration,
certiff that I have verified that the Managing Directors' lquidity classifications have been accurately reported and
that the percentage calculations are accurate,

I, . as President of UTIMCO, certify that I have reviewed the liquidity categories, classifications by
Managing Directors and the method of calculating statistics presented in this report and concur with the information presented.




Liquidity Profile for GEF and PUF
October 31, 2005

| certify that | have reviewed the report and supporting documentation covered by the period listed above
and concur with the liquidity classifications of the investments that | have for which | have responsibility.

%/ M Larry Goldsmith, Managing Director - Public Markets
-

f1- 21 oy Date

f
e _4;) &
o At k}‘\ e Cathy Iberg, Managing Director - Marketable Alternatives

N{/‘Z/C Jos” Date

t—ﬂ W Trey Thompson, Managing Director - Non-Marketable Alternatives

’a‘—l’og Date




liquid investments approved/delegated or funded from last report to UTIMCO Board through

current report date
October 1, 2005 through October 31, 2005

Board
Approved/ Committed Amount Funded Amount
Private Equity investments Delegated PUF GEF PUF GEF
Reservoir Capital Investment Partners, L.P. 9/22/2005 $ 28,000,000.00 $ 12,000,000.00 $ 280000000 3 1,200,000.00
Blackstone Capital Partners V, L.P. 10/12/2005 $ 35,000,000.00 $ 135,000,000.00 $ - 3 -
Windjammer Senior Equity Partners III, L.P. 10/14/2005 $ 21,000,000.00 § 9,000,000.00 $ - § -
Marketable Aliernative investments
OCM High Yield 10/3/2005 §  9,750,000.00 $ 5,250,000.00 $ 9750,000.00 $ 5,250,000.00
TPG-Axon 10/3/2005 $ 32,500,000.00 $ 17,500,000.00 $ 32,500,000.00 $ 17,500,000.00
AG Realty 10/3/2005 $ 1625000000 3 8,750,000.00 3 16250,000.00 $ 8,750,000.00
Public Markets
Change in investment's liquidity classification

Marketable Alternative investments

5 - 5 -
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Agenda ltem:
Developed By:
Presented By:
Type of ltem:

Description:

Discussion:

Recommendation:

Reference:

Agenda ltem
UTIMCO Board of Directors Meeting
January 17, 2006

Risk Dashboard

Boldt and Reed

Boidt and Reed

Information ltem

UTIMCO has developed a set of standardized charts and graphs that will be
provided to the Board on a monthly basis presenting a comprehensive risk analysis
of the Endowment Funds.

The role of the Dashboard is to give Board Members a comprehensive view of risk
as it relates to the Endowment Funds. We consider this an evolving document and
will welcome all requests for additional analyses or revisions of the ones provided.

None

None
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Agenda ltem:
Developed By:
Presented By:
Type of ltem:

Description:

Discussion:

Recommendation:

Reference:

Agenda ltem
UTIMCO Board of Directors Meeting
January 17, 2006

Comprehensive Derivative Report
Goldsmith, Shah, Childers, Reed
Boldt

Information ltem

The UTIMCO Board approved amendments to the Derivative Investment Policy
(“Policy”) at its October 7, 2005 board meeting. The amended Policy requires that
UTIMCO provide a comprehensive report of all approved derivative applications for
both internal managers and external managers under agency agreements and also
provide a comprehensive report of all outstanding derivatives positions established
by internal managers and external managers under agency agreements. Staff has
also prepared a report on counterparties. The reports presented are for the period
ended October 31, 2005.

As of October 31, 2005, net mark-to-market values of derivatives {internal and
external} was negative $20.2 million.

The mark-to-market value of over-the-counter options was negative $4.5 million.
While $16.0 million was owed to counterparties by the PUF and GEF (Funds),
$11.5 million was owed by counterparties to the Funds. This $11.5 million owed to
the Funds represents the Funds’ counterparty risk. There were no counterparties
with exposure to the Funds in excess of 1% of the Funds’ value.

No action required.

Comprehensive Derivatives Report; Comprehensive Report on Approved Derivative
Applications; and Derivatives Counterparty Report.
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Agenda ltem:
Developed by:
Presented by:
Type of ltem:

Description:

Recommendation:

Discussion:

Reference:

Agenda ltem
UTIMCO Board of Directors Meeting
January 17, 2006

Report on Actions taken under the Delegation of Authority
Staff

Boldt

Information item

The Delegation of Authority delegates to the CEO the authority to execute on the
behalf of UTIMCO all contracts, leases, or other commercial arrangements {except
investment management agency contracts, partnership agreements, investment
consultant agreements and agreements with independent auditors) for a total
obligation of $1 million or less. The Delegation of Authority requires staff to report
contracts, leases, or other commercial arrangements executed by the CEO with a
total obligation of $1 million or less.

The Delegation of Authority also requires that the CEQ notify the UTIMCO Board at
its regularly scheduled Board meetings regarding all decisions made under the
delegated authority related to new manager selection and increases in investments
or commitments to existing managers.

None
Staff has prepared the reports to update the UTIMCO Board on (1} Manager activity,
and (2) new and renewal of existing contracts, leases and other commercial

arrangements

Manager Activity Taken Under the Delegation of Authority; New Contracts and
Existing Contract Renewals, Leases, and Other Commercial Arrangements
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Report on

New Contracts and Existing Contract Renewals, Leases, and Other Commercial

Arrangements

For Period November 3, 2005 through December 1, 2005

(Total Obligation per Agreement less than $1 million)

Annual
Agreement Purpose Contract Term Amount
Denim Group Review security measures for CPS/CMS Testing, analysis and
System for ITF users results phase will be $20,500
completed by January 17
Security Purchase UTIMCO will agree to purchase, on
Agreement behalf of the Board of Regents of The
Utnversity of Texas System, as an Effective November 10,
investment for certain funds of the Board | 2005 and shall terminate
managed by UTIMCO, Notes and Bonds | on the final maturity date
that cannot be remarketed or refunded. of any Notes or Bonds. None
Eliminate requirement for an annual
commitment fee to be paid by the Board
of Regents of The Texas A&M
Amendment to Note University System on the conimitment
Purchase Agreement amount that UTIMCO agrees to purchase,
as investment for the Permanent
University Fund, Notes not successfully Effective November 1,
remarketed by the Remarketing Agent. 2005. None
Global Portfolto Solutions IFS Risk System 10/1/2005 to 9/30/2006 $250,000
Market research with a focus on
P
(GaveKal Limited Internationa] Equities H172005 10 10/2006 $23,000
Services that renew via invoice on a monthly or quarterly basis:
. . Renews quarterly via
Bloomberg All-lm—one 1 gstmenF P latforrp for involice and may be $197,020
irading, analysis and information .
canceled at any time
American Stock exchange g;ig {0 access stock prices and related Monthly invoice $1.812
Dow Jones News Service Used to aécess current new on stocks and Monthly invoice §10,620
related investments
New York Stock Exchange [Ii:s\z(: to access stock prices and related Monthly invoice $2.865
Options Pricing Report E::f 0 aceess option prices and related Quarterly invoice $1.161
Thomson Venture Venture capital and private equity Monthly invoice $18.,000

Economics

benchmarks and other industry data




Primary quotation and trading system for
U.S. Treasury, Agency, Mortgage and

Monthly itvoice

$18,600

d I
Trade Web Corporate debt securitics
iti tati i st L
Market Axess Compelitive quota lon and irading system Monthly invoice $1,800
for corporate securities
ti ati i i o <
Bourse de Montreal Real time quotations of Canadian equity Monthly invoice $1,513

futures
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Hecommendation:
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Agenda ltem
UTIMCO Board of Directors Meeting
January 17, 2006

Report on Audit and Ethics Committee Meeting
Moeller

Nye

Action required by UTIMCO Board; information items

An Audit and Ethics Committee (“Committee”) meeting will be held on January 16, 2006.
The Committee's agenda will include review and consideration of the UTIMCO Audited
Financial Statements as of August 31, 2005, review and consideration of the results of the
internal controls assessment audit conducted by Emst & Young op the Permanent
University Fund and UTIMCO corporate for the year ended August 31, 2005, the annual
evaluation of enterprise risk management, evaluation and review of UTIMCO's
compliance process, review of major risk exposures, update on the custodian review, and
review of unaudited financial statements for the three months ended November 30, 2005.

The UTIMCO financial statements were audited by Erst & Young, LLP. Ricky Richter,
Emst & Young engagement pariner, will present to the Committee the results of the
UTIMCO audit at its January 16, 2006 meeting. Emst & Young issued an unqualified
opinion on the August 31, 2005, financial statements. A copy of the audited financial
statements and Emst & Young's Audit Results and Communications Letter are included.
Ernst & Young were still completing their internal control audit during the month of
December. The results will be presented to the Committee by Ricky Richter.

In addition, as required by the Charter of the Audit and Ethics Committee, the Committee
is required to annually review and evaluate UTIMCO’s enterprise risk management,
compliance process, and major risk exposures. The Charter was amended last May with
the requirements for annual reviews and evaluations and this meeting will be the first time
the review and evaluation will formally occur by the Committee. The Committee will report
on the results of its review and evaluation. The Committee will also review the Funds’
financial statements for the three months ended November 30, 2005.

The Audit and Ethics Committee and the Risk Committee also will participate in a joint
meeting to clarify each committee’s role related to enterprisefinvestment risk
responsibilities. Based on the decision of the committees, the Audit and Ethics
Committee may recommend an amendment to the Charter of the Audit and Ethics
Committee.

The Committee will recommend action related to the audited UTIMCO financial
statements and internal controls audits of the PUF and UTIMCO. The Committee will also
recommend action related to the Charter of the Audit and Ethics Committee, if any.

Charter of the Audit and Ethics Committee; UTIMCO Audited Financial Statements: E&Y
Audit Results and Communications Letter



RESOLUTION RELATED TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RESOLVED, that the annual financial statements and audit report for the
Corporation for the years ended August 31, 2005, and August 31, 2004
be, and are hereby approved in the form as presented to the Board.
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RESOLUTION RELATED TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RESOLVED, that the annual financial statements and audit report for the
Corporation for the years ended August 31, 2005, and August 31, 2004
be, and are hereby approved in the form as presented to the Board.
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The Audit and Ethics Committee
The University of Texas Investment Management Company

We are pleased to present the results of our audit of the financial statements of The University of Texas
Investment Management Company (the “Company”) for the year ended August 31, 2005.

This report to the Audit and Ethics Committee is organized into the following sections:

. Required Communications

. Report on Internal Control

We received the full support and assistance of Company’s personnel. This report is intended solely for the
information and use of the Audit and Ethics Committee, and management of the Company and is not intended to
be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

We appreciate this opportunity to meet with you to discuss the contents of this report and answer any questions
you may have about these or any other audit-related matters.

Very truly yours,

Pt .-

Ricky L. Richier

oviernbse r Ul Gl st & ey ol



AUDIT RESULTS AND

COMMUNICATIONS

REQUIRED COMMUNICATIONS

Statement on Auditing Standards No. 61 and other professional standards require the auditor to provide the audit
commitlee with additional information regarding the scope and results of the audit that may assist the audit committee
in overseeing management's financial reporting and disclosure process. Below we summarize these required

communications.

Auditors’ Responsibilities Under Generally Accepted Auditing Standards
(GAAS)

The financial statements are the responsibility of management. Our
audits were designed in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States to provide reasonable, rather than
absolute, assurance that the financial statements are free of material
misstatement. As a part of our audit, we obtained an understanding of
internal control sufficient to plan our audit and to determine the nature,
timing, and extent of testing performed.

Comments

We issued an unqualified opinion on the August 31, 2005 financial
statements.

Our Judgments About the Quality of the Company's Accounting
Principles

We discuss our judgments about the quality, not just the acceptability, of
the accounting policies as applied in the Funds’ financial reporting,
including the consistency of the accounting policies and their application
and the clarity and completeness of the financial statements and related
disclosures.

Accounting principles selected by management are of good quality,
are acceptable, and have been consistently applied under
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States. The
Company's financial statements and disclosures are complete in al!
material respects.

Sensitive Accounting Estimates

The preparation of the financial statements requires the use of
accounting estimates. Certain estimates are particularly sensitive due to
their significance to the financial statements and the possibility that
future events may differ significantly from management's expectations.

We determine that the Audit Committee is informed about management's
process for formulating particularly sensitive accounting estimates and
about the basis for our conclusions regarding the reasonableness of
those estimates.

Estimates in the 2005 financial statements did not require
significant management judgment.

The Adoption of, or a Change in, an Accounting Principle

We determine that the Audit Committee is informed about the initial
selection of, and any changes in, significant accounting principles or their
appiication when the accounting principle or its application, including
alternative methods of applying the accounting principle, has a material
effect on the financial statements.

During fiscal year 2005, the Company changed the financial
statement presentation from a FASB to a GASB format with the
most significant change being the addition of a MD&A section.




AUDIT RESULTS AND

COMMUNICATIONS

Area

Methads of Accounting for Significant Unusual Transactions and for
Controversial or Emerging Areas

We determine that the Audit Committee is informed about the methods
used to account for significant unusual transactions and the effects of
significant accounting policies in controversial or emerging areas for
which there is a lack of authoritative guidance or consensus.

Comments

We are not aware of any significant unusual transactions recorded
by the Company or of any significant accounting policies used by
the Company related te controversial or emerging areas for which
there is a lack of authoritative guidance.

Significant Audit Adjustments

We provide the Audit Committee with information about adjustments
arising from the audit {whether recorded or not) that could in our
judgment either individually or in the aggregate have a significant effect
on the Company's financial statements.

There were no recorded audit adjustments related to the fiscal
year 2005 audit.

Unadjusted Audit Differences Considered by Management to Be
Immaterial

We inform the Audit Committee about unadjusted audit differences
accumulated by us {i.e, adjustments either identified by us or brought to
our attention by management) during the current audit and pertaining to
the latest period presented that were determined by management to be
immaterial, both individually and in the aggregate, to the financial
statements as a whole.

There were no unadjusted audit differences related to the fiscal
year 2005 audit.

Fraud and lliegal Acts

We report to the Audit Committee fraud and illegal acts involving senior
management and fraud ard illegal acts (whether caused by senior
management or other employees) that cause a material misstatement of
the financial statements.

We are not aware of any fraud or illegal acts.

Material Weaknesses in Internal Control

We are required to communicate all material weaknesses in internal
control, which may have been identified during the course of our audit.

No material weaknesses were identified.

Disagreements with Management None.
Serious Difficulties Encountered in Dealing with Management when None.
Performing the Audit

Major Issues Discussed with Management Prior to Retention None.

[ =]
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AUDIT RESULTS AND
COMMUNICATIONS

Consultation with Other Accountants None of which we are aware.

Other Matters None.

Other Information in Documents Containing Audited Financial We believe that Management's Discussion and Analysis is
Statements consistent with the audited financial statements.

Our financial statement audit opinion only relates to the financial
statements and the accompanying notes. However, we also review other
information such as Management's Discussion and Analysis, for
consistency with the audited financial statements,
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REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL

The Audit and Ethics Committee

The University of Texas Investment Management Company

In planning and performing our audits of the financial statements of The University of Texas Investment
Management Company for the year ended August 31, 2005, we considered its internal control to determine our
auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements and not to provide
assurance on internal control. Our consideration of internal control would not necessarily disclose all matters in
internal control that might be material weaknesses under standards established by the American Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. A material weakness is a condition in which the design or operation of one or more
of the specific internal control components does not reduce to a relatively low level the risk that errors or fraud in
amounts that would be material in relation to the financial statements being audited may occur and not be
detected within a timely period by employees in the normal course of performing their assigned functions.
However, we noted no matters involving internal control and its operation that we consider to be material
weaknesses as defined above.

This report is intended solely for the use of the Audit and Ethics Committee, and management of the Company.
We would be pleased to discuss any comments you may have on these or other issues.

Sant ¥ MLLP

October 27, 2005
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (MD&A)

Our discussion and analysis of the financial performance for The University of Texas Investment
Management Company (UTIMCO) provides an overview of its activities for the period ended
August 31, 2005. This discussion was prepared by UTIMCO management and should be read in
conjunction with the UTIMCO financial statements and notes. UTIMCO is a 501(c)(3)
investment management corporation whose sole purpose is the management of investment assets
under the fiduciary care of the Board of Regents of The University of Texas System (UT Board).

Created in March 1996, UTIMCO is the first external investment corporation formed by a public
university system. It invests endowment and operating funds in excess of $18 billion. UTIMCO
1s governed by a nine-member Board of Directors appointed by the UT System Board of Regents.
The UTIMCO Board of Directors includes three members of the UT Board, the Chancellor of
The University of Texas System, and five outside investment professionals (including one
representative from the Texas A&M University System). The UTIMCO Board and the UT
System Board of Regents have entered into an Investment Management Services Agreement
delegating investment management responsibility for all investments to UTIMCO.

The purpose of the MD&A is to provide an objective and easily readable analysis of the
UTIMCO financial statements based upon currently known facts, decisions or conditions.

Financial Highlights

» Net assets decreased by $3.4 million from $12.1 million to $8.7 million, or approximately
28% for the year ended August 31, 2005. The change in net assets for the year is mainly
attnibutable to the following:

1. On December 6, 2004 UTIMCO rebated $4 million back to the UT Investment
Funds as required by the Investment Management Services Agreement between
UTIMCO and the UT System Board of Regents. No similar rebate occurred in the
prior fiscal year.

2. During the 2005 fiscal year, operating revenue exceeded expenses by $578,012.

» Net assets increased by $1.1 million or approximately 10% for the year ended August 31,
2004. The change in net assets for the year is the result of revenue exceeding expenses by
$1,132,529.

Use of Financial Statements and Notes

UTIMCO financial statements are prepared in accordance with standards issued by the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board (GASB). Three financial statements are typically required under GASB:
Statement of Financial Position, Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Change in Net Assets, and the
Statement of Cash Flows.



The notes to the financial statements contain supplemental information that is essential for the fair
presentation of the financial statements.

Statements of Financial Position

The Statements of Financial Position present assets, liabilities, and the net assets of UTIMCO as of
the end of the fiscal year. These statements have been prepared using the accrual basis of accounting.

The following summarizes the statements of financial position:

2005 2004 2003

Assets

Cash & Cash Equivalents $ 3,006,059 $ 6,682,363 $ 4572179

Investments, at Fair Value 7,429,273 7,257,863 7,084,224

Other Assets 1,502,914 821,851 913,795
Total Assets $11,938246 $ 14,762,077 $12,570,198
Liabilities & Net Assets

Accounts Payable & Accrued Expenses $ 3,203,657 $ 2,605,500 $ 1,546,150

Unrestricted Net Assels 8,734,589 12,156,577 11,024,048
Total Liabilities & Net Assets $ 11,938,246 $ 14,762,077 % 12,570,198

The changes in financial position components are primarily the resuit of the following;

During the 2005 fiscal year UTIMCO rebated $4 million back to the UT Investment Funds
as required by the Investment Management Services Agreement between UTIMCO and
the UT System Board of Regents. No similar rebate occurred in either the 2004 or the
2003 fiscal years.

Earnings from UTIMCO investments (dividends and interest) are reinvested, thus
increasing the fair value of these investments for each year presented.

Other Assets increased during the current fiscal year by approximately $681,000. Two
factors contributed to this increase: Fixed Assets increased by $557,000 related to
purchases of leasehold improvements, furniture, and computer equipment for its new
leased facilities. In addition, Prepaid Expenses increased by $113,000 primarily as a result
of deposits made toward the purchase of new furniture. Other Assets did not change
appreciably between fiscal year 2003 and 2004.

Accounts Payable and Accrued Expense increases from 2003 to 2004, and then again from
2004 to 2005, are primarily as a result of bonuses from the performance compensation
plan approved by both the UTIMCO Board of Directors and the UT System Board of

Regents.



Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Assets

The Statements of Revenue, Expenses, and Change in Net Assets are based upon the financial activity
of the organization. The purpose of these statements is to present details comprising the revenue,
expenses, and changes to net assets for the periods reported. The following table summarizes the

Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Assets:

2005 2004 2003
Revenue
Managemem Fees % 10,458,115 $ 9,519,273 $9.610,001
Other Revenue 288,436 242,026 180,406
$ 10,746,551 $ 9,761,299 $ 9,790,407
Management Fee Rebate (4,000,000) 0 0
Expenses
Salanes & Benefils $ 7,131,447 $ 6,206,729 $ 4,807,290
General Operating Expenses 1,247,204 993,653 902,842
Other Expenses 1,789 888 1,428,388 1,895,956
$ 10,168,539 $ 8,628,770 $ 7,606,088
Increase (Decrease) in Unrestricted Net Assels (3,421,988) 1,132,529 2,184,319
Net Assets, Beginning of Period 12,156,577 11,024,048 3,839,729
Net Assets, End of Period $ 8,734,589 $ 12,156,577 % 11,024,048

The changes in the Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Change in Net Assets are primarily the

result of the following:

* Management Fee revenue for each year presented are based upon the operating budget and
management fee approved in advance each year by both the UTIMCO Board of Directors
and the UT System Board of Regents. Revenue fluctuations are the direct result of these

approved budgets.

* During the 2005 fiscal year UTIMCO rebated $4 million back to the UT Investment Funds
as required by the Investment Management Services Agreement between UTIMCO and
the UT System Board of Regents. No similar rebate occurred in either the 2004 or the

2003 fiscal years.

* Salary and Benefit expenses increased with the addition of 6.5 new positions in fiscal year
In addition, a new performance
compensation plan was approved impacting both the 2004 and 2005 fiscal years.

2005 and 3 new positions in fiscal year 2004.



® During fiscal year 2005, General Operating expenses increased by approximately
$253,000, primarily as a result of increased expenditures for on-line data services,
investment research, and analytical subscriptions totaling $188,200. In addition, contract
service paymenis increased by $38,300 and staff travel expenses increased by $26,500.

There were no significant expense fluctuations in these categories between fiscal year
2003 and 2004.

¢ Other expenses increased during 20035 by approximately $361,000; the result of additional
legal fees related to investment disclosure, open records, and drafting the performance
compensation plan. Higher expenses in fiscal year 2003 were also the result of additional
legal fees related to both open records and investment disclosure.

Statements of Cash Flows

The Statements of Cash Flows are presented to identify the cash flows from operating activities and
those cash flows used for investing activities. The following table summarizes the Statements of
Cash Flows:

2005 2004 2003
Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Increase (Decrease)in Net Assets from
Operations $ (3,421,988) $1,132,529 $2,184,319
Increase (Decrease) in Accrued Expenses 271,404 1,059,350 1,082,793
Increase (Decrease) in Deferred Rent 326,753 0 0
Other Cash Flows from Operating Activities 159,650 228.526 319,542
{2,664,181) 2,420,405 3,586,054
Cash Flows used for Investing Activities
Purchase of Property & Equipment (831,516) (152,271) (126,573)
Purchase of Investments (180,607) (166,950 (7,159,941)
Other Cash Flows used for Investing
Activities 0 9,000 1,788
(1,012,123) (310,221 (7,284,726)
Net Change in Cash & Cash Equivalents (3,676,304) 2,110,184 {3,608,072)
Cash & Cash Equivalents, Beginning of Period 0,682,363 4,572,179 8,270,251

Cash & Cash Equivalents, End of Period $ 3,006,059 $ 6,682,363 $4,572,179

The changes in the Statements of Cash Flows are primarily the result of the following:

* The cash flows from operations have steadily declined from 2003 through 2005. This is a
direct result of actual expenditures being aligned closer to approved budgeted amounts for
both the 2004 and 2005 fiscal years.

* During the 2005 fiscal year UTIMCO rebated $4 million back to the UT Investment Funds
as required by the Investment Management Services Agreement between UTIMCO and
4



the UT System Board of Regents. No similar rebate occurred in either the 2004 or the
2003 fiscal years.

* Accrued expenses related to bonus payments increased in fiscal years 2003 and 2004 as a
direct result of the performance compensation plan approved by the UTIMCO Board of
Directors and the UT System Board of Regents.

® Deferred Rent increased in fiscal year 2005 by $326,753. Under the terms of the office
lease effective September 1, 2005, the landlord granted UTIMCO an allowance to be used
and applied toward the cost of leasehold improvements in the new space. The amount of
this deferred rent will be amortized over the term of the lease.

* Purchases of property and equipment increased in fiscal year 2005 as the organization
prepared to move into new leased facilities. There were no significant additions in either
2003 or 2004.

¢ The purchase of investments has declined sharply since fiscal year 2003. The original
purchase of investments with operating reserves was made in fiscal year 2003, thus the
large cash outflow. During fiscal years 2004 and 2005, the only additional investment
purchases have been the reinvestment of dividends and interest.

Contacting UTIMCO

The above financial highlights are designed to provide a general overview of the UTTIMCO corporate
results and insight into the following financial statements. Additional information may be found on
our website and inquiries may be directed to UTIMCO via www.ulimco.org.




-

i’l ERNST& ‘/()UNG B Erns! & Young 11¢ & Phone: 1572)478-9881
Suiler 1400 Fax: {0121 473-34499
TO0 Lavaca WWAWLEY,COM
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Report of Independent Auditors

The Board of Directors
The University of Texas Investment Management Company

We have audited the accompanying statement of financial position of The Umiversity of Texas
Investment Management Company (UTIMCO) as of August 31, 2005 and 2004 and the related
statements of revenues, expenses and changes in net assets and cash flows for the years then
ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of UTIMCO’s management. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. We were not engaged
to perform an audit of UTIMCO’s internal control over financial reporting. Our audits included
consideration of internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of UTIMCO’s internal control over fnancial reporting.
Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, and evaluating the
overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for
our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of the UTIMCQ as of August 31, 2005 and 2004, and the results of its
operations and its cash flow for the years then ended, in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States.

Management’s discussion and analysis on pages 1 through 5 is not a required part of the financial
statements but is supplementary information required by accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States. We have applied certain limited procedures, which consisted
principally of inquiries of management regarding the methods of measurement and presentation
of the required supplementary information. However, we did not audit the information and

€Xpress no opinion on it.
édowt < MLLP

October 27, 2005, except for Note 9 as to which
the date is December 16, 2005

A Member Practice of Dmnst & Young Glabal



THE UNIVERSITY OF TEXAS INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY

Financial Siaternenis

Statements of Financial Position
Awngust 31, 2005 and 2004

Assets

Current Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Dividends recetvable
Investments (Note 4)
Prepaid expenses and other assets
Total Current Assets
Non-Current Assets:
Property and equipment, net of accumulated depreciation

of $1,322,348 and $1,147,376, respectively

Total assets

Liabilitics and Net Assets
Current Liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Deterred rent-current portion (Note 8)
Total Current Liahilities
Non-Current Liabilities:
Deferred rent-long-term portton (Note 8)
Total Liabilities
Net Assets:

Unrestricted

Total liabilities and niet assets

The accompunying notes are an iekegral part of these fincncial atements.
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2005 2004
$ 3,006,059 $ 6,682,363
21,389 12,207
7420273 7,257,863
496,627 382625
10,953,348 14,335,058
984,898 427.019
$.11,938246  $.14.762.077
$ 2,876,904 $ 2,605,500
29.705
2,906,609 2,605,500
297.048 -
3,203,657 2,605,500
$_ 8.734.580 $12.156.577
$.11,938,.246 $.14,762,077




THE UNIVERSITY OF TEXAS INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY

Financial § taterments

Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets
For years ended Angust 31, 2005 and 2004

Changes in unrestricted net assets:

2005 __ 2004
Revenue
Management fee $ 10,458,115 $§ 9519273
Interest 107,807 69,854
Dividends 189,788 165,418
Net unrealized gains/(losses) on investments 9,197) 0,689
Miscellanecus 38 65
Total revenue 10,746,551 9,761,299
Rebate of management fees to investment funds (Note 3) (4,000,000) B
Expenses
Salaries 6,197 994 5,459,620
Employee benefits 619,816 540,332
Payroll taxes 313,637 206,777
General operating 1,247 204 993,653
Depreciaton and amortization 272,836 261,894
Lease 600,593 599,047
Professional fees 661,442 304,972
Insurance 254214 258,678
Loss on disposal of equipment 803 3.797
Total expenses 10,168,539 8,628,770
Increase/{Decrease) in unrestricted net assets (3,421,988) 1,132,529
Net assets at beginning of period 12,156,577 11.024,048
Net assets at end of period $ 34 589 $ 12,156,577

The acampunying rotes are un integrad puri of these financial stutements.
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THE UNIVERSITY OF TEXAS INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY

Financial Statements

Statements of Cash Flows
For the years ended August 31, 2005 and 2004

2005 2004
Cash flows from operating activities:
Increase (Dectease) in unrestricted net assets from operations $(3,421,988 § 1,132529
Adjustments to reconcile changes in unrestricted net assets from operations
to net cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation 272 836 261,894
Net unrealized {gains)/losses on investments 9,197 {6,689
Loss on disposal of equipment 803 3,797
Change in assets and labilities;
(Increase)/Decrease in dividends reccivable 9,182) 1,532
(Increase) in prepaid expenses and other assets (114,004) {32,008)
Increase in accounts payable and accrued expenses 271,404 1,059,350
Increase in deferred rent 320,753
Net cash (used in) provided by operating activities (2,664,181) 2,420,405
Cash flows used for investing activities:
Purchase of property and equipment (831,510) {152,271}
Proceeds from sale of equipment 9,000
Purchase of investments {180.607) (106,950
Net cash used for investing activities (1,012.123) (310,221)
Net Increase/(Decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (3,676,304) 2,110,184
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 6,682,363 4572179
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period $ 3,006,059 § 6,682,363

Fhe accompanyiuy wotes are wn integral part of these financal statements.
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THE UNIVERSITY OF TEXAS INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY

Notes to Financial §itatemenis

Note 1 - Organization

The University of Texas Investment Management Company (UTIMCO) is a not-for-profit
corporation organized to invest funds under the control and management of the Board of Regents
(Board) of The University of Texas System. UTIMCO commenced business on March 1, 1996.
The financial statements of UTIMCO have been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting. The
significant accounting policies are described in Note 2.

Note 2 - Significant Accounting Policies
Basis of Accounting

The financial statements of UTIMCO are prepared in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America as prescribed by GASB. UTIMCO applies all
applicable GASB pronouncements and Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Statements
and Interpretations issucd on or before November 30, 1989, except those that conflict with a GASB
pronouncement.

Property, equipment and depreciation

As part of UTIMCO’s organization, cettain equipment was received from The University of Texas
System. This equipment was stated at fair value at the time of receipt. Property and equipment
acquired after inception consists of office furniture, office equipment, software, and leasehold
mmprovements and 1s stated at cost. Depreciation and amortization is computed using the straight-
line method over the useful lives of the assets. The following is a schedule of the property and
equipment at August 31, 2005 and 2004.

2005 2004
Office furmiture $ 351,823 $ 349709
Office equipment 812,834 805,129
Software 226,124 192,371
Leasehold improvements 916465 227,186
Total property and cquipment 2,307,246 1,574,395
Tess accumulated depreciation (1,322 .348) (1,147.376)
Net property and equipment §..984,898 § 427,019

Tncome laxes

The exclusive purposes for which UTIMCO is organized and is to be operated are charitable and
educational within the meaning of section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Service Code, and
therefore UTIMCO is not subject to federal income taxes on normal operations. UTIMCO may,
however, incur federal income taxes on unrelated business income.
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THE UNIVERSITY OF TEXAS INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY
Noter to Financial Statements (cont'd)

Cash and cash equivalents

For purposes of the statements of cash flows, UTIMCO considers highly liquid debt instruments
purchased with an original maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents. UTIMCO
invests excess cash m an interest-bearing money market account.

Prepaid expenses and other assets

Prepaid expenscs consist of expenses paid in advance for insurance and various services. The
prepaid expenses will be ratably expensed over the petiod to which they relate. In addition, other
assets include a deposit of $89,954 with UTIMCO’s landlord. This deposit and any intcrest earned
on it will be returned to UTIMCO at the end of the lease period.

Investments

Investments are carried at market, and realized and unrealized gains and losses are reflected in the
statement of actvitics.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect
the reported amounts of assets and labilities and disclosure of contingent asscts and liabilities at the
date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the
reporting period. Actual results could differ from these estimates.

Note 3 - Related Party Transactions

a)  Investment Management Services Agreement - The Investment Management Services
Agreement has appointed UTIMCO as the Board of Regents’ investment manager with complete
authority to act for the Board in the investment of all funds. The amount of the management fec
for the periods ended August 31, 2005 and 2004 were $10,450,615 and $9,519,273, respectively.
This represents fees for the following:

2005 2004

Permanent University Fund $ 5,790,979 $5,360,677
The University of Texas System Long Term Fund 3,483,456 2,997,722
Permanent Health Fuad 686,338 621,526
The University of Texas Systern Short Intermediate Term Fund 489,842 539,348
$10,450,615 $9,519.273

by  UTIMCO contracts for internet and mainframe connection services with The University of
Texas System and The University of Texas at Austin. The expense for these services for the
periods ended August 31, 2005 and 2004 were $12,057 and $13,416, respectively.
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THE UNIVERSITY OF TEXAS INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY

Notes o Financial $tatements (cont'd)

€)  On December 6, 2004 UTIMCO rebated $4 million back to the UT Investment Funds as
requited by the Investment Management Services Agreement between UTIMCO and the UT
System Board of Regents. This agreement has subsequently been amended to provide for a
discretionary rebate as opposed to a required rebate. The 2005 funds were returmed in the amounts
detailed below:

Permanent University Fund $ 2,390,343
Long Term Fund 1,246,673
Permanent Health Fund 169,581
Short Intermediate Term Fund 193,403

Total Rebate $ 4,000,000

Note 4 - Investments

UTIMCO has invested funds in The University of Texas System Short Intermediate Term Fund
(SITF). The SITF invests in high grade fixed income obligations. The SITF carries an AAA¢ credit
quality rating and a bond fund volatility rating of Sy from Standard & Poor’s, Inc. The investment’s
cost and market value at August 31, 2005 were $7,507,498 and $7,429,273, respectively.  The
investment’s cost and market value at August 31, 2004 were $7,326,891 and $7,257,863, respectively.

Note 5 - Deferred Revenue

UTIMCO assesses on or before the first day of The University of Texas System’s fiscal quarter one-
fourth of the annual management fee. The fee is deferred and is ratably credited to revenue
monthly. For the periods ended August 31, 2005 and 2004, there was no deferred revenue.

Note 6 - 403(b) Plan

Liffective March 1, 1996, UTIMCO established a tax-sheltered annuity artangement, which provides
retirement benefits for its employees by contributing to a custodial account invested in mutual
funds. The employer matches 8.5% of gross compensation on behalf of an employee. Employees
are required to contribute 6.5% of their total gross compensation to receive the company match.
Employer contributions for the peniods ended August 31, 2005 and 2004 were $304,359 and
$280,400, respectively.

Note 7 - Lease Expense

UTIMCO leases office space and parking from an unrelated landlord. The 60-month lease
commenced January 15, 2001 and expites January 15, 2006. The minimum rental commitment is
$33,923 per month. Additionally, UTIMCO is responsible to the landlord for its share of operating
expenses related to the rental property.  The lease expense and operating expenses paid were
$422,212 and $171,789, tespectively, for the period ended August 31, 2005, and $415224 and
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THE UNIVERSITY OF TEXAS INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY
Notes to Financial Staterments (cont’d)

$177,559, respectively, for the period ended August 31, 2004. Since the lease terminates in January
2006, the future minimum lease payments under the lease term are $152,654.

UTIMCO has a deposit of $89,954 with the landlord. This deposit and any interest earned on it will
be returned to UTIMCO at the end of the lease period.

Lffective September 1, 2005, UTTIMCO entered into a new lease for its office space and parking
with an unrelated party. This 132 month lease expires August 31, 2016. The following is a schedule

by years of the future minimum lease payments under the lease term:

Years ending August 31,

2006 57,400
2007 523 8019
2008 650,745
2009 671,672
Thereafter 4,701,704
Total G 30

Neote 8 — Deferred Rent

Under the terms of the new office lease cffective September 1, 2005, the landlord granted UTTMCO
an allowance to be used and applied toward the cost of leaschold improvements in the new space.
As of August 31, 2005, this amount was $326,753. The new property was placed in service on

November 14, 2005. The amount of this deferred credit will be amortized over the term of the
lease.

Note 9 — Subsequent Event

Pursvant to the Investment Management Services Agreement between UTIMCO and the UT
System Board of Regents, UTIMCO rebated an additional $4 million back to the UT Investment
Funds. This transfer involves discretionary funds and no restrictions were or have been placed upon
the use of these funds. The approval and return of these funds occurred after the UTIMCO year

end, so no lability has been recorded as of August 31, 2005. The rebate was paid November 30,
2005, 1n the amounts detailed below:

Permanent University Fund § 2,344,400
Long Term Fund 1,293,600
Permanent Health Fund 176,800
Short Intermediate Term Fund 185,200

Total Rebare § 4,000,000
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UTIMCO

AUDIT CHARTER
OF THE
AUDIT AND ETHICS COMMITTEE

Background

The Board of Directors (the “Board”) of UTIMCO (the “Corporation”)
established an Audit and Ethics Committee (the “Committee”) on
February 22, 1996. On July 15, 1996 the Board adopted certain resolutions
regarding, among other things, the Corporation’s Audit and Ethics Commiltee
Mandate (the “Mandate”). The Mandate was superceded by this Audit Charter
adopted by the UTIMCO Board on June 29, 2000, as amended on June 26, 2003
and further amended on May 19, 2005.

Purpose

The primary purpose of the Committec is to assist the Board in monitoring the
financial and compliance functions of the Corporation and the investment funds
managed on behalf of The University of Texas System Board of Regents (the “UT
Board”) to assure the balance, transparency and integrity of published financial
information. Specifically, the Committee is to assist the Board in monitoring:

. the integrity of the financial reporting process, the system of internal
controls, the audit process, and the process for monitoring compliance
with laws and regulations;

. the independence and performance of the Corporation’s independent
auditors;

. the independence and performance of the independent auditors selected by
the UT Board to audit the investment funds managed by UTIMCO on their
bhehalf:

. internal audit functions performed by the U T System Audit Office;

. the Corporation's audit policies, ethics programs, and adherence to

regulatory requirements; and

. the Corporation's compliance processes associated with investment
policies and enterprise risk management.

The Committee is responsible for maintaining free and open communication as
well as effective working relationships among the Committee members,
independent external auditors, UT System’s internal auditors, and management of
the Corporation. To perform his or her role effectively, each commiltee member

1



Scope

will need to develop and maintain his or her skills and knowledge, including an
understanding of the Committee’s responsibilities and of the Corporation’s
activities, operations and risks.

The Committee will take all appropriate actions to set the overall tone at the
Corporation for quality financial reporting, sound risk practices, and ethical
behavior.

In addition to the Corporation, this Audit Charter shall encompass the investment
funds subject to the Investment Management Services Agreement by and between
the U T Board and the Corporation effective March 1, 1996, and any subsequent
amendments or restatements. As such, the role and purpose of the Committee
includes monitoring the functions and processes for both the Corporation and the
investment assets managed on behalf of the UT Board.

Compeosition

The Committee shall be composed of three members of the Board; such members
to be appointed from time to time by a majority of the Board and approved by the
U T Board as required by Section 66.08 (c)(3) of the Texas Education Code.
Members of the Committee must meet the independence and financial literacy
requirements as defined below. A member may be removed with or without
cause at any time by a vote of a majority of the Board.

Independence Requirements

The Board shall determine that all members of the Committee are independent.
The definition of “independent” is a person who has no relationship with the
Corporation which would interfere with his or her exercise of independence from
management. [n addition, Committee members would not be “independent” if
during the three years prior to their appointment or at any time during their
service on the Committee, they accepted, directly or indirectly, any consulting,
advisory, or other compensatory fee from the Corporation apart from travel and
expense reimbursement they may receive as members of the Board and its
Committees.

Financial Literacy

The Board, based on its business judgment, shall determine that each member of
the Committee is financially literate.

Financial Management Expertise



The Board, based on its business judgment, shall determine that at least one
member of the Committee is a “financial expert.” A financial expert possesses
the following attributes:
* an understanding of generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) and
financial statements:
* an ability to assess the application of these principles in connection with
accounting for estimates, accruals and reserves;
* an understanding of audit committee functions;
¢ cxpenience preparing, auditing, analyzing or evaluating financial
statements, or experience actively supervising persons engaged in such
activities; and
¢ an understanding of internal controls and procedures for financial
reporting.

Meetings; Quorum; Etc.

The Corporation’s Bylaws state that any committee created by the Board shall (i)
have a chairman designated by the Board, (ii) fix its own rules or procedures, (iii)
meet at such times and at such place or places as may be provided by such rules
or by resolution of such committee or resolution of the Board, and (iv) keep
regular minutes of its meetings and cause such minutes to be recorded in books
kept for that purpose in the principal office of the Corporation, and report the
same to the Board at its next succeceding meeting. At every meeting of any such
committee, the presence of a majority of all the members thereof shall constitute a
quorum, and the affirmative vote of a majority of the members present shall be
necessary for the adoption by it of any action, unless otherwise expressly
provided in the committee's rules or procedures or the Bylaws of the Corporation
or by the Board. The Board may designate one or more Directors as alternate
members of any committee, who may replace any absent or disqualified member
of such committec. In the absence or disqualification of a member of a
committee, the member or members present at any meeting of the committee and
not disqualified from voting, whether or not constituting a quorum, may
unanimously appoint the designated alternate Director to act at the meeting in the
place of the absent or disqualified member.

Functions, Duties and Responsibilities

Review Financial Statements for Quality Considerations.  The Committee has
the following duties and responsibilities with respect to the financial statements of
the Corporation and the investment funds managed on behalf of the UT Board:



review the annual audited financial statements with management and the
independent auditor, including significant issues regarding adequacy of
internal controls and accounting principles and practices;

review an analysis prepared by management and the independent auditor
of significant financial reporting issues and judgments made in connection
with the preparation of the financial statements;

discuss with the independent auditor the matters required to be discussed
by Statement on Auditing Standards No. 61, as amended, relating to the
conduct of an audit; and

receive and review periodic reports from the independent auditor
regarding the auditor’s independence and discuss such reports with the
auditor.

Monitor Management’s Handling of Internal Controls and Enterprise Risk
Management.  The Committee has the following duties and responsibilities
with respect to its monitoring of the integrity of the financial reporting process
and internal controls of the Corporation and the investment funds managed on
behalf of the UT Board:

review with the independent auditor any problems or difficulties the
auditor may have encountered during its audit and any management letter
provided by the auditor and the Corporation’s response to that letter, such
review to include:

. any restrictions on the scope of activities or access to required
information; and

. any changes required in the planned scope of the audit;

obtain reports from management, the independent auditor and UT System
internal auditor with respect to the Corporation’s policies and procedures
regarding compliance with applicable laws and regulations;

meet at least annually with the independent auditor and the senior
personnel  of the UT System Audit Office without management
participation;

meet periodically with management to review the major financial risk
exposures and the steps management has taken to monitor and control
such exposures;



. review significant changes to internal controls and accounting principles
and practices as suggested by the independent auditor, internal auditors or
management;

. review the significant reports to management prepared by the U T System
Audit Office and management’s responses;

. review with the Corporation’s legal counsel or other appropriate persons
legal matters that may have a material impact on the financial statements,
the Corporation’s compliance policies and any material reports or
inquirtes received from regulators or governmental agencics;

. evaluate the overall effectiveness of the corporation’s enterprise risk
management framework;

. evaluate whether management is setting the appropriate tone at the top by
communicating the importance of enterprise risk management; and

. inquire of management, UT System’s internal auditor, and the independent
external auditor about significant enterprise risks or exposures to the
Corporation and how these are being managed.

Manage the Relationship with the External Auditors. The external auditors
for the Permanent University Fund are selected by the UT Board. These auditors
have a dual reporting responsibility, reporting to both the Audit, Compliance, and
Management Review Committee of the UT Board and to the Committee. The
external auditors for the Corporation are selected by, and report to, the Board. By
agreement between the UT Board and the Board, the external auditors for the
other investment funds managed by the Corporation on behalf of the UT Board
will be selected by the UT Board and will have a dual reporting responsibility,
reporting to both the Audit, Compliance, and Management Review Committee of
the UT Board and to the Committee. The Committee may approve additional
audit and non-audit services provided by the external auditor related to the
Corporation and investment funds as long as the work does not impair auditor
independence.

The Committee has the following specific duties and responsibilities with respect
to the Corporation’s independent auditors:

. recommend to the Board the appointment of the independent auditor,
which firm is ultimately accountable to the Committee and the Board.

. approve the fee arrangement of the independent auditor;



after interviewing members of the Corporation's staff evaluate together
with the Board the performance of the independent auditor and, if so
determined by the Committee, recommend that the Board replace the
independent auditor; and

if determined by the Comumittee to be necessary or advisable, recommend
that the Board take appropriate action to satisfy itself of the independence
of the auditor.

Auditor Independence

In connection with the selection of external auditors, the Committee shall
determine that:

the public accounting firm engaged to perform the annual audit does not
provide non-audit services contemporaneously with the audit;

the lead audit partner and reviewing partner rotate off of the audit every 5
years, unless the Comunittee adopts a resolution affirmatively determining
that such rotation is not required; and

the CEO, Controller, CFO, Chief Accounting Officer, or person in an
equivalent position shall not have been employed by the public accounting
firm during the 1 year period proceeding the audit.

Work with the Internal Audit Function

The Corporation utilizes the UT System Internal Audit Department to perform
internal audit functions hereunder with respect to the Corporation and investment
funds and report directly to the Committee. The Committee has the following
duties and responsibilities with respect to internal audit:

review the independence, qualifications, activities, resources and structure
of the internal audit function;

review significant findings and recommendations made by the internal
auditor and management’s response and proposed implementation plan;

review the proposed internal audit plan for the coming year to determinc
that it addresses key areas of risk and that there is appropriate coordination
with the external auditor:

review completed internal audits and the status of management’s
implementing related recommendations; and



. receive a progress report on the internal audit plan with explanations for
any deviations from the original plan.

Monitor Ethics Program

The Committee 1s responsible for overseeing codes of conduct/conflicts of interest
and a system of addressing complaints. The Committee has the following duties
and responsibilities in monitoring the ethics program:

. review the Code of Ethics policy of the Corporation annually and
recommend any proposed changes to the Board for approval;

. annually evaluate and review the Corporation’s compliance process;

. follow the UT System compliance guideline as outlined in the Action Plan
to Enhance Institutional Compliance; and

. review procedures for the receipt, retention and treatment of complaints
about accounting, internal accounting controls or audifing matters.

Oversee Regulatory Compliance

The Committee is responsible for overseeing the effectiveness of the system for
assuring compliance with laws and regulations and has the following duties and
responsibilities:

. review the effectiveness of the system for monitoring compliance with
laws and regulations and the results of management’s investigation and
follow-up of any fraudulent acts or non-compliance;

. obtain regular updates from management and the Corporation’s legal
counsel regarding compliance matters that may have a material impact on
the Corporation’s and investment funds® financial statements or
compliance policies;

. obtain regular updates from management regarding their consideration of
all regulatory compliance matters in connection with the preparation of the
financial staternents; and

. review the findings of any examinations by regulatory agencies.

Other Duties. The Committee has the following additional duties and
responsibilities:



. make regular reports (at least twice each calendar year) to the Board
regarding the Committee’s activities and such other reports as may be
requested by the Board;

. review and reassess the adequacy of this Audit Charter annually and
recommend any proposed changes to the Board for approval;

. perform such additional special functions, duties or responsibilities as may
from time to time be designated by the Board;

. direct the scope of the Corporation’s voluntary compliance with relevant
provisions of the Sarbanes — Oxley Act of 2002, monitor and review the
implementation of the relevant provisions; and

. evaluate the Committee’s own performance, both of individual members
and collectively, on a regular basis.

Powers and Limitations

The Committee shall have the authority to retain special legal, accounting or other
consultants to advise the Committee. The Committee may request any officer or
employee of the Corporation or the Corporation’s outside legal counsel or the
U T System Audit Office to attend any meeting of the Committee or to meet with
any members of, or consultants to, the Commitiee.

Approved by the Board of Directors on May 19, 2005.
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Agenda Item
UTIMCO Board of Directors Meeting
January 17, 2006

Report on Policy Committee Meeting

Boldt

Rowling

Action required by UTIMCO Board; action required by Board of Regents

The Policy Committee will meet January 16, 2006. This will be the inaugural
meeting of the Policy Committee. The Policy Committee will review requested
amendments to the Investment Management Services Agreement (IMSA") and
Intermediate Term Fund Investment Policy Statement. In addition, the Policy
Committee will have reviewed a list of all policies approved by the Board of
Regents, UTIMCO Board, and internal guidelines and policies (not approved by
the UTIMCO Board) to determine which internal guidelines and policies should be
UTIMCO Board policies.

UT System’s Office of General Counsel and Baker Botts (outside legal counsel for
UT System related to UTIMCO) proposed amendments to the IMSA. These
amendments were reviewed by Vinson & Elkins and UTIMCO staff. Many
differences related to proposed amendments in the IMSA have been resolved.
However, there were a few unresolved differences. The proposed amended
IMSA attached was prepared by Baker Botts using the latest effective document
approved by the Board of Regents and UTIMCO. There is agreement on the
additions that are underiined in black and the deletions that are stricken in black.
Those items that have been added or stricken in red ink are amendments that
UTIMCO staff has proposed and with which UT System staff is not in agreement.
The Policy Committee will have reviewed the amendments and wiil recommend to
the Board the final version during its meeting.

Following is a summary of the unresolved differences:

« Section 1. (h), page 4. Definition of Investment Policies has been
streamlined.

« Section 2 (b), page 6. Policy matters has been adjusted to clarify that
UTIMCO looks to the Chancellor for relations with the media and legal
issues that implicate U.T. Board policies other than Investment
Policies and that the UTIMCO Board and President are responsible
for implementing the Investment Policies of the U.T. Board.



Recommendation:

Reference:

Agenda ltem
UTIMCO Board of Directors Meeting
January 17, 2006

» Section 3. {a), page 7. Removed the separate naming of Investment
Policies that UTIMCO shall review since the definition in Section 1. (h)
states that Investment Policies are all investment policies of the U.T.
Board.

« Section 3. (b), page 7. Deleted the paragraphs that contain language
that UTIMCO staff believes is more appropriate for the Investment
Policy Statements. Language is currently in the ITF Investment Policy
and staff will recommend to the Policy Committee the inclusion of
such language in all Investment Policy Statements.

» Section 3. (f}, page 9. Added language to identify that UTIMCO will
follow U.T. System compliance policies and procedures that are
adopted or approved by the U.T. Board.

« Section 3. {g), page 9. Added language to be consistent with the last
two sentences of Section 3. (g).

» Section 10. (b}, page 15. Changes were made to the representations
and warranties of UTIMCO in order for both parties to have similar
representations and warranties.

In addition, the Policy Committee will review the amendment to the Intermediate
Term Fund Investment Policy Statement. This policy is included in TAB 5, and will
be discussed during the Update of the ITF. The Policy Committee will also
present to the Board its recommendation of the intemal guidelines and policies
that should be UTIMCO Board Paolicies.

The Policy Committee will recommend to the Board action related to the IMSA and
ITF Investment Policy Statement.

IMSA,; ITF Investment Policy Statement; Report on Policies



RESOLUTION RELATED TO INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT SERVICES
AGREEMENT

RESOLVED, that amendments to the Investment Management Services
Agreement as presented be, and are hereby, approved, subject to
approval by the U. T. System Board of Regents.




12/21/2005

MASTER INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH UTIMCQ

This Investment Management Services Agreement (this “Agreement”) by and between the Board
of Regents (the “U. T. Board”) of The University of Texas System (the “U. T. System”) and The
University of Texas Investment Management Company (“UTIMCO”), a Texas nonprofit
corporation, is effective Septerber—1—2005February __, 2006 (the “Effective Date”), and
supersedes all earlier agreements by and between the U. T. Board and UTIMCO regarding the
subject matter hereof.

RECITALS

WHEREAS, the U. T. Board, pursuant to the Constitution and statutes of the State of Texas, is
responsible for the investment of the Permanent University Fund, the local and institutional
tundsassets of the U. T. System and the fundsassets of various trusts and foundations for which
it serves as trustee, all of which fundsassets are under the control and management of the U. T.
Board;

WHEREAS, Section 66.08, Texas Education Code, as amended, authorizes the U. T. Board,
subject to certain conditions, to enter into a contract with a nonprofit corporation for the
corporation to invest fundsassets under the control and management of the U. T. Board, as
designated by the U. T. Board;

WHEREAS, UTIMCO has been organized under the laws of the State of Texas, including the
Texas Non-Profit Corporation Act, Tex. Rev. Civ. Stat. Ann. art. 1396-1.01 et seq., for the
express purpose of investing fardsassets under the control and management of the U. T. Board,
as designated by the U. T. Board, in accordance with the laws of the State of Texas;

WHEREAS, the U. T. Board desires to continue an Agreement with UTIMCO for UTIMCO to
invest certain designated furdsassets under the control and management of the U. T. Board;

WHEREAS, UTIMCO desires to enter into this Agreement with the U. T. Board and to invest
certain designated fundsassets under the control and management of the U. T. Board; and

WHEREAS, all conditions precedent to the execution and delivery of this Agreement have been
fully satisfied and fulfilled, including, without limitations, the conditions established by Section
66.08, Texas Education Code, as amended.

NOW THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the premises and the mutual promises contained

herein and other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are
hereby acknowledged, the parties hereto agree as follows:



Section 1. Definitions.

AGREEMENT

te)}Affiliate shall mean an entity directly or indirectly controlling, controlled by, or under
common control with UTIMCO, including an entity with whom UTIMCO has an express
or implied agreement regarding the direct or indirect purchase of investments by each
from the other.

td)-Cash Reserves shall mean cash on hand plus investments, plus prepaid expenses, less
accounts payable, less other liabilities.

te}-Claims shall mean all claims, lawsuits, causes of action and other legal actions and
proceedings of whatever nature brought against (whether by way of direct action, counter
claim, cross action, or impleader) any Indemnified Party and all requests or demands for
indemnification made by any third party upon any Indemnified Party, even if groundless,
false or fraudulent, so long as the claim, lawsuit, cause of action, other legal action or
proceeding, request or demand is alleged or determined, directly or indirectly, to arise out
of, result from, relate to or be based upon, in whole or in part, the duties, activities, acts
or omissions of any person arising under this Agreement.

t6-Custodian or Custodigns shall mean a commercial bank, trust company or other entity
selected by UTIMCO to hold and safekeepsafe-keep physical securities representing
investment assets of any AeeeuntFund and to perform the other functions listed in
Section 5 hereof,

Delegated Assets shall mean those assets under the control and management of the
. T. B hat _are inve in the Funds managed Tl herennder
pursuant to the corresponding Investment Policies as such assets may be directed
ri tme T, Board or i signees from time to ti r to i
Inve ici otherwise. The Del Assets may include, without

limitation, the following fi r categories of :
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The Permanent University Fund established pursuant te Article VII,
Section 11 of the Texas Constitution (the “Permanent University

Fund” or “PUF”); provided that, for purposes of this Agreement and
the delegation of investiment management responsibilities hereunder
the PUF excludes the approximately 2.1 million acres of land located
in 19 Texas counties, primarily in West Texas, and constituting a part
of the PUF (the “PUF I.ands”), i T i

e U.
complete investient management authority and responsibility;
Any and all funds or assets under the control and management of the

. T. Board whner, administrator, contractual i nt
manager, or otherwise, including without limitation endowment funds
and operating assets, other than the Permanent University Fund, the

Per nt Health nd T, Board Tr C S
ollectively, “UJ, T. System Funds™):

The assets of charitable remainder trusts, foundations and other
separately invested assets for which the U. T. Board serves as trustee
on behalf of itself and other co-beneficiaries (“U. T. Board Trust
Accounts™);

The permanent assets for health-related institutions established
T

ursuant to Chapter exas E tion Code, for which th
Board is an administrator (collectively, the “Permane Ith Fu

gr G‘! :HF’! l .

em F T, Board Tru counts which, by election
of the U. T. Board or by requirement of st _indenture
native i en inv r d apart from other
T. nds an F (co ively, “Separ 1
Funds” or “SIFs’); and

=

E

||-
o

=

ertain _institutional assets of third-party non-profi ritable
ggl_]gg;!g dedicated to the support of the educational purposes of
em under control an f the U, T. Board
ct r wise designate Dele d A he U. T
d in Itation wi TIM collectivelv, “Found
ds”).

=

F hall me n separate inve ents or Is of sesm the Dele ated

gggg Ejgg_! in §cgedulg é hgrego ggg in ghe corrggggng_!lgg Inxgg;men; Pg!;g gg! ggch gf

which m € am by th T. Board from time to tim ided for herein

th)—Indemnified Parties shall mean UTIMCO and any of its officers, directors,
employees and agents.
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th)  —Investment Policies shall mean the written investment policies determined and

| approved by the U T. Board—FeHHﬁu—te—qu—Pefm&He*FU—%Fy—Fmad—Geﬁefa

i3] tk—Losses shall mean losses, costs, damages, expenses, judgments and liabilities of
whatever nature (including, but not limited to, attorneys”, accountants’ and other
professionals: fees, litigation and court costs and expenses, amounts paid in settlement,
amounts paid to discharge judgments and amounts payable by an Indemnified Party to
any other person under any arrangement providing for indemnification of that person)
directly or indirectly resulting from, arising out of or relating to one or more Claims.
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(1)) -Surpius Cash Reserves shall mean Cash Reserves on the last day of the fiscal year in
excess of twenty—ﬁvc percent (25%) of the upcommg fiscal year s pmwﬁe&epaaﬁﬂu

yeamgg g;ggg and capital budgets gggroxed bg the Q T. Board.
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Section 2. Delegation of Investment Authority; Retention of Policy Setting Authority.

(a)

(eneral

The U. T. Board retains ultimate fiduciary responsibility and authgrity for all
matters related to the investment of the Delegated Assets. Pursuant to that
r

nsibility and authorit U. T. Board hereby appoints UTIMCO as its
investment manager with complete authority to act for the Board in the investment of the
AeeountsFunds, subject, however, to such limitations and restrictions as are set forth in
the Investment Policies. UTIMCO shall furnish the U. T. Board with continuous
investment management services and shall invest and reinvest the assets of the
AecountsFunds in such ways and at such times as are consistent with the Investment
Policies and Section 4 hereof. UTIMCO shall be responsible for overall management of
the U. T. Board’s investment affairs as eevered-byset forth in this Agreement and shall
manage each AecountFund as a discretionary account.

Policy Matters

The U. T. Board, as ultimate fiduciary for the AceountsFunds, retains policy setting
authority. Unless otherwise provided in writing by the U. T. Board, UTIMCO shall look
to the Chancellor to prov1de prlmary over51ght and management concerning raatters-other

: , : relations with the media, legal

issues fsueh—as ie—diselos A+nlormatton—that implicate policies of the U. T.
Board other than the Investment Policies und. intergovernmental relations.- and-ether

=

> Except tor
the forgoing maiters, tlu,flihe UTIMCO !MQQ Board of I:l—"l"—IMGQDlzggj;Qm and the President
of UTIMCO shall be responsible for making all decisions necessary o mplementmu the

m#e%meﬂ{—pehey nvgg;&ent Po!!g;gg

Meetings and Agendas

The UTIMCO President shall consult with the Chairman and the Vice
Chairmen of the UTIMCO Board, including the Chancellor as Vice
Chairman for Policy, on the draft agenda for meetings of the UTIMCO
Board at least +wethree (23) weeks prior to each regular UTIMCO Board

[ie=+

meeting.

ii. h ici in_an annual joint meetin
UTIMCO Board of Directors and the U. T. Bg_a d_as referenced in
A 7 of the UTIM
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Section 3. Description of Investment Management Services.

During the term of this Agreement, UTIMCO shall provide the following services in conjunction
with the investment of the AecountsFunds:

(a)

(b)

Investment Policies:

UTIMCO shall review current investment—policiesInvestment Policies for each
W&%&%ﬁm

Dertvatives: at least annually by June 1 of each year. Such review shall include
distribution (spending) guidelines, long-term investment return expectations and expected
risk levels, asset allocation targets and ranges for each eligible asset class, expected
returns for each asset class and fund, and-designated performance benchmarks for each
asset class_and such other matters as the U. T. Board or its staff designees may
request. After UTIMCO completes its assessment it shall forward any recommended
changes to U. T. System staff wi

the-H—F—Boardforreviewand-approval—for review an ri action followin

the established schedule for the submission of proposed agen ics for meetings

of the U. T. Board.

Investment Management:
UTIMCO shall oversee the investment management process_pursuant to the Investment

Policies. Such oversight shall include without limitation the development of an
investment outlook based on global economic and capital market forecasts, the
rebalancing of allocations to each asset class within ranges in response to changes in the
investment outlook, and the selection of a combination of portfolio managers to construct
portfolios designed to generate the expected returns of each asset class.
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(©)

(d)

(e)

()

Investment Performance:

UTIMCO shall monitor and report on investment performance for the PUEPHEanrd-H-

FBourd-aceounts—Suche f the Funds. With res unds other than
SIFs, such responsibilities shall include the calculatlon and evaluatlon of performance
ofinvestment returns for each asset elassesclass and individual pertfelies;Fund

portfolio against establishedapproved benchmarks over various periods of time, and the

periodic review of performance benchmarks;, With respect to all Funds, such
rggggngjgilities shall also mclude the reportmg of investment performance of Separateby
> ¢ s—assuch specific Funds as may be

requested by the U. T Board and the reportmg to regulatory agencies and others
regarding investments under management to the extent required by applicable law.

Operations:

UTIMCO shall execute such operational responsibilities as the purchase and sale of
investments, the settlement of all trades (to the extent such trades are not settled by the
Custodian or brokers), the accounting for all transactions at the portfolio level in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, the preparation and delivery of
periodic financial reports on all fundsFunds, and the maintenance of complete books and
records (internally or through contract with the designated Custodian for the assets under
management) reflecting transactions and balances of the AecountsFunds.

Maintenance of and Access to Books and Records:

UTIMCO shall maintain the books and records for each AeeeuntFund on the basis of a
fiscal year ending August 31st (or such other fiscal year as the U. T. Board may establish
from time to time), and shall keep full separate records of all transactions with respect to
each Aeecovnt-Fund.

The books and records of the AecountsFunds and any and all records concerning
UTIMCO and UTIMCO"’s operations shall be available during normal business hours for
inspection by ar-authorized representativerepresentatives of U. T. System. UTIMCO
shall provide full audit access to any and all information concerning the operations of
UTIMCO, including information necessary to review UTIMCO expenditures for
compliance and reasonableness with the approved budget, to auditors representing the U.
T. Board and/or the State Auditor.

Reporting:

In connection with the annual audited financial statements of UTIMCO, effective with
the August 31, 2004 financial statements, UTIM 1 vide all e-

related information, reports and certifications, and shall cause the chief executive

offlcer and the chlef ﬁnan(:lal ofﬁcer of UTIMCO shﬂ}lm pr0v1de gh certlﬁcatlons
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(g)

(h)

: : 5y A be specified he U. T, Board and
T. System compliance policies and procedures adopted or approved by the U.T.
Board. UTIMCO will follow the U. T. System compliance guidelines as outlined in the
Action Plan to Enhance Institutional Compliance, as it may be amended_from time to
time, including providing the U. T. Board or its designeedesignees with quarterly
compliance reports.

Disclosure of Information:

The U. T. Board is committed to a policy of full and fair disclosure to the public. As part
of that commitment with respect to private investments in the AccountsFunds, UTIMCO
shall disclose to the public with respect to such private investments all information
required to be disclosed pursuant to Section 552.0225 of the Texas Government Code
regarding “Right of Access to Investment Information” (“private investment
information”). UTIMCO shall make no private investment with an entity unless the U. T.
Board and UTIMCO have clear and unequivocal authority to disclose to the public the
private investment information, described immediately above, relating to such
investment.

Before UTIMCO declines to disclose any information it has collected, assembled or
maintained in its role as investment manager for the U. T. Board that is requested under
the Texas Public Information Act, the President of UTIMCO shall notify the U, T.
System Vice Chancellor and General Counsel and solicit his or her input to the process.
UTIMCO shall disclose the information unless_(i) it is confidential and excepted as
provided in Section 552.143 of the Texas Government Code regarding “Confidentiality of
Certain Investment Information,” or_(ii) as to any information not listed in Section
552.0225(b) of the Texas Government Code, il is confidential pursuant to the terms of
a contract between UTIMCO or the U.T. Board and a third party, or (iii) as to any
other information, the Vice Chancellor and General Counsel, after consultation with the
Chancellor, approves a Public Information Act request to the Attorney General of Texas.
In addition, the U. T. Board reserves the right and authority, in its sole discretion, to
disclose, or direct the disclosure of, any information at any time, to the extent such
disclosure would not result in a violation of applicable law or breach or result in a default
under any agreement binding upon UTIMCO or the U. T. Board.

In additi lie ofth f T ill com ith t

Other Services:

UTIMCO shall perform other investment management services-includinebut-nottimitedto+H-,
including wi li tion:

i) attending meetings of the U. T. Board and making such reports as the U. T. Board
may request from time to t1me—2—)—dﬁeﬂd+ﬂoﬂm—dfm&a4—}emt—k4eekmn—beweeﬂ—the
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iii

E

TI lded to invest;

i meetin f governing bodies of companies in whi sets o
Funds have been invested pursuant to this Agreem

voting of securities (or proxies with respect thereto) held as investments of
the Funds in_accordance with the Investment Policies and the UTIMCO

Proxy Voting Policy and an her rel ritten policies or rules of the
T. Board;

rovidin . stem institutions with annual endowment reports
reflecting, among other things, cggnges in the investment vglgg of such

providing charitable trust administration services such as portfolio management,
annual tax return preparation, annual trust reporting to donors and remittance of
quarterly distributions; providing annual reporting of investment transactions and
ba]ances and dlsmbutlng Fuﬁdsg_sg_tg to authorlzed beneﬁmancs—eﬂ—teaﬂdaﬁeaq

ing distributions directly or thr odian to U. T. te
itutio er nam iaries from the Funds:

supporting and maintaining on-line information systems for endowment

funds;

providing training and education_to members of the UTIMCO Board of

Directors as may be determined in consultation with U. T. System staff to
ur 1l duti i f_directors unde -
ration h legal an iduciar
responsibilitie f th irectors, includi curren ati
ining rea ensation, are outline iscussed fully: and
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x) any other services necessary to provide investment management of the
Funds.

Section 4. Investment Manager as Fiduciary;+Training-and Eduecation.

UTIMCO acknowledges that it sit-be-aetinsacts as a fiduciary with-respeetto-managingin its
management of the investments of the Aceeunts—subjectFunds pursuant to the Investment
Policies and applicable law. The U. T. Board recognizes that all individual investment
transactions involve a variety of significant potential risks, including, without limitation, market
risk, liquidity risk, credit risk, cash flow risk, operational risk and counterparty risk, although
taken as a whole these transactions are also expected to manage risk. The U. T. Board agrees
that (i) UTIMCO will not be liable for any losses incurred in the AceountsFunds as a result of
investments made pursuant to the Investment Policies_and applicable law, and (ii) UTIMCO
will not be liable for actions of co-fiduciaries. The U. T. Board also acknowledges that
UTIMCQ shall not be liable for, and, to the fullest extent authorized by the Constitution and laws
of the State of Texas, agrees to hold UTIMCO harmless from the consequences of, any action
taken or omitted to be taken by the U. T. System or any of its employees or agents prior to March
1, 1996.

Section S, Custody of Assets.

UTIMCO shall sel ne o re Cu ians, each of which shall be appro e . T.
Boar hich shall nter into or rove each agreement with todian(s

UTIMCO shall use e&%mw for safekeeping, settlement of security

purchases, sales, collection of income and other duties, as_may be more fully described in the

Ei(-l-‘uﬂﬂﬂ-f:{}%eéj‘ releva nt agreementgl between UﬂM—G@—&F}d—qu—Guﬁ{eelma—whqeh—ageefne%

ian(s Board or TIM nt of th T. Board
In addition, UTIMCO may from time to time use a brokerage firm to settle security sales on
behalf of the U. T. Board and may invest in a regulated mutval fund, externally managed
commingled funds, or other investments in which assets are held outside of the bank custody
relationship. Any physical certificates not held in safekeeping with a Custodian shall be held in
safekeeping at a local bank as designated by UTIMCO.

Section 6. Use of Unaffiliated Investment Managers,

UTIMCO shall be entitled to use unaffiliated investment advisors to invest all or part of the

AecountsFunds and to perform other duties, subject to any restrictions in the relevant

Investment Policies.

Section 7. Investment Management Fees; Direct Expenses.
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For services performed hereunder, UTIMCO shall be compensated in the amounts and in the
manner set forth below:

(a) Annual Budget and Management Fee:

L Budget Approval Policy

UTIMCO shall submit to the U. T. Board its proposed annual budget for the
following fiscal year (an “*‘Annual Budget™) within the time frame specified by
the U. T. Board for other annual budget submissions. The Annual Budget shall
include all estimated expenses associated with the management of the Aeceounts-
Funds, The Annual Budget shall also include an annual UTIMCO management
fee (an ““Annual UTIMCO Management Fee™) which shall include all operating
expenses associated with the general management of the AeecountsFunds,
including, without limitation, reasonable salaries, benefits and performance
compensation of portfolio management and support personnel, expenses for
consulting services, office space lease expenses, office furniture and equipment
expenses, professional, legal, payroll, and other general services expenses, travel,
insurance, capital expenditures, and other miscellaneous expenses incurred by
UTIMCO in connection with the performance of its obligations hereunder._In

ition to jts Annu t, UTI hall annuall mit its capital

expenditures budget approved by the UTIM( [0 Board of Directors to_the U,
T, Board for approval.

ii. Allocation Formula

At the same time that UTIMCO submits its Annual Budget, it shall also submit to
the U. T. Board an allocation formula for charging the Annual Budget to the
#eeounts—Funds. Items proposed in the Annual Budget and the allocation
formula may be approved, disapproved, or approved with modification by the U.
T. Board. Any such Budget item or formula allocation that is disapproved or
approved with modification may be promptly reviewed and revised by UTIMCO
and resubmitted to the U. T. Board for additional consideration.

il ing of Funds for Man t Fee

On or before the first day of each fiscal quarter, UTIMCO shall be entitled to
charge each Aeceountund with its allocable share (determined in accordance with
the allocation formula then in effect) of one-fourth of the amount of the Annual
UTIMCO Management Fee to pay UTIMCO?s operating expenses for the
succeeding fiscal quarter. UTIMCO may, with the approval of the U. T. Board,
revise the Annual UTIMCO Management Fee and allocation formula at any time
during a fiscal year. Any statements for partial quarters at the beginning or end of
this Agreement shall be prorated to reflect the actual time services were rendered
during such partial quarters.

iv. Payment of Third Party Vendors
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(b)

UTIMCO is hereby authorized to pay from each AecowntFund direct expenses
incurred for portfolio management, eustodianCustodian, auditing, and other
services which are performed by external vendors specifically for each Account:
Fund.

Directors¥ees:Cash Reserves:

Within 90 after the end of each 1 vear, UTIM will distribute back to the
Funds which generated the surplus that portion of the Surplus Cash_Reserves as

e directed by the T. Board, in i le discretion, from tim time. Such
istributi to unds sh in the same proportion that the Funds
ntri d to th Serve,

TIM Management Service on ide Boar

Members of UTIMCO management, with the approval of the UTIMCO Board, may serve
as directors of companies in which UTIMCO has directly invested AccountFund assets.
In such event, any and all compensation paid to UTIMCO management for their services
as directors shall be endorsed over to UTIMCO and considered a part of UTIMCO’s fee
income and reflected in the Budget. Furthermore, UTIMCO Board approval of UTIMCO
management’s services as directors of investee companies shall be conditioned upon the
extension of UTIMCQO’s Directors and Officers Insurance Policy coverage to UTIMCO
management’s services as directors of investee companies.

{e)}-Fees for Services Rendered:

Members of UTIMCO management may perform services for which UTIMCO receives a
fee (“Service Fees™”) from investment promoters or investee companies in consideration
of the UTIMCO staff’s private investment activities and/or investment origination
activities. Such Service Fees shall be considered additional fee income to UTIMCO.
UTIMCO may also receive commitment fees, standby fees and other similar fees
(“Capital Fees”) accruing or inuring to the capital invested on behalf of the
AeeovtsFunds managed by UTIMCO. Such Capital Fees shall be credited to the
AeeountsFunds from which such investments are funded.

¢td>-Miscellaneous Fees:

UTIMCO management may perform specialized services for aceeuntsassets that are
separately invested for which UTIMCO receives a fee from the aceevnt—Fund. These
fees primarily relate to maintenance of computer programs for the separately-invested
accounts—SIE’s, Such Miscellaneous Fees shall be considered additional fee income to

UTIMCO and reflected in the Budget.
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Section 8. Brokerage Commissions.

The U. T. Board acknowledges and agrees that the investment management fees provided for in
Section 7 are in addition to any compensation that may be due to a broker or dealer in effecting
and executing transactions on behalf of UTIMCO. UTIMCO is hereby authorized and
empowered, with full discretion, to issue instructions in accordance with the Investment Policies
to such unaffiliated brokerage firms as may be selected by UTIMCO for the execution of orders
for the purchase, sale, exchange and general investment of the AeceuntsFunds; provided that
UTIMCO shall not select a brokerage firm that is an Affiliate of UTIMCO_or any of its officers,
directors or employees. All orders for AecountFund transactions shall be placed in such
markets and through such brokers as UTIMCO determines will offer the most favorable price,
execution and commission cost of each order. The U. T. Board acknowledges and agrees that
UTIMCO_may, from time to time-and in accordance with applicable law_and UTIMCQ’s Soft
Dollar Policy and Procedures -may pay commissions to brokers that are higher than those that
might be obtainable elsewhere in order to obtain from such brokers research and other services
expected to enhance the long-term value of the Aceounts—Funds.

Section 9. Valuation of AecouniFund Assets.

The valuation of the-aeccounteach Fund shall be determined in accordance with the Investment
Policies approved by the U. T. Board for the-account—such Fund.

Section 10. Representations and Warranties of Parties.

(a) Lhe U. T. Board represents and warrants that:

i. B——The execution, delivery and performance by the U. T. Board of this
Agreement have becn duly authorlzed—bfyuau—neeeﬂa&y—aemﬂ—&nd—de—ne{
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Agreement constitutes a valid and binding agreement of the U. T. Board.

ii

E——There is no action, suit or proceeding pending or, to the knowledge
of the U. T. Board, threatened against or affecting the U. T. Board or the
U. T. System, or relating to this Agreement, in any court or before or by
any governmental department, agency or instrumentality which, if
adversely determined, would materially affect the ability or authority of
the U. T. Board to enter into; and perform its obligations under; this
Agreement, or which in any manner questions the validity or
enforceability of this Agreement.

{A) +H the Articles of Incorporation and Bylaws of
UTIMCO;

B) e the Investment Policies;

) {33——the Audit and Ethics committeeCommittee
of UTIMCQ; and

(D) t4——the Code of Ethics of UTIMCO.

B——The execution, delivery and performance by UTIMCO of this
Agreement have been duly authorized_and this Agreemnt LOﬂhlllLI[e\ a
valid dnd binding dglecmcm of UTIMCO : SNy i
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ii. E- There is no action, suit or proceeding pending or, to the
knowledge of UTIMCO, threatened against or affecting UTIMCO, or
relating to this Agreement in any court or before or by any governmental
department, agency or instrumentality which, if adversely determined,
would materially affect the ability or anthority of UTIMCO to enter into,
and to perform its obligations under, this Agreement, or which in any
manner questions the validity or enforceability of this Agreement.

(c) Inv ent Company Act an ecurities Act:
T ies to thi reemen nowledge and agr t UTIM is not
ntly require n I not engage in any activities that would ire it to
register as an “investment company” under Title 15 United States Code Section 80a-
he Inv t Co Act of 194 and T i t. Ann
1-1 et seq. (T ecuriti t).

Section 11. Compliance with Bylaws, Policies, Regulations and Financial Disclosure
Requirements.

In the performance of this Agreement, UTIMCOZs 5 shall

abide by, and cause its directors, officers, and emglgxg__eg to ggggg L_zgi the followmg policies:

a) t——UTIMCO Code of Ethics as approved by the U. T. Board;

b) b}——UTIMCO Bylaws as approved by the U. T. Board;

c) e)—-—-All UTIMCO policies;

d) eh——Applicable portions of the U. T. Board’s Regents’ Rules and Regulations-; and
e) AIU.T.B -approved Investmen icies, resolutions, an icable I

Financial advisors and service providers as defined in Texas Government Code Section 2263.002
shall comply with the disclosure requirements contained in Texas Government Code Section

2—263—995— 263.005, g ggg@u:m to any obligations regarding disclosure of private

inves inform. nd th as con ection 3 is Agreemen

w
rnmen e jons 2263.002 2263.005 as refer in i
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le law, includi without limitati n nt regarding non-disclosure of

|
confidential information or similar subject matter that would purport to limit the ability of

TIM the U, T. Board to comply with any provision of Texas Public Information
Act or other law regarding public disclosure.

TIM furth coven nd agr that it will not enter into anv contrac
i ifving or holdin rmless any thir r r r extent than the scope of the
indemnification of the Indemnified Parties hy the U, T. Board without the prior consent
a roval of ice Chancellor an neral Counsel of the U, T em

Section 13.  Seetien+2-UTIMCO’s Open Meeting Policy.

Except as otherwise provided in Section 66.08, Texas Education Code, UTIMCO shall comply
with all applicable provisions of the Texas Open Meetings Act, Chapter 551 of the Texas
Government Code.

Section 14.  Seetion+3-Prohibition Against Service to Other Clients.

In accordance with Section 66.08, Texas Education Code, UTIMCO shall not engage in any
business other than managing the AeeountsFunds under this Agreement.

Section 15. Termination.

The U. T. Board may terminate this Agreement at any time by written notice to UTIMCO,
effective immediately upon receipt of such notice by UTIMCO, subject to reasonable allowance
for settlement of pending trades. UTIMCQ may terminate this Agreement upon ninety (90)
days-? written notice to the U. T. Board. There shall be no penalty for termination; however,
UTIMCO shall be entitled to all management fees, compensation, and benefits earned prior to

the effective date of termination, subject to UTIMCO’s Articles of Incorporation and Bylaws
applicabl .
Section 16. Amendments.

No amendment hereto shall be effective unless executed by duly authorized representatives of
each party in the same manner as this Agreement.

Section 17. Notices.
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All notices or communications hereunder shall be in writing and shall not be effective until hand

delivered-and-receipted-to-the-otherpurtys-ef, sent by overnight delivery, or sent by United States
Certified or Registered Mail, postage prepald to the ddélesﬁeégthe r party—Fhe_at the following

are-the-destenated-addresses fors \ which may eaty-be changed
by eemmunieationnotice sent in the manner requ1red by this paragraph:

Te U. T. Board:

Board of Regents of The University of Texas System
Attn: Counsel and Secretary

201 West Seventh Street, Suite 820

Austin, Texas 78701

Tel. (512) 499-4402

Fax. (512) 499-4425

To UTIMCO:

The University of Texas Investment Management Company
Attn: President and CEO

221 West Sixth St., Suite 1700

Austin, Texas 78701

Tel. (512) 225-1600

Fax. (512) 225-1660

Section 18. Non-Assignability.

No-Assienment This Agr nt is personal to the and n signment of this

Agreement by UTIMCO, whether by contract, merger, consgllggggn! or _operation of law,
shall be made M&heHJ—hdJ«ng—eb’raiftedthgr than with the prior written consent of the U. T.

Board in compliance with applicabl
law.

Section 19. No Waiver of Breach.

A waiver of a breach of any provision of this Agreement shall not constitute a waiver of any
subsequent breach of that provision or a breach of any provision hereof. Failure of either party
to enforce at any time or from time to time any provision of this Agreement shall not be
construed as a waiver thereof.

Section 20. Indemnification.

(a) Agreements to Indemnify:

To the fullest extent authorized by the Constitution and laws of the State of Texas, the U.
T. Board shall indemnify and hold harmless each of the Indemnified Parties against any
and all Losses, including Losses resulting from the negligence of the Indemnified Party
claiming indemnification; provided, however, the U. T. Board shall not be obligated to
indemnify an Indemnified Party against Losses to the extent such Losses are caused by (i)
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(b)

(c)

(d)

an act or omission that involves intentional misconduct or a knowing violation of law by
the Indemnified Party claiming indemnification, (i1) a transaction from which the
Indemnified Party claiming indemnification received an improper benefit, (iii) an act or
omission for which the liability of the Indemnified Party claiming indemnification is
expressly provided by an applicable statute, or (iv) an act or omission constituting gross
negligence by the Indemnified Party claiming indemnification; provided further that
indemnification payments by the U. T. Board shall be paid from the same sources as the
Annual Fee pursuant to Section 7.

Reimbursement:

Each Indemnified Party shall reimburse the U. T. Board for payments made by the U. T.
Board pursuant to this Section to the extent of any proceeds, net of all expenses of
collection, actually received by it from any insurance with respect to any Loss. At the
request and expense of the U. T. Board, each Indemnified Party shall have the duty to
claim any such insurance proceeds and such Indemnified Party shall assign its rights to
such proceeds, to the extent of such required reimbursement, to the U. T. Board.

Notice:

In case any Claim shall be brought or, to the knowledge of any Indemnified Party,
threatened against any Indemnified Party in respect of which indemnity may be sought
against the U. T. Board, such Indemnified Party shall promptly notify the U. T. Board in
writing; provided, however, that any failure so to notify shall not relieve the U. T. Board
of its obligations under this Section.

Defense:

The U. T. Board shall have the right to assume the investigation and defense of all
Claims, including the employment of counsel and the payment of all expenses. Each
Indemnified Party shall have the right to employ separate counsel in any such action and
participate in the investigation and defense thereof, but the fees and expenses of such
counsel shall be paid by such Indemnified Party unless (i) the employment of such
counsel has been specifically authorized by the U. T. Board, in writing, (ii) the U. T.
Board has failed to assume the defense and to employ counsel_following due notice, or
(1i1) the named parties to any such action (including any impleaded parties) include both
an Indemnified Party and the U. T. Board, and such Indemnified Party shall have been
advised by counsel that there may be one or more legal defenses available to it which are
different from or additional to those available to the U. T. Board (in which case, if such
Indemnified Party notifies the U. T. Board in writing that it elects to employ separate
counsel at the U. T. Board”s expense, the U. T. Board shall not have the right to assume
the defense of the action on behalf of such Indemnified Party; provided, however, that the
U. T. Board shall not, in connection with any one action or separate but substantially
similar or related actions in the same jurisdiction arising out of the same general
allegation or circumstances, be liable for the reasonable fees and expenses of more than
one separate firm of attorneys for the Indemnified Parties, which firm shall be designated
in writing by such Indemnified Parties).

ALS01:143264 8ATIS01:303364.8Page 19 of 2424



(e) Cooperation; Settlement:

Each Indemnified Party shall use reasonable efforts to cooperate with the U. T. Board in
the defense of any action or Claim. The U. T. Board shall not be liable for any settlement
of any action or Claim without its consent but, if any such action or Claim is settled with
the consent of the U. T. Board or there be final judgment for the plaintiff in any such
action or with respect to any such Claim, the U. T. Board shall indemnify and hold
harmless the Indemnified Parties from and against any Loss by reason of such settlement
or judgment as provided in Subsection (a) of this Section.

{f) Survival; Right to Enforce:

The provisions of this Section shall survive the termination of this Agreement, and the
obligations of the U. T. Board hereunder shalt apply to Losses or Claims whether asserted
prior to or after the termination of this Agreement. In the event of failure by the U. T.
Board to observe the covenants, conditions and agreements contained in this Section, any
Indemnified Party may take any action at law or in equity to collect amounts then due and
thereafter to become due, or to enforce performance and observance of any obligation,
agreement or covenant of the U. T. Board under this Section.

Section 21.  Claims By and Against Managed EundsAssets.

UTIMCO is authorized and empowered to seek, demand, collect, recover, and receive any and
all sums of money, debts, dues, rights, property, effects, or demands due, payable, or belonging,
or that may become due, payable, or belonging to-the Pt o the U. T. Board or any Fund from
any person or persons as a result of any investment transaction and to execute any and ali
necessary or proper receipts, releases, and discharges therefor, and any other instruments as may
be necessary or appropriate from time to time relating to the handling, management, control, and
disposition of any investment.

The authority granted in this Section does not include the authority to institute litigation on

behalf of the U. T. Board, any Fund, or any associated assels, or to settle contested claims or

litigation that may result in BFHMCO-receivingreceipt of less than full value for the claim or the
payment of damages or awards. The settlement of any contested claim or litigation for less than

full value requires the prior approval of the U. T. System Vice Chancellor and General Counsel
and appropriate U T. System officials, as set out in the Regents’ Rules and Regulations.

Section 22. Communications.

UTIMCO and_the U. T. System will assure that communications are clear and timely. UTIMCO
will provide notice of actions taken in meetings of the UTIMCO Board and committees to
members of the U. T. Board through the Office of the Board of Regents. U. T. will provide
notice of actions taken by the U. T. Board related to UTIMCO issues to members of the
UTIMCO Board of Directors through the President and CEO of UTIMCO.

Section 23.  Authority to Purchase, Exchange, and Sell Securities.
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UTIMCO may purchase, exchange, and sell, for and on behalf of the Permanent University Fund
or the U. T. Board, any and all securities of any description whatever and from any source,
including gifts and bequests, registered in the name of the PUF-er+he-U. T. Board, or in any
other form of registration of such securities held for the account of the PUE orthe-U. T. Board in
whatever manner, including all fiduciary capacities and including those registered in the names
of trusts or foundations managed and controlled by said U. T. Board. In addition, external
investment managers appointed by UTIMCO may purchase, sell, or exchange securities,
pursuant to written agreement with UTIMCO.

Section 24.  Authority to Assign and Transfer Securities.

UTIMCO may assign and transfer any and all securities of any description whatever and from
any source, including gifts and bequests, and execute any and all documents necessary to the
consummation of any sale, assignment, or transfer of any securities registered in the name of-the
Ptt-er the U. T. Board, or in any other form of registration of such securities held for the
account of the PtF-ethe-U. T. Board in whatever manner, including all fiduciary capacities and
including those registered in the names of trusts or foundations managed and controlled by said
U. T. Board. In addition, eustedianCustodian banks appointed by UTIMCO may assign and
transfer securities and execute any and all documents necessary to the consummation of any sale,
assignment, or transfer of any security owned by the U. T. Board.
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Section 25. No Third Party Beneficiaries.

TIM nd the U. T. Board each agree thai there ar hird party beneficiaries of this
Agreement.

Section 26.  Seetion25-Seetion-25-Governing Law.

This Agreement and all matters arising under or related to it shall be governed by the
Constitution and laws of the State of Texas. Venue for any action brought by any party hereto
concerning the subject matter of this Investment Management Services Agreement shall be in
Travis County, Texas.

BOARD OF REGENTS OF THE

UNIVERSITY OF TEXAS SYSTEM

Date: By
Chairman

THE UNIVERSITY OF TEXAS INVESTMENT

MANAGEMENT COMPANY

Date: By
Chairman
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hedule A

Funds
This Schedule A sefting forth the Fun naged by UTIMCO pursuant to this agreement
s fiduciary on_behalf of th T. Bo in which the Dele A ¢ to be investe

as directed by the U. T. Board pursuant to its Investment Policies, may be amended from
time to time by the U. T. Board in consultation with UTIMCO to add or remove Funds,
change fund allocations, reflect revisions to the corresponding Investment Policies, or

rwi Funds covered under this Agreement as Effective Daie of this

Agreement, and the corresponding Investment Policies, are as follows:

a.

=

fir>

=

s

(1=

=

Permanent iversity F : The PUF efined in Section I(e)(i ill be separatel
inyv i ordance with the PUF estment Policy Statement.

Permanent Health Fund; -- The PHF (as defined in Section 1(e)(iv)) will be separately

in i cordan ith the PHF estment Policy Stateme

eparately Invested Funds: The SIF defined in Section 1(e ill be separatel
i i cordance with the SI v nt Polic tem

Long Term Fund (“LTF”); The long-term pooled investment fund previously
established e U, T. Board for th lective investment of all endowment and other

long-term funds of institutions of the U. T, System, with investments made in

ccordance with TF Investment Poli ment

ent F “GEF”): The pooled fund for the collective invest

1 t of
long-term funds under the control and management of the U. T. Board. The PUF, PHF,
LTF or other long-term funds may invest in the GEF as authorized by the U, T. Board

f s . . : .

cordance with th F Inve nt Poli m
h termediate T Fund (“SITF): Selected U. T Funds fi
i e)(ii h dowment an her -term_fun including the
Permanent Uni ity I/ signat time to time by th T. Board or its [J.
T. m f i ill ively invested in th t int: i I

nent Poli

ment.

hort Ter nd (*“STEF**): Sel T m Fun i d from ti ime
J.Board orits U.T t ff designees wil invested in which

is the money market mutual fund or funds approved by UTIMCO from time to time as

an_investment for U. T, System Funds, in accordance with the STF Investment Policy
Statement.

Institutional Index Funds: The Institutional Index Funds currently comprise_the

following two index Funds:



(i) The U.S. Debt 1 Fun .S. debt index fund which replicat .ehman

Brothers Aggregate Bond Index fund and_is currently managed by BGI for
UTIMCO.

Equity In und B, an equity index fund which replicates

T
and is currently managed by Barelays Global Investors (BGI) for UTIMCO,

he Intermediate Term Fund (“ITF”);-- The ITF was e lished th T, Board as
a pooled fund for the collective mvestmgn; of ggergtmg assets and other mtgrmgg ate
dl hel T ion.

The ITF will be inves in acco with the ITF Investm tPllc



Policies, Procedures and Guidelines, and Governance Documents

Item

UT Board
Approved

UTIMCO
Board
Approved

Internal

Documents governing investment activity

Investment Policy Statements
e Permanent University Fund
* General Endowment Fund
» Permanent Health Fund
e Long Term Fund
« Short Intermediate Term Fund
¢ Separately Invested Accounts
« Short Term Fund
» Intermediatc Term Fund

Derivative Policy

Liquidity Policy

NN

Investment Performance Reporting Lrror
Correction Policy

<

Valuation Criteria for Alternative Assets

NIENIENEN

Distributed Stock Policy

Soft Dollar Policy

Proxy Policy

NENAN

Documents covering corporate
governance

Investment Management Services
Agreement

Articles of Incorporation

Bylaws

Audit and Ethics Committee Charter

Compensation Committee Charter

Policy Committee Charter

Risk Committee Charter

ANENANENENENEEN

AYANANENENENERN

Documents covering compliance and
other corporate activities

Delegation of Authority Policy

Code of Ethics Policy

NN

Policy for Security of Information Services




Open Meeting Policy Guidelines

Compliance Traming Policy

Travel Guidelines

Employee Handbook

Company Equipment Policy

Disaster Recovery Plan

NENENENENEN




Agenda ltem:
Developed By:
Presented By:
Type of ltem:

Description:

Discussion:

Recommendation:

Reference:

Agenda ltem
UTIMCO Board of Directors Meeting
January 17, 2006

Report on Risk Committee Meeting

Reed

Tate

Possible action required by UTIMCO Board

The Risk Committee meeting will meet on January 16, 2006. The Risk Committee
will pursue its agenda items at the beginning of the meeting. For the final thirty
minutes of the meeting, the Risk Committee will meet jointly with the Audit and
Ethics Committee to clarify each committee’s role with respect fo
enterprise/investment risk responsibilities. Based on the decision of the
committees, the Risk Committee may recommend an amendment to the Charter of
the Risk Committee.

The Risk Committee’s charter states that the purpose of the Risk Committee is to
provide oversight and monitor liquidity and investment risk management of the
Endowment Funds. The focus of this meeting in particular will be to discuss risk
management related items. The agenda includes a review of the most recent
UTIMCO Risk Dashboard. Additionally, UTIMCO staff will present materials
related to derivative compliance pursuant to the Derivative Policy.

The Risk Committee will recommend action related to the Charter of the Risk
Committee, if any.

UTIMCO Risk Dashboard; Charter of the Risk Committee



The University of Texas Investment Management Company

Charter of the Risk Committee

Background

The Board of Directors (the “Board™) of The University of Texas Investment
Management Company (the “Corporation”) established a Liquidity Committee on
November 20, 2003.  The name of the Liguidity Committee was changed to the
Risk Committee (the “Committee”) on May 19, 2005 to reflect the expanded
responsibilities of the Committee. This Charter, originally adopted by the Board
on April 8, 2004, and revised on September 29, 2004 and May 19, 2003, sets forth
the responsibilities of the Committee.

Purpose

The primary purpose of the Committee is to provide oversight and monitor 1)
liquidity of the Permanent University Fund (PUF) and the General Endowment
Fund (GEF) in accordance with the Corporation’s Liquidity Policy, originally
approved by the Board on June 26, 2003, and originally effective August 7, 2003;
and 2) investment risk management in the PUF and GEF.

Composition

The Committee shall be composed of at least three members of the Board
appointed from time to time by a majority vote of the Board at a meeting at which
a quorum is present. A member may be removed with or without cause at any
time by a majority vote of the Board. Only members of the Board are eligible to
serve on the Committec.

Meetings; Quorum; Etc.

The Corporation’s Bylaws state that any committee created by the Board,
including the Committee, shall (i) have a chairman designated by the Board, (ii)
fix its own rules or procedures, (iii) meet at such times and at such place or places
as may be provided by such rules or by resolution of the Committee or resolution
of the Board, and (iv) keep regular minutes of its meetings and cause such
minutes Lo be recorded in books kept for that purpose in the principal office of the
Corporation, and report the same to the Board at its next succeeding meeting. At
every meeting of the Committee, the presence of a majority of all the members
thereof shall constitute a quorum, and the affirmative vote of a majority of the
members present shall be necessary for the adoption by it of any action, unless
otherwise expressly provided in the Committee's rules or procedures or the
Bylaws of the Corporation or by the Board. The Board may designate one or
more Directors as alternate members of the Committee, who may replace any



absent or disqualified member of the Committee. I[n the absence or
disqualification of a member of the Committee, the member or members present
at any mecting of the Committee and not disquatified from voting, whether or not
constituting a quorum, may unanimously appoint the designated alternate Director
to act at the meeting in the place of the absent or disqualified member.

Duties and Responsibilities

Investment Risk Management: The Board has delegated the following duties and
responsibilities to the Committee related to the oversight and monitoring of
investment risk:
» The Committee will monitor actual risk levels in the PUF and GEF to
assess whether current risk levels are within the bounds established by the
Asset Allocation Policy adopted by the UT Board of Regents;
» The Committee will monitor trends and changes in actual risk levels in the
PUF and GEF and report any significant changes to the Board; and
» The Committee will monitor the investment risk models, tools, and
procedures used by Corporation staff for completeness and efficacy.

The Committee’s duties are in investment risk management only and are not
intended to duplicate the enterprise risk management duties of the Audit and
Ethics Committee.

Ligquidity:  The UTIMCO Board has delegated the following duties and
responsibilities to the Committee related to the oversight and meonitoring of
liquidity:

+ The Commiltee must review and recommend for consideration to the
Board any new investment that would cause the allocation for illiquid
investments in either the PUF or GEF to exceed the lower illiquidity limit
specified in the Liquidity Policy for the respective Funds’ total portfolio.

» The Committee must review and approve, before any such action or
actions are taken, any proposed changes in allocations among existing
investments that would cause the allocation for illiquid investments in
either the PUF or GEF to exceed the lower illiquidity limit specified in the
liquidity policy for the respective funds total portfolio.

» The Committee must review and approve, before any such action or
actions are taken, any proposed investment action or actions that would
increase the actual investment position in illiquid investments in either the
PUF or GEF by 10% or more of a Fund’s total asset value.

» In the event that market actions cause actual investment positions in
illiquid investrents to exceed the upper illiquidity limit established by the
Liquidity Policy or to move into the “trigger zone” defined as the



aliocation range betwcen the lower and upper illiquidity limits established
by the Liquidity Policy, the Committee must review and approve the Chicf
Investment Officer’s proposed remedy or strategy for complying with the
required allocation range for liquid and illiquid investments before any
such actions are taken.

» The Committec must approve the use of swaps, derivatives, or other third

party arrangements to alter the liquidity status of any investment classified
as illiquid.

Committee review of new investments in the illiquid trigger zone will
supplement, rather than replace, the procedures established by the Board for the
approval of new investments.
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Agenda ltem:
Developed By:
Presented By:
Type of ltem:

Description:

Recommendation:

Discussion:

Reference;

Agenda ltem
UTIMCO Board of Directors Meeting
January 17, 2006

Update on ITF
Boldt

Boldt
Information Item

This agenda item will update Board members on preparations for the launch of the
Intermediate Term Fund on February 1, 2006.

Staff recommends approval of changes to the Investment Policy Statement as
presented. Additional approval by the Board of Regents is required.

In the course of preparation for the ITF launch, several accounting issues have
emerged. These issues will be presented and discussed in order to keep the Board
informed. As a result of our increased understanding of operating funds accounting
procedures at the Components, we are recommending a change to the recently
approved |TF Investment Policy to provide for distributions from the Fund. We will
also present, at the meeting, alternative methods for setting the distributions. The
methods to be presented for consideration will be determined in an ITF advisory
commitiee meeting on January 10, 2006, and are, therefore, not included in this
material.

We will also present the external manager roster and initial asset allocation for the
ITF.

In addition, the Marketable Alternative Investment staff has been given the
opportunity by two managers, Perry and Farallon, to increase the Hedge Fund
Pool’s investment in their product. Staff is seeking approval to increase the ceiling
limits on these managers as prescribed in the attached Manager Exception List for
the ITF.

Intermediate Term Fund Investment Policy



Intermediate Term Fund
Asset Allocation

Weight Investment
US Equities 15.0% 450,000,000
Developed International 5.0% 150,000,000
Emerging 5.0% 150,000,000
Hedge Funds 25.0% 750,000,000
REITS 10.0% 300,000,000
Commodities 5.0% 150,000,000
TIPS 10.0% 300,000,000
Fixed income 25.0% 750,000,000
TOTAL PORTFOLIO 100.0% 3,0410,000,000

Intermediate Term Fund - Equity Breakdown

as of % of Fund Passive Enhanced Active Total
US Equities 2.5% 4.2% 8.3% 15.0%
Developed International 1.3% 1.0% 2.7% 5.0%
Emerging 2.3% 0.0% 2.7% 5.0%
as a % of Asset Class Passive Enhanced Active Total
US Equities 16.7% 27.8% 55.6% 100.0%
Developed International 26.7% 20.0% 53.3% 100.0%
Emerging 46.7% 0.0% 53.3% 100.0%
as a % of Asset Class Large Cap Mid Small Total
US Equities 55.6% 11.1% 33.3% 100.0%
Developed 86.7% 16.7% 16.7% 100.0%




Expected [TF Investment 3,000,000,000
US Equities
Passive / Enhanced / Weighting Overgll Projected Dollar
Active Allocation Amount
Equity Index Futures P 11.1% 1.7% 50,000,000
100 / OEF P 5.6% 0.8% 25,000,000
BGI Russell 3000 Aipha Tilts E 1.1% 1.7% 50,000,000
BGI Russell 2000 Alpha Tilts E 5.6% 0.8% 25,000,000
GSAM Flex E 1.1% 1.7% 50,000,000
BlackRock Small A 4.4% 0.7% 20,000,000
FL Small A 8.9% 1.3% 40,000,000
Westport A 8.9% 1.3% 40,000,000
FL Midcap A 5.6% 0.8% 25,000,000
Levin A 5.6% 0.8% 25,000,000
Relational A 56% 0.8% 25,000,000
ValueAct A 5.6% 0.8% 25,000,000
Blavin A 5.6% 0.8% 25,000,000
TCW A 5.6% 0.8% 25,000,000
US Equities 100.0% 15.0% 450,000,000
Developed Equities
Manager Passive / E.nhancedl Weighting 0vera.ll Projected Dollar
Active Allocation Amount
EAFE ETFs P 26.7% 1.3% 40,000,000
BGI EAFE Tilts E 10.0% 0.5% 15,000,000
GSAM International E 10.0% 0.5% 15,000,000
BlackRock Global ex US A 10.0% 0.5% 15,000,000
Globeflex A 10.0% 0.5% 15,000,000
Globeflex Microcap A 6.7% 0.3% 10,000,000
Dalton JMBO A 6.7% 0.3% 10,000,000
Cundill EAFE A 10.0% 0.5% 15,000,000
Lansdowne ELC A 10.0% 0.5% 15,000,000
Developed Equities 100.0% 5.0% 150,000,000




Emerging Equities

- Overall Projected Doliar
Manager Weighting Allocation lJlﬂ«mt:uunt
EM ETFs P 46.7% 2.3% 70,000,000
Lansdowne EM A 20.0% 1.0% 30,000,000
Templeton - High Alpha A 10.0% 0.5% 15,000,000
Templeton A 10.0% 0.5% 15,000,000
LSV A B.7% 0.3% 10,000,000
Dalton Taiwan A 6.7% 0.3% 10,000,000
Emerging Market Equities 100.0% 5.0% 150,000,000
Hedge Funds
o Overall Projected Dollar
Manager Weighting Allocation lAmcount
Directional 50.0% 12.5% 375,000,000
Absolute Return 50.0% 12.5% 375,000,000
Hedge Funds 100.0% 25.0% 750,000,000
REITs
N Overall Projected Dollar
Manager Weighting Allocation IAmount
Cohen & Steers A 66.7% 6.7% 200,000,000
Morgan Stanley A 33.3% 3.3% 100,000,000
REITs 100% 10.0% 300,000,000
[Commodities 100% 5% 150,000,000
TIPS
Weiahtin Overalt Projected Dollar
Manager ghiing Allocation Amount
FIMCO A 40.0% 4.0% 120,000,000
Reams A 40.0% 4.0% 120,000,000
Internal A 20.0% 2.0% 60,000,000
TIPS 100% 10.0% 300,000,000
Fixed Income
Weiahtin Overall Projected Dollar
Manager ghiing Allocation Amount
PIMCO A 40.0% 10.0% 300,000,000
Reams A 40.0% 10.0% 300,000,000
Internat A 20.0% 5.0% 150,000,000
Fixed Income 100% 25.0% 750,000,000




THE UNIVERSITY OF TEXAS SYSTEM
INTERMEDIATE TERM FUND
INVESTMENT POLICY STATEMENT

Purpose and Structure

The University of Texas System Intermediate Term Fund (ITF) was established by the
Board of Regents of The University of Texas System (Board of Regents) as a pooled
fund for the collective investment of operating funds and other intermediate and long-
term funds held by U. T. System institutions and U. T. System Administration.

ITF Organization

The ITF functions as a mutual fund in which each eligible account purchases and
redeems [TF units as provided herein. The ownership of ITF assets shall at all times be
vested in the Board of Regents. Such assets shall be deemed to be held by the Board of
Regents, as a fiduciary, regardless of the name in which the assets may be registered.

ITF Management

Article VIL, Section 11b of the Texas Constitution authorizes the Board of Regents,
subject to procedures and restrictions it establishes, to invest the Permanent University
Fund (the “PUF”) in any kind of investment and in amounts it considers appropriate,
provided that it adheres to the prudent investor standard. This standard provides that the
Board of Regents, in making investments, may acquire, exchange, sell, supervise,
manage, or retain, through procedures and subject to restrictions it establishes and in
amounis it considers appropriate, any kind of investment that prudent investors,
exercising reasonable care, skill. and caution, would acquire or retain in light of the
purposes, terms, distribution requirements, and other circumstances of the fund then
prevailing, taking into consideration the investment of all the assets of the fund rather
than a single investment. Pursuant to Section 51.0031(c) of the Texas Education Code.
the Board of Regents has elected the PUF prudent investor standard to govern its
management of the [TF.

Ultimate fiduciary responsibility for the ITF rests with the Board of Regents. Section
66.08, Texas Education Code, as amended, authorizes the Board of Regents, subject to
certain conditions, to enter into a contract with a nonprofit corporation to invest funds
under the control and management of the Board of Regents.

Pursuant to an Investment Management Services Agreement between the Board of
Regents and The University of Texas Investment Management Company (UTIMCO), the
[TF shall be managed by UTIMCO, which shall a) recommend investment policy for the
ITT, b) recommend specific asset allocation targets, ranges, and performance benchmarks
consistent with ITF objectives, and ¢) monitor ITF performance against ITF objectives.
UTIMCO shall invest the ITF assets in conformity with this Policy Statement. All
changes to this Policy Statement or the exhibits to this Policy Statement, including
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changes to assct allocation targets, ranges and performance benchmarks, are subject to
approval by the Board of Regents.

UTIMCO may select and terminate unaffiliated investment managers subject to the
Delegation of Authority Policy approved by the UTIMCO Board. Managers shall be
monitored for performance and adherence to investment disciplines.

ITF Administration

UTIMCO shall employ an administrative stafl’ to ensure that all transaction and
accounting records are complete and prepared on a timely basis. Internal controls shall be
emphasized so as to provide for responsible separation of duties and adequacy of an audit
trail. Custody of ITF assets shall comply with applicable law and be structured so as to
provide essential safekeeping and trading efficiency.

Funds Eligible to Purchase ITF Units

No account shall be eligible to purchase units of the ITF unless it is under the sole
control, with full discretion as to investments, by the Board of Regents. Any account
whose governing instrument contains provisions which conflict with this Policy
Statement, whether initially or as a result of amendments to either document, shall not be
eligible to purchase or hold units of the ITF.

ITE Investment Objectives

The ITF consists of intermediate and long-term funds held by the U. T. System Board of
Regents, as a fiduciary, for the benefit of U. T. System institutions, U. T. System
Administration, and other affiliated funds. ITF assets are pooled for efficient investment
purposes and managed by UTIMCO over the intermediate to longer term.

The primary investment objective of the ITF is to preserve the purchasing power of ITF
assets by earning a compound annualized return over rolling three-year periods, net of all
direct and allocated expenses, of at least inflation as measured by the Consumer Price
Index (CPI-U) plus 3%. The ITF’s success in meeting this objective depends upon its
ability to generate higher returns in periods of low inflation that will offset lower returns
generated in years when the capital markets under-perform the rate of inflation.

The secondary ITF objective is to generate a return, net of all direct and allocated
expenses, measured monthly by the independent custodian and reported at least quarterly,
in excess of the approved Policy Portfolio benchmark over rolling three-year periods. The
Policy Portfolio benchmark will be maintained by UTIMCO and will be comprised of a
blend of asset class indices reported by the independent custodian and weighted to reflect
[TF’s approved asset allocation policy targets as defined in Exhibit A.

Limiting factors are that prudent diversification within each approved asset class must be
maintained at all times; and a portfolio risk profile within the approved Policy Portfolio

11/16/2005 2



risk range, as defined in Exhibit A and measured at least monthly by UTIMCO’s risk
model, must be sustained at all times. Liquidity of the ITF will be governed by the
Liquidity Policy, overseen by the Risk Committee of the UTIMCO Board.

I'TF return, asset allocation, and risk targets are subject to adjustment from time to time
by the U. T. System Board of Regents.

Asset Allocation and Policy

Asset allocation is the primary determinant of the volatility of investment return and,
subject to the asset allocation ranges specified in Exhibit A, is the responsibility of
UTIMCO. The asset allocation is designed to accommodate the intermediate investment
horizon of the ITF assets with enhanced returns at moderate managed risk levels.
UTIMCO 1s responsible for measuring actual asset allocation at least monthly
(incorporating the impact of derivative positions covered under the Derivative Investment
Policy), and for reporting the actual portfolio asset allocation to the UTIMCO Board and
the Board of Regents at least quarterly. While specific asset allocation positions may be
changed within the ranges specified in Exhibit A based on the economic and investment
outlook from time to time, the range limits cannot be intentionally breached without prior
approval of the Board of Regents.

In the event that actual portfolio positions in asset categories move outside the ranges
indicated in Exhibit A due to market forces that shift relative valuations, UTIMCO staff
will immediately report this situation to the UTIMCO Board Chairman and take steps to
rebalance portfolio positions back within the policy ranges in an orderly manner as soon
as practicable. Extenuating circumstances that could cause immediate rebalancing to be
irrational and detrimental to the interest of the [TF asset values could warrant requesting
approval of the UTIMCO Board Chairman for remedial action.

ITE assets shall be allocated among the following broad asset classes based upon their
individual return/risk characteristics and relationships to other asset classes:

A. US. Equities ~ U.S. equities represent ownership in U.S. companies that are traded in
public markets. U.S. equities include common stocks, exchange traded funds, and
derivatives based on common stocks, including warrants, rights, options, and futures.
In addition, derivative applications that serve as a U.S. equity substitute will be
classified as traditional U.S. equity. Global mandates that include a majority of U.S.
equities will be included in U.S. equities. U.S. equities provide both current income
and capital gains.

B. Global ex U.S. Equities — Global ex U.S. equities represent ownership in global
companies that are traded in public markets. The global ex U.S. markets include
established (non-U.8S. developed) and emerging markets.

Global ex U.S. equities include common stocks, exchange traded funds, and
derivatives based on common stocks, including warrants, rights, options, and futures.
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In addition, derivative applications that serve as a Global ex U.S. equity substitute
will be classified as Global ex U.S. equities. Global mandates that include a majority
of Global ex U.S. equities will be included in Global ex U.S. equities. Global ex U.S.
equities provide both current income and capital gains.

Non-U.S. Developed Equity ~ Non-U.S. developed equities represent ownership
in companies domiciled in developed economies (countries) included in the MSCI
All — Country World Equity Index — excluding those classified as part of the
MSCI Emerging Markets Equity Index. These securities are typically constituents
of countries in Europe, the Americas (North/Latin/South) and the Far East with
high per-capita income, mature capital markets, and stable governments. The
benchmark for this asset category will be the MSCI EAFE Index, with net
dividends.

Emerging Markets Equity — Emerging markets equities represent ownership in
companies domiciled in emerging economies as defined by the current
composition of the MSCI Emerging Markets Equity Index. In addition, such
definition will also include those companies domiciled in economies that have yet
to reach MSCI Emerging Markets Equity Index qualification status (either
through financial or qualitative measures). The benchmark for this asset category
will be the MSCI Emerging Markets Equity Index, with net dividends.

C. Hedge Funds — Hedge funds are broadly defined to include nontraditional investment
strategies whereby the majority of the underlying securities are traded on public
exchanges or are otherwise readily marketable.

Directional Hedge Funds — Directional hedge fund investments include U.S. and
international long/short equity or fixed income strategies and other such strategies
that exhibit directional market characteristics using commodities, currencies,
derivatives, or other global market instruments. These strategies attempt to exploit
profits from security selection skills by taking long and short positions in various
securities. These strategics may also include fund of hedge fund investments.
Directional hedge fund investments arc made through private placement
agreements. Directional hedge fund investments may be held in an internal
commingled investment fund managed by UTIMCO.

Absolute Return Hedge Funds — Absolute return hedge fund investments include
arbitrage, event driven strategies, and other relative value strategies. Arbitrage
strategies aftempt to exploit pricing discrepancies between closely related
securities, utilizing a variety of different tactics primarily within equity, fixed
income, and convertible securities markets. Event driven strategies attempt to
exploit discrete events such as bankruptcies, mergers, and takeovers. Absolute
return hedge funds may include multi-strategy managers and fund of hedge fund
investments. Absolute return hedge fund investments are made through private
placement agreements. Absolute return hedge fund investments may be held in an
internal commingled investment fund managed by UTIMCO.
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[nflation Linked — Inflation linked investments are intended to provide some degree
of inflation protection and generally consist of assets with a higher correlation of
returns with inflation than other eligible asset classes. Inflation linked investments
include:

REITS — REITS are real estate investment trusts that may be held as either trust
certificates, derivative investments, or exchange traded funds. REITS own, and in
most cases operate, income producing real estate.

Commodities — Commodities include natural resource investments including oil
and gas interests and other hard assets. These investments may be held through
partnerships, derivative investments, exchange traded funds or direct investments.

TIPS - TIPS are inflation protected securities with a return linked to the inflation
rate. For diversification purposes, TIPS may include non-U.S. inflation protected
fixed income securities as well as nominal fixed income securities.

Fixed Income — Fixed income investments include debt (whether U.S. or foreign)
issued by Governments, various government enterprises and agencies, and domestic
and foreign corporations. The principal securities include bonds, notes, bills and
mortgage and asset-backed securities. In addition, derivative applications that serve as
a fixed income substitute may be classified as fixed income.

Cash and Cash Equivalents — Short-term (generally securities with time to maturity of
three months or less), highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to known
amounts of cash, and which are subject to a relatively small risk of changes in value.

Performance Measurement

The investment performance of the ITF will be measured by the 1TF’s custodian, an
unaffiliated organization, with recognized expertise in this field and reporting
responsibility to the UTIMCO Board, compared against the stated investment
benchimarks of the ITF, as indicated in Exhibit A (incorporating the impact of internal
derivative positions) and reported to the UTIMCO Board and the Board of Regents at
least quarterly. Monthly performance data and net asset values will be available on the
UTIMCO website within a reasonable time after each month end.

Investment Guidelines

The ITF must be invested at all times in strict compliance with applicable law.
Investment guidelines include the following:
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Greneral

Investment guidelines for index, commingled funds, and limited partnerships
managed externally shall be governed by the terms and conditions of the
respective investment management contracts or partnership agreements.

All investments will be U.S. dollar denominated assets unless held by an internal
or external portfolio manager with the authority to invest in foreign currency
denominated securities.

Investment policies of any unaffiliated liquid investment fund must be reviewed
and approved by UTIMCO’s chief investment officer prior to investment of ITF
assets in such liquid investment fund.

No securities may be purchased or held which would jeopardize the ITF’s tax-
exempt status.

No internal investment strategy or program may purchase securities on margin or
use leverage unless specifically authorized by the UTIMCO Board.

No internal investment strategy or program employing short sales may be made
unless specifically authorized by the UTIMCO Board.

The ITF’s investments in warrants shall not exceed more than 5% of the ITF’s net
assets or 2% with respect to warrants not listed on the New York or American
Stock Exchanges.

The [TF may utilize derivatives to: a) simulate the purchase or sale of an
underlying market index while retaining a collateral balance for fund management
purposes; b) facilitate trading; c) reduce transaction costs; d) seek higher
Investment returns when a derivative security is priced more attractively than the
underlying security; e) hedge risks associated with ITF investments; or f) adjust
the market exposure of the asset allocation, including the use of long and short
strategies and other such strategies, provided that the ITF’s use of derivatives
complies with the Derivative Investment Policy approved by the UTIMCO Board
and the Board of Regents. The Derivative Investment Policy shall serve the
purpose of defining permitted applications under which derivatives can be used,
which applications are prohibited, and the requirements for the reporting and
oversight of their use. Derivative applications implemented in compliance with
the Derivative Investment Policy shall be deemed to be specifically authorized by
the UTIMCO Board for purposes of this Policy Statement. The objective of the
Derivative Investment Policy is to facilitate risk management and provide
efficiency in the implementation of the investment strategies using derivatives.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Holdings of cash and cash equivalents may include the following:

Highly liquid internal pooled investment funds managed by UTIMCO.
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» Unaffiliated liquid investment funds as approved by UTIMCO’s chief investment
officer.

* ITI”s custodian late deposit interest bearing liquid investment fund.
= Municipal short-term securities.

* Commercial paper rated in the two highest quality classes by Moody’s Investors
Service, Inc. (P1 or P2) or Standard & Poor’s Corporation (A1 or A2).

" Negotiable certificates of deposit with a bank that is associated with a holding
company meeting the commercial paper rating criteria specified above or that has
a certificate of deposit rating of 1 or better by Duff & Phelps.

* Repurchase agreements and reverse repurchase agreements transacted with a
dealer that is approved by UTIMCO and selected by the Federal Reserve

* Bank as a Primary Dealer in U.S. Treasury securities and rated A-1 or P-1 or the
equivalent.

- Each approved counterparty shall execute the Standard Public Securities
Association (PSA) Master Repurchase Agreement with UTIMCO.

- Eligible collateral securities for repurchase agreements are limited to U.S.
Treasury securities and U.S. Government Agency securities with a
maturity of not more than 10 years.

- The maturity for a repurchase agreement may be from one day to two
weeks.

- The value of all collateral shall be maintained at 102% of the notional
value of the repurchase agreement, valued daily.

- All collateral shall be delivered to the ITF custodian bank. Tri-party
collateral arrangements are not permitted.

- The aggregate amount of repurchase agreements with maturities greater
than seven calendar days may not exceed 10% of the ITFE’s fixed income
assets.

- Overnight repurchase agreements may not exceed 25% of the ITE’s fixed
income assets.

* Mortgage Backed Securities (MBS) dollar roils shall be executed as matched
book transactions in the same manner as reverse repurchase agreements above. As
above, the rules for trading MBS dollar rolls shall follow the Public Securities
Association standard industry terms.

Fixed Income

Domestic Fixed Income

Permissible securities for investment include the securities within the component
categories of the Lehman Brothers Aggregate Bond Index (LBAGG). These component

11/10/2003 7



categories include investment grade government and corporate securitics, agency
mortgage pass-through securities, and asset-backed securities. These sectors are divided
into more specific sub-sectors:

1) Government securities: Treasury and Agency;

2) Corporate securities: Industrial, Finance, Utility, and Yankee;
3) Mortgage-backed securities: GNMA, FHLMC, and FNMA;
4) Asset-backed securities;

5} Taxable Municipal securities; and

6} Commercial Mortgage-backed securities.

In addition to the permissible securities listed above, the following securities shall be
permissible:

a) Floating rate securities with periodic coupon changes in market rates issued
by the same entities that are included in the LBAGG as issuers of fixed rate
securities;

b) Medium term notes issued by investment grade corporations;

¢) Zero coupon bonds and stripped Treasury and Agency securities created from
coupon securities; and

d) Structured notes issued by LBAGG qualified entities.

* U.S. Domestic Bonds must be rated investment grade, Baa3 or better by Moody’s
Investors Services, BBB- by Standard & Poor’s Corporation, or BBB- or better by
Fitch Investors Service at the time of acquisition. An external investment manager
may be authorized by the terms of an investment advisory agreement to invest up
to a maximum of 50% of the total fixed income portfolio in below investment
grade bonds.

= Not more than 5% of the market value of domestic fixed income securities may be
invested in corporate and municipal bonds of a single issuer,

Non-U.8. Fixed Income

Non-dollar denominated bond investments shall be restricted to bonds rated equivalent to
the same credit standard as the U. S. Fixed Income Portfolio unless an investment
manager has been authorized by the terms of an investment advisory agreement to invest
in below investment grade bonds.

* Not more than 50% of the ITF’s fixed income portfolio may be invested in non-
U.S. dollar denominated bonds.

» Not more than 15% of the ITF’s fixed income portfolio may be invested in
emerging market debt.

* Intemmational currency exposure may be hedged at UTIMCO’s discretion or
delegated by UTIMCO to an external investment manager.
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Equities
The ITF shall:

* Hold no more than 25% of its equity securities in any one industry or industries (as
defined by the standard industry classification code and supplemented by other
reliable data sources) at market, or

* Hold no more than 5% of its equity securities in the securities of one corporation at
cost.

ITF Accounting

The fiscal year of the ITF shall begin on September Ist and end on August 3[st. Market
value of the ITF shail be maintained on an accrual basis in compliance with Government
Accounting Standards Board Statements, Financial Accounting Standards Board
Statements, or industry guidelines, whichever is applicable. The I[TF’s financial
statements shall be audited each year by an independent accounting firm selected by the
Board of Regents.

Valuation of ITF Assets

As of the close of business on the last business day of each month, UTIMCO shall
determine the fair market value of all ITF net assets and the net asset value per unit of the
ITF. The final determination of ITF net assets for a month end close shall normally be
completed within six business days but determination may be longer under certain
circumstances. Valuation of ITF assets shall be based on the books and records of the
custodian for the valuation date.

The fair market value of the ITF’s net assets shall include all related receivables and
payables of the ITF on the valuation date and the value of each unit thereof shall be its
proportionate part of such net value. Such valuation shall be final and conclusive.

ITF Distribuations

There-willnot-be-any planned distributionsfrorm-the I'TE—The earnings-of the T will be
reflectedin—the net-asset value—perunit-ofthe ITE. The ITF shall provide monthly

distributions to the unitholders. The UTIMCO Board will recommend the per unit
distribution rate to the Board of Regents.

Distributions from the 1TF to the unitholders shall be made monthly on the first business
day of each month based on the unitholders participation on the previous business day's
cnd.

Purchase and Redemption of ITF Units
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The ITF participants may purchase units on the first business day of each month upon
payment of cash or reinvestment of distributions to the ITF, at the net asset value per unit
of the ITF as of the prior month ending valuation date. Such purchase commitments are
binding. The ITF participants may redecem ITF units on a monthly basis. The unit
redemption shall be paid in cash as soon as practicable after the month end valuation date
of the [TF. Redemptions from the ITF shall be at the market price per unit determined at
the time of the redemption. Such redemption commitments are binding.

Participants of the ITF are required to provide notification of purchases and redemptions
based on specific notification requirements as set forth in The University of Texas
System Allocation Policy for Non-Endowment Funds.

Securities Lending

The ITF may participate in a securities lending contract with a bank or non-bank security
lending agent for purposes of realizing additional income. Loans of securitics by the ITF
shall be collateralized by cash, letters of credit, or securities issued or guaranteed by the
U.S. Government or its agencies. The collateral will equal at least 100% of the current
market value of the loaned securities. The contract shall state acceptable collateral for
securities loaned, duties of the borrower, delivery of loaned securities and collateral,
acceptable investment of collateral and indemnification provisions. The contract may
include other provisions as appropriate.

The securities lending program will be evaluated from time to time as deemed necessary
by the UTIMCO Board. Monthly reports issued by the lending agent shall be reviewed by
UTIMCO staff to ensure compliance with contract provisions.

Investor Responsibility

As a sharcholder, the ITF has the right to a veice in corporate affairs consistent with
those of any shareholder. These include the right and obligation to vote proxies in a
manner consistent with the unique role and mission of higher education as well as for the
economic benefit of the ITF. Notwithstanding the above, the UTIMCO Board shall
discharge its fiduciary duties with respect to the ITF solely in the interest of ITF unit-
holders, in compliance with the Proxy Voting Policy, and shall not invest the 1TF so as to
achieve temporal benefits for any purpose including use of its economic power to
advance social or political purposes.

Amendment of Policy Statement

The Board of Regents reserves the right to amend the Investment Policy Statement as it
deems necessary or advisable.

Effective Date
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The effective date of this policy shall be November 10, 2005, cxcept for Exhibit A.
Adherence to the policy targets and ranges may not be fully effective throughout the first
six months after initial funding (expected February 1, 2006) as new portfolio investments
are phased in. The selection of the effective date of Exhibit A, to be no later than
September 1, 2006, shall be determined by UTIMCO’s Chief Investment Officer and
notification to the Chairmen of the UTIMCO Board and the Board of Regents shall occur
at least 30 days prior to the effective date.
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EXHIBIT A

INTERMEDIATE TERM FUND
POLICY TARGETS, RANGES, AND PERFORMANCE OBJECTIVES

Asset Categories Percent of Policy (%) Benchmarks
Policy Policy
Targets Ranges
U. S. Equities 15 S to 20 Russell 3600 Index
Global ex U. S. Equities 10 0tol5
Non - U. 8. Developed 5 0to 10 MSCI EAFE Index with net dividends
Equity
Emerging Markets Equities 5 0to 10 MSCI Emerging Markets Index with net
dividends
Hedge Funds 25 10 to 27.5
Directional Hedge Funds 12.5 51020 Combination index: 50% S&P Eveni-Driven

Hedge Index plus 50% S&P
Directional/Tactical Hedge Fund Index

Absolute Return Hedge 12.5 5to0 20 Combination index: 66.7% S&P Event-
Funds Driven Hedge Fund [ndex plus 33.3% S&P
Arbitrage Hedge Fund Index
Inflation Linked 25 10 to 35
REITS 10 Oto 15 Dow Jones Wilshire Real Estate Securities
Index
Commaodities 5 Oto 10 Combination Index: 66.7% GSCI minus .5%
plus 33.3% DJ-AIG Commodity [ndex
TIPS 10 S5to 15 FLehman Brothers US TIPS Index
Fixed Income 25 15 to 40 Lehman Brothers Aggregate Bond Index
Cash 0.0 0to 20 90 Day T-Bills
Expected Annual Return (%6} | 7.08 % of Target
Risk
I yr Downside Deviation (%) | -5.0 Upper Risk Bound: 6.4 127%
I yr Downside Deviation (%) ) ?
Standard Deviation (%) 7.5 Lower Risk Bound: 35 69%
1 yr Downside Deviation (%) ] °
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RESOLUTION TO INCREASE INVESTMENT MANDATES FOR
CERTAIN MARKETABLE ALTERNATIVE INVESTMENTS

RESOLVED, that the proposed new limits to investment mandates for
certain Marketable Alternative Investments be, and is hereby approved in
the form as submitted to the Corporation’s Board of Directors.
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Agenda ltem:
Developed By:
Presented By:
Type of ltem:

Description:

Discussion:

Recommendation:

Reference:

Agenda tem
UTIMCO Board of Directors Meeting
January 17, 2006

Website Security Audit and IT Disaster Recovery
Edwards

Edwards

Information Iltem

UTIMCO contracted with Denim Group to assess and advise on the security of the
new CPSystem supporting the new {TF and STF.  Additionally, we are reviewing
and implementing new disaster recovery plans.

Denim Group will have completed their review and an update will be presented to
the Board. This will provide sufficient time to make any software or hardware
adjustments required to assure a secure system. The review by Denim includes an
external invasion and internal tests using both simple and sophisticated methods.

With the implementation of the CPSystem, up time for the web based applications is
more critical than before. In conjunction with the review of our new server
environment we are in the process of providing a new disaster recovery plan. We
have included the old plan as a point of reference.

None

Disaster Recovery Plan



AThe University of Texas Investment Management Company&
Disaster Recovery Plan

Introduction

This plan is to be used in the event of a disaster that disrupts The University
of Texas Investment Management Company( UTIMCO) information
services. It has three primary objectives:

1) Identify resources that will be needed to restore automated information
systems.

2) Define roles to be played by UTIMCO staff responsible for recovery.

3) Define actions to be taken to restore information systems.

The plan is available as a hyper-linked document and is stored on multiple
computers to ensure accessibility. It is also available in printed form and is
distributed to key recovery personnel in this format.

If you have questions or suggestions you may contact the UTIMCO Helpdesk at:

Telephone: (512)225-1650
FAX: (512)2235-1660

Postal address: The University of Texas Investment Management Company
Information Technology Services
221 West 6th Street, Suite 1700
Austin, Texas 78701

Electronic mail: Helpdesk@utimco.org
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AThe University of Texas Investment Management CompanyA

Disaster Recovery Plan

Disaster Definitions, Classifications and Declarations

Disaster:

For the purposes of this plan, a disaster is defined as being a
disruption to UTIMCO information systems of sufficient severity
as to require an immediate redirection of resources to restore
services in order to prevent operational, financial or political harm
to the company.

Disaster Classifications:

Disasters vary in scope and consequence. For our purposes a
disaster is classified as being either type “B” or type “A”. The
classification is based not on the underlying cause of the disaster
(fire, storm, vandalism, etc.), but rather on the extent to which
resources must be reallocated to restore services and prevent harm
to the company.

Type A: The type “A” disaster is one of such severity that
significant financial and/or human resources requiring executive
management approvals will be required for recovery.

Type B: The type “B” disaster is a disruption requiring action that
goes beyond normal system maintenance and trouble-shooting, but
that does not warrant reallocation of resources to an extent
requiring executive management approvals. It is of less severity
than the type “A” disaster.

Declaring a Disaster:

Type A: Only an executive officer of the company can declare a
type “A” disaster.

Type B: Information Technology Services administration
(Manager and Sr. Network Analyst) have the authority to declare a
type “B” disaster. Disasters of this type are typically handled by
ITS with appropriate status reports being provided to executive
management.
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Disaster Prevention

The best disaster is one that never occurs. The University of Texas Investment
Management Company takes precautionary measures designed to prevent information
technology disasters and to limit the scope and consequence of those that may occur.
Following is an overview of strategies we use to achieve a low risk environment.

Policy:

Risk Assessment;

Disaster Planning:

Training:

Redundancy:

The University of Texas Investment Management Company has
adopted a Policy for the Use and Protection of Information
Resources. This policy applies to all University of Texas
Investment Management Company information resources.

UTIMCO performs risk assessments on an as needed basis.

Mainframe applications used at UTIMCO execute on the U. T.
Austin mainframe computer. Contingency plans for restoration of
these systems are included in the U. T. Austin disaster recovery
plan. The plan at hand extends our planning to include our
network and internet based systems.

UTIMCO will provide information technology policy training as
part of the annual ethics training. This training will cover the
UTIMCO policies on the use and protection of information
resources.

UTIMCO deploys a number of redundant systems to prevent loss
of service.

For data storage we have begun to implement RAID technology to
allow continued operations in the event of failed disk drives.

We have a replacement server that can be placed into service if our
primary server were to become inoperable. The production server
and replacement server reside in separate parts of the building.

To ensure accessibility in case a disaster were to occur, this
Disaster Recovery document is kept in two online locations, the
UTIMCO Intranet and the Sr. Network Analyst's notebook
computer. In addition 1t is kept in printed format and distributed to
key UTIMCO recovery team personnel. A distribution list is
included in this plan.
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Data Storage Architecture:

Data Backups:

Parts Inventory:

Local Disk Drives are used in all the servers to store the data.

Users are instructed not to store anything on their workstation disk
drives. In the event of a workstation disk failure, all data would be
lost since none of the workstation disk drives are being backed up.

UTIMCO’s network based systems store files on Windows NT file
servers. Regularly scheduled backups are made of these files.
These are stored off-site at Bank One in the vault. Restoration tests
are performed quarterly to insure reliability of backups. We have
implemented a strategy in which network data backups are created
on a backup server then stored off-site weekly. The daily backup
tapes are stored separately from the network servers. Therefore, if
the building were to be destroyed our data would be available in
the vault at BankOne.

UTIMCO does not keep a parts inventory. We will purchase
temporary replacement parts as the need arises.

Power Surge Protection:

All file servers and critical network components are protected
against damage from power surges or blackouts by uninterruptable
power supplies. File servers will automatically close all files and
gracefully shut down in the event of an extended power outage.

Communications Procedures:

In the event of an emergency, quickness of response is of high
importance. To respond quickly one must be able to reach recovery
team members and access the necessary computer tesources. The
following procedures are in place to help ensure the ability to
respond quickly.

UTIMCO ITS employees carry a phone list containing the office,
home and, if available, cell phone numbers of other ITS
employees. This ensures an ability to reach other staff.

Passwords to critical computers are kept in sealed envelopes in the
BankOne vault. These are accessible to ITS administration in the
event of an emergency.

ITS administration members keep UTIMCO and U.T. System
Administration staff phone books at home to be used in the event
of emergency. These phone books contain home phone numbers.
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Disaster — Scenarios and Action Plans

Scenario #1: Loss of File of Web server

Classification: Type B — The loss of a file or web server can typically be handled by
ITS using existing resources.

Target Less than 4 hours.

Recovery Time:

Recovery The destruction of a single server requires that a replacement server be

Approach: brought on-line and loaded with current data

Recovery The primary UTIMCO servers are located in the server room. These

Location servers are backed up in the server room, therefore if a server is
destroyed, recovery will take place in the server room.

Required ¢ Information Technologies Team

Recovery o Helpdesk Team

Teams:

Action Steps 1. Notify Information Technologies Team

2. Alert Helpdesk Team

3. Information Technologies Team meets with team leaders and
appropriate management to determine a plan of attack/course of
action with appropriate executive approval.

Notes: * Determine which server is affected

e If server is mirrored, switch processing to alternate server.

¢ If server is not mirrored, obtain onsite backup tapes and load
backup data.

* Following data load, switch processing to the replacement server.

» Notify Helpdesk of completion (Click for procedures)

o TFollowing restoration, the Information Technologies Team
conducts a review meeting to revise procedures as needed.

e Refer to applicable network documentation.




AThe University of Texas Investment Management CompanyA
Disaster Recovery Plan

Disaster — Scenarios and Action Plans

Scenario #2: Company wide loss of computers

Classification: Type B assuming that the outage is caused by isolated power outage or
severed network wiring. (If the department work environment is
damaged, the incident would be upgraded to a Type A).

Target Less than 1 day.

Recovery Time:

Recovery Office operations would be moved to another location.
Approach:

Recovery none

Location

Required » [Information Technologies Team

Recovery e Helpdesk Team

Teams:

Action Steps 1. Notify Information Technologies Team

2. Information Technologies Team meets with team leaders and
appropriate management to determine a plan of attack/course of
action with appropriate executive approval.

Notes: ¢ Change network configurations to allow replacement computers to
access the affected department’s server files.

» Forward affected phones to new location.

e Begin installation of new phones in new location.

e Operations would move back to the department as soon as the
department situation is resolved.

» Following restoration, the Information Technologies Team
conducts a review meeting to revise procedures as needed.

¢ Refer to applicable network documentation.
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Disaster — Scenarios and Action Plans

Scenario #3: Destruction of UTIMCO server room

Classtfication: Type A

Tarpet Full operating in 3 days.

Recovery Time:

Recovery [f the UTIMCO server room were destroyed, (assuming fire or flood),
Approach: it would eliminate all data and most telephone services for UTIMCO.

If the destruction is isolated to just the server room, ITS would move
operations to the UTIMCO Training Room or a conference room. [TS
would have to patch interenet and telephone connectivity around the
server room. Replacement equipment needed would include the
replacement file server, replacement Cisco Router, and replacement
telephone patches. We would have to get a router and server from one
of our vendors.

Recovery UTIMCO Training Lab or conference room, any other office as a
Location backup option
Required o [nformation Technologies Team
Recovery » Executive Management
Teams: o Helpdesk Team
o Human Resources Team
Action Steps 1. Alert Information Technologies Team

2. Information Technologies Team meets with team leaders and
appropriate management to determine a plan of attack/course of
action with appropriate executive approval.

Notes: ¢ UT Austin will be contacted to notify about internet connectivity
1ssues.

s Southwestern Bell will be contacted to reroute T1 connection for
internet to another location.

¢ Information Technologies Team would begin restoring file servers
on new equipment in recovery location.

* Cisco and Dell would be contacted for immediate purchase of
replacement routers, firewalls, and computers.

e Capital Area Networks would be contacted for replacement of
phone switch

* Data and phone operations would be brought up from the recovery
location

¢  Once the UTIMCO server room is restored, operations would be
moved back to that location.

» Following restoration, the Information Technologies Team
conducts a review meeting to revise these procedures as needed.

» Refer to applicable network documentation.
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Disaster — Scenarios and Action Plans

Scenario #4:

Loss of Connection between UTIMCO and U.T. Austin

Classification;

Type B — Data travels between UTIMCO and U.T. Austin over a
single T1 circuit. This circuit is provided by Southwestern Bell
Telephone and is a zero-mile loop to the Greenville CO in downtown
Austin

Target

Recovery Time:

Less than 1 day.

Recovery Contact Southwestern Bell and turn in a trouble ticket. Pending

Approach: replacement or repair by Southwestern Bell, coordinate with U.T.
Austin for connection of new circuit.

Recovery UTIMCO Server Room

Location

Required e Infornation Technologies Team

Recovery e Helpdesk Team

Teams: e Human Resources Team

Action Steps

1. Alert Information Technologies Team
Information Technologics Team meets with team leaders and
appropriate management to determine a plan of attack/course of
action with appropriate executive approval.

Notes:

o Alert Information Technologies Team, UT System Office of
Telecommunication Services and Southwestern Bell Telephone

s Wait for Southwestern Bell Telephone to deliver repaired circuit or
new circuit.

e Following restoration, the Information Technologies Team
conducts a review meeting to revise procedures as needed.

* Refer to applicable network documentation.
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Disaster — Scenarios and Action Plans

Scenario #5;

Loss of Telephone Service

Classification: | Type B — The loss of telephone service would have a broad impact,
however, it is unlikely that reallocation of financial or human
resources would be required to resolve this problem. If resource
reallocations are required the incident can be upgraded to Type A.

Target 24 hours

Recovery Time:

Recovery Determine if the problem is hardware (phone switch) related or circuit

Approach: related. If hardware related, contact Capital Area Networks for
replacement system. If circuit related, turn in a trouble ticket to Time
Warner Telecom and wait for resolution.

Recovery None Needed

Location

Required e [nformation Technologies Team

Recovery Helpdesk Team

Teams: Human Resources Team

Action Steps

Alert Information Technologies Team

Activate teams above.

Executive Management implements the Emergency

Communications Team

Contact Helpdesk for support

If any wiring needs to be replaced, contact Electra Link

6. Wait for word from Capital Area Networks or Time Warner
Telecom on replacement/repair time.

7. Following restoration, the Information Technologies Team
conducts a review meeting to revise procedures as nceded.

8. Refer to applicable network documentation.,

Lo N == ® @

Mo

Noles:

None
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Teams — Responsibilities

Depending upon the scope and consequence of any particular disaster situation, various
teams may need to be deployed to address the emergency situation. Teams include:

Information
Technologies Team

The Information Technologies Team has the overall responsibility
for implementing recovery. This team coordinates the various
recovery teams and support areas, and provides information to
executive management. This team is led by a Recovery
Coordinator who is charged with the task of coordination of the
recovery effort and for disseminating incident status reports to
executive management and other teams involved in the recovery
effort. The Information Technologies Team is responsible for
deploying network servers and other infrastructure hardware. This
team 1s also responsible for restoration of server software and data
files. The Information Technologies Team is responsible for
installation of desktop hardware and software. The Information
Technologies Team is responsible for restoration of mainframe
systems in accordance with the University of Texas at Austin
disaster recovery plan. The Information Technologies Team is
responsible for recovery of telephone services and alternate site
telephone installations.

Executive
Management

Only executive management can declare a Type "A" disaster.
Beyond this, for most incidents executive management's role is
usually limited to review and approval of actions that exceed pre-
planned recovery activities or which require reallocation of
resources. Executive Management is responsible for
communicating with the media and other entities external to
System Administration.

Helpdesk Team

The Help Desk Team serves as a central point for
communications. This team accepts and forwards messages and
dispatches other support personnel as required. The team is
responsible for retrieval of off-site backup tapes from the
BankOne vault.

Human Resources
Team

If any employees are harmed during the disaster incident, Human
Resources is responsible for all next-of-kin notifications. Human
Resources also coordinates any temporary staffing that may be
needed during the recovery effort. The Human Resources Team is
responsible for the expedited purchase of any materials needed
for recovery and for obtaining space that may be needed for
recovery operations.

11
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Team Roster — Information Technologies Team
The Information Technologies Team has the overall responsibility for implementing
recovery. This team coordinates the various recovery teams and support areas, and
provides information to executive management. This team is led by a Recovery
Coordinator who is charged with the task of coordination of the recovery effort and for
disseminating incident status reports to executive management and other teams involved
in the recovery effort. This team is responsible for deploying network servers and other
infrastructure hardware. This team is also responsbile for restoration of server software
and data files, installation of desktop hardware and software, resoration of mainframe
systems in accordance with the University of Texas at Austin disaster recovery plan, and
the recovery of telephone services and alternate site telephone installations.

Bill Edwards Team Role: Recovery Coardinator
Work Phone: (512) 225-1615
Fax Phone: (512) 225-1660
Home Phone: (512) 261-8230
Cellular Phone: None

Internet Email Address

Bedwards(@utimco.org

Other Contact Info:

David Gahagan Team Role: Member/Backup Recovery
Coordinator
Work Phone: (512) 225-1616
Fax Phone: (512) 225-1660

Home Phone:

(512) 460-3002

Cellular Phone:

(512) 964-9751

Internet Email Address

Dgahagan(@utimco.org

Other Contact Info:

Steve Montgomery Team Role: Member
Work Phone: (512) 225-1624
Fax Phone: (512) 225-1660

Home Phone;

(512) 789-5696

Cellular Phone:

(512) 789-5693

Internet Email Address

Smonigomery@utimco.org

Qther Contact Info:

Brent Dixon Team Role: Member
Work Phone: (512) 225-1613
Fax Phone: (512) 225-1660
Home Phone: (512) 259-1369
Cellular Phone: (512) 922-6430

Internet Email Address

Bdixon{@utimco.org

Other Contact Info:

Katy Hollenbaugh Team Role: Member
Work Phone: (512) 225-1618
Fax Phone: (512) 225-1660
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Home Phone:

(512) 301-5495

Cellular Phone:

None

Internet Email Address

Khollenbaugh{@utimco.org

Other Contact Info:

Sean McElheny Team Role: Member
Work Phone: (512) 225-1608
Fax Phone: (512) 225-1660

Home Phone:

(512) 444-9122

Cellular Phone:

None

Internet Ematl Address

Smcelheny@utimco.org

Other Contact Info:
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Executive Management

Only executive management can declare a Type "A" disaster. Beyond this, for most
incidents executive management’s role is usually limited to review and approval of
actions that exceed pre-planned recovery activities or which require reallocation of
resources. Executive Management is also responsible for communicating with the media
and other entities external to UTIMCO.

Cathy Iberg Team Role: Interim CEO
Work Phone: (512)225-1619
Fax Phone: (512) 225-1660
Home Phone: (512) 295-2981
Cellular Phone: (512) 750-7445

Internet Email Address

Ciberg@utimco.org

Other Contact Info:

Cathy Iberg

Team Role:

Managing Director — Investment Operations

Work Phone:

(512)225-1619

Fax Phone:

(512) 225-1660

Home Phone:

(512) 295-2981

Cellular Phone:

(512) 750-7445

Internet Email Address

Cibergi@utimco.org

Other Contact Info:

Open

Team Role:

Managing Director — Public Markets

Work Phone:

Fax Phone:

Home Phone:

Cellular Phone:

Internet Email Address

Other Contact Info:

Open

Team Role:

Managing Director — Private Markets

Work Phone:

Fax Phone:

Home Phone:

Cellular Phone:

Internet Email Address

Other Contact Info:
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Team Roster — Helpdesk Team

The Help Desk Team serves as a central point for communications. This team accepts
and forwards messages and dispatches other support personnel as required. The Help
Desk Team i1s also responsible for retrieving off-site backup tapes from the BankOne

vault.

Christy Wallace Team Role: Team Leader
Work Phone: (512) 225-1628
Fax Phone: (512) 225-1660
Home Phone: (512) 247-2052
Cellular Phone: (512) 826-5676

Internet Email Address

Cwallace(@utimeco.ore

Other Contact Info:

Claire Templin Team Role: Member
Work Phone: (512) 225-1600
Fax Phone: (512) 225-1660
Home Phone: (512) 220-8419
Cellular Phone: (512) 740-6975

Internet Email Address

Ctemplinf@utimeo.arg

Other Contact Info:

Dianne Watson Team Role: Member
Work Phone: (512) 225-1629
Fax Phone: (512) 225-1660
Home Phone: (512) 264-2413
Celluiar Phone: (512) 567-8928

Internet Email Address

Dwatson{@utimeco.org

Other Contact Info:

Donna Allen Team Role: Member
Work Phone: (512) 225-1607
Fax Phone: (512) 225-1660
Home Phone: (512) 252-8319
Cellular Phone: (512) 560-6565

Internet Email Address

Dallen@utimco.org

Other Contact Info:
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Team Roster — Human Resources Team

If any employees are harmed during the disaster incident, the Human Resources Team is
responsible for all next-of-kin notifications. Human Resources also coordinates any
temporary staffing that may be needed during the recovery effort. The Human Resources
Team 15 also responsible for the expedited purchase of any materials needed for recovery
and for obtaining space that may be needed for recovery operations.

Christy Wallace Team Role: Team Leader
Work Phone: (512) 225-1628
Fax Phone: {512) 225-1660
Home Phone: (512) 247-2052
Cellular Phone: (512) 826-5676

internet Email Address

Cwallace@utimeo.org

Other Contact Info:

Dianne Watson Team Role: Member
Work Phone: (512)225-1629
Fax Phone: (512)225-1660
Home Phone: (512) 264-2413
Cellular Phone: (512) 560-6565
Internet Email Address Dwatson(@utimco.org
Other Contact Info:
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Contacts
In the event of an emergency, communication is a key ingredient to recovery operations.
This page provides information needed to contact emergency services, UTIMCO
employees, and vendors that may provide recovery services.

UTIMCO Employee Directory

If the online directory is not operational because of

the disaster use the printed version of the System
Administration Directory. People on the Disaster
Recovery Plan distribution list will have copies of

the System Directory.

Emergency Numbers

UTIMCO Helpdesk:

(512) 225-1650
helpdesk(@utimco.org

UTIMCO Main
Number

(512) 225-1600

BankOne Tower
Security

(512) 479-4197
Por: (512) 209-1273

UT System Guards

(512) 499-4441

Eddie or Hal
BankOne (512) 479-4131 UT Austin Police (512) 471-4441
Management Barbara Woods
Austin Police, Fire, | 911 UT Austin (512)471-3434
EMS Information
Department of (512) 465-2000 Any University (512)471-1234
Public Safety Emergency
FBI - Austin (512) 345-1111 UT System (512) 499-HELP

Helpdesk (4357)

Poison Control

(409) 765-1420

Vendor Contacts

Dell Computer
Contact: Stephen Softhauser
Title: Account Rep
Telephone: {512) 728-3728
Cellular: (512) 751-3533
Fax: (512) 248-9702
Email: Stephen_softhauser@dell.com
Contact: Don Schulte
Title: Systems Consultant
Telephone: (512) 301-0130
Cellular: (512) 635-7195
Fax:
Email: Don_schulte(@dell.com
Cisco Systems
Contact: Don Smith
Title: Sales
Telephone: (512) 314-0100
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Cellular:
Fax: {512) 314-0101
Email: Dsmith{@cisco.com
Contact: Eric Cox
Title: Systems Engineer
Telephone: (800) 553-2447
Cellular:
Fax:
Email: Elcox{@cisco.com
Flectra Link
Contact: Robert Drosche
Title: Estimator/Designer
Telephone: (512) 835-6475
Fax: (512) 835-6481
Email: Robert.drosche@electralink.com
Solomon (ID #: 034715)
Contact:
Title:
Telephone:
Cellular:
Fax:
Email:
Mellon Trust
Contact: Mellon Trust Helpdesk
Telephone: (800) INV-TECH (468-8324)
Email: None
Frank Russell
Contact: John Gillman
Title: None
Telephone: (253) 596-3007
Fax: None
Email: None
Bloomberg, L.P.
Contact: BIP Support Desk
Telephone: (212) 318-2100
Contact: Jason Morgenstern
Telephone: (212) 318-2400
Fax: (917) 369-5451
The Burgiss Group
Contact: Jim Kocis
Title: President
Telephone: (201) 795-5144 x16
Fax: (210) 795-9237
Email: Jkocis@burgiss.com
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Barra
Contact: Bradley Thilges
Title: Regional Manager
Telephone: (510) 649-4568
Fax: None
Email: None
ILX Systems, Inc.
Contact: ILX Tech Support Line
Telephone: (800) 225-5459
Email: None
TradeWeh
Contact: Larry Ng
Title: Chief Information Officer
Telephone: (800) 541-2268
Fax: (212) 775-1003
Email:
Time Warner Telecom
Contact: Maintenance/Repair
Telephone: (888) 245-6608
Contact: Billing
Telephone: (888) 333-0520
Contact: Victor Gonzales
Title: Austin — Operations Manager
Telephone: (512) 485-6394
Cellular: (512) 801-0015
Pager: {800) 759-8888
PIN: 1575580
Contact: Eddie Holliman
Title: Austin — Operations Manager
Telephone: (512) 485-1767
Cellular: (512) 801-3268
Pager: (877) 541-1534
Contact: Jim Bauer
Title: Austin — Director of Operations
Telephone: (512) 485-6349
Cellular: (512) 413-1420
Pager: (800) 759-8888
PIN: 1072684
Contact: Darin Cook
Title: Austin — Sales Manager
Telephone: (512) 485-1761
Cellular: (512) 750-1024
Contact: Jenny Rogers
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Title: Austin — General Manager
Telephone: (512) 485-6396
Cellular: (512) 415-6402
Contact: Brent Bright
Title: Austin — Regional Director of Operations
Telephone: (512) 485-1775
Cellular: (512) 431-2796
Pager: (888) 660-9749
M Tech Service
Contact: David
Telephone: (512) 929-7090

General Telephone:

(888) 660-9749

Kent Datacom

Contact: Daren Fisher
Title: Account Manager
Telephone: (512) 835-1152
Cellular: (512) 657-2461
Email: Dfisher@kentelec.com
Chubb Security

Contact: Ken/Chris Whitney
Title: Technician/Manager
Telephone: (512) 977-5180/(512) 977-5164
Cellular: None
Email: None

Informatica
Contact: Craig McKinley
Title: Sales Representative
Telephone: (650) 385-5246
Cellular: None
Pager: None
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Recovery Locations
Depending on the location and nature of a given disaster, we may have to move either
server or office operations to an alternative location. Following is a list of pre-identified
tocations that may be used for operations recovery. Recovery location is determined by
the Recovery Coordinator for a Type B disaster or by the Intformation Technologies

Team for a Type A disaster.

Server Operations Recovery Locations

UTIMCO Lab

This room is the alternate location to the
Server Room.

Acquire other space as needed

U. T. System Space (contact OIR Helpdesk
at 499-HELP)

Office Operations Recovery Locations

CLB Basement Computer Training
Room

This room has 12 computers that are ready
to be used for recovery purposes. Office
operations for a departmental outage could
be established in this location very quickly.
UTIMCO would need to coordinate with
U.T. System for use of this facility

CTJ Basement Conference Room

This conference room could accommodate
approximately 10 workers performing
administrative tasks. Only 1 computer is
located in this room; however multiple
computers could be connected to the
network quickly in this location. UTIMCO
would need to coordinate with U.T. System
for use of this facility

ASH 2nd Floor Conference Room

This room could accommodate
approximately 25 office workers. Only 1
network connection is available and adding
connections would not be a quick process.
Therefore this room would best be used for
administrative operations that did not
require computer and network access.
UTIMCO would need to coordinate with
U.T. System for use of this facility
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Critical Equipment Inventory

Equipment Name 08 Purpose Location Backup Yendor/ | Disk Type
Notes
Server FS1 NT 4.0 Primary Server Backup Dell Raid 5
SP6a File Server Room Server
(Off Site
Tape}
Server DNSI NT 4.0 Server Backup Dell
SP6a Room Server
(Off Site
Tape)
Server DNSX NT 4.0 Server Backup Dell
SPéa Room Server
(Off Site
Tape)
Server WWwWwW NT 4.0 Server Backup Dell
SP6a Room Server
(Off Site
Tape)
Server BDCI1 NT 4.0 Server Backup Delt
SPoa Room Server
(Off Site
Tape)
Server SQLI NT 4.0 Server Backup Dell Raid 5
SP6a Room Server
(Off Site
Tape)
Server SQLDR NT 4.0 Server Backup Compaq Raid 5
SP6a Room Server
(Off Site
Tape)
Server SQLX NT 4.0 Server Backup Dell Raid 5
SP6a Room Server
(Off Site
Tape)
Server DBSER NT 4.0 Server Backup Dell
VER1 SP6a Room Server
(Off Site
Tape)
Server MAIL NT 4.0 Server Backup Compaq
S5P6a Room Server
(OfT Site
Tape)
Server ALTISY NT 4.0 Server Backup Capital
5 SP6a Room Server Area
(Off Site | Networks/
Tape) Altigen
Server BACKU NT 4.0 Server Backup Dell
p SP6a Room Server
(Off Site
Tape)
Workstation | CRSPRI NT 4.0 Training Backup Dell
NTER SP6a Lab Server
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(OIT Site
Tape)
Workstation ITs- NT 4.0 Server Backup Dell
OPALIS SPeéa Room Server
(Off Site
Tape)
Router 7010 Server Config Cisco
Room files on
FSI
Firewall PIX Server Config Cisco
Room files on
FS1
Router 2624 Server Config Cisco
Room files on
FS1
Switch 2600 Server Config Cisco
Room files on
FS1
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Server Room Layout

This is the layout and documentation for the current UTIMCO Server room. The racks
are listed from left to right, #1 is on the far left when you are looking at the front of them.

Rack #1
Empty
Rack #2
ILX Server Server from ILX quotes. Owned and

maintained by ILX Systems, Inc.

Exabyte Tape Drives

Tape drives used to backup all of
UTIMCO’s data on all servers.

Rac

k#3

DBServerl

Solomon and Frank Russell Database
server.

Mail

Microsoft Exchange Server for internal and
internet email

SQLDR

Backup SQL server. Stores a copy of all
production data in case production server
crashes

BDC1

Backup NT domain controller. Stores a
copy of the NT user database in case the
primary domain controller fails,

Backup

ArcServe backup server. This server
archives all data on all servers to tape
nightly.

DNSX

External DNS server. This server answers
any DNS queries by outside sources for
UTIMCO.org, .com and .net domains.
This server is OUTSIDE the firewall

Rac

k #4

PDC1

Primary NT domain controller, RAS
server, VPN server, internal DNS server,
WINS server. This server stores the
primary copy of the NT user database,
answers internal DNS queries, internal
WINS gqueries, handles all RAS and VPN
connections and login scripts.

Production web server. Hosts utimco.org,
.com, .net domains, intranet server and test
server

FS1

Production file server for UTIMCO. Stores
all shared and private files

SQL1

Production SQL server. This server has the
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primary production copy of all data.

SQLX

New SQL 7.0 server. Soon to be placed
into production to replace SQI.1

Rack #5

Bloomberg Router

Router used to communicate with
Bloomberg in New York.

Mellon Trust Router

Router used to communicate with Mellon
Trust in Boston

Bridge/Telerate Router & Hub

Router/Hub use to communicate with
Bridge/Telerate

ILX Router

Router to communicate with [LX Systems.

Altigen Server

Telephone System server. This is the
server that runs UTIMCO’s phone system.

Cisco 2600 External router for UTIMCO’s connection
to UT Austin. Also provides UT System
Finance access to their servers in the UT
System complex.

Cisco PIX PIX Firewall for UTIMCQO

Cisco 7010 Routes traffic between the Primary

Ethernet network, Bloomberg, ILX, Mellon
Trust, and PTX Firewall

On the South Wall

Demark jacks for all digital and analog
circuits on this wall.

Circuit ID numbers and labels are on each
jack.

Chubb Sceurity Panel

Used to control the locking doors at the
entrance to the office and provide the card
entry system at these same doors.
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AThe University of Texas Investment Management CompanyA
Disaster Recovery Plan

Plan Admitnistration

Certain activities are required to administer this disaster recovery plan to ensure that it is
current and functional. A list of activities and responsibilities follows:

Activity

Who

When

Update the plan. (Team
memberships, phone
numbers, etc.)

ITS Administration

Twice annually - September
and March

Distribute the Plan.

ITS Administration will
distribute the Plan.

Each team leader will
receive a copy of the plan to
be kept at home. Also each
team leader should keep a
UTIMCQO directory at
home.

A copy of the U. T. Austin
Mainframe Disaster
Recovery Plan and U. T.
System Disaster Recovery
Plan will be kept at home
by the Recovery
Coordinator and Backup
Recovery Coordinator.

Plan updates will be
distributed to team leaders
during October and April.

Test the Plan. (DIR
Tequires annual testing of
disaster recovery plans.
Different aspects of the plan
can be tested during
different testing

sesstons. )UTIMCO will
attempt to adhere to these
procedures as closely as
possible.

ITS Administration will
coordinate the testing of
recovery procedures.
Applicable teams will be
involved in each recovery
scenario.

Annual Testing will take
place during January -
March time frame.
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Agenda tem:
Developed By:
Presented By:
Type of ltem:

Description:

Recommendation:

Discussion:

Reference:

Agenda ltem
UTIMCO Board of Directors Meeting
January 17, 2006

Discussion of Portfolio Construction Issues
Boldt
Bolat

Information Item

This agenda item is intended to be an exchange of ideas and information on several
issues at the leading edge of thinking in the endowment and foundation community.

None

There are very significant changes in portfolio construction being considered by
thought leaders in the endowment industry. These changes can be generally
grouped into three categories: (1) the separation of “alpha” and “beta” exposures, (2)
leverage, (3) strategic asset allocation through risk budgeting rather than dollar
allocations. Itis highly ironic that many of these “new” ideas are actually practical
implementations taken straight from “modem” capital market theory {now more than
40 years old). Fortunately, we are in an advantageous position to be a leader in this
new approach.

None
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TAB 8



Agenda ltem:

Developed By:

Presented By:
Type of ltem:

Description:

Discussion:

Reference:

Agenda ltem
UTIMCO Board of Directors Meeting
January 17, 2006

Overview of Public Markets Investments
Goldsmith

Goldsmith

No Action Required

Staff will provide an overview of the responsibility and investment activities of the
Public Markets Investments’ group at UTIMCO.

The Public Markets Investments group area currently oversees approximately $8
billion in Endowment assets, equating to approximately 56% of total Endowment
market value, as well as an additional $5 billion (notional value) of internally managed
derivatives positions.

The Public Markets group is responsible for investments in Domestic Equities,
International Equities, Domestic and Intemational Fixed Income, and presently
oversees T|Ps and Commodities.

Public Markets Overview presentation
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Agenda ltem:

Developed By:

Presented By:

Type of ltem:
Description:

Discussion:

Reference:

Agenda item
UTIMCO Board of Directors Meeting
January 17, 2006

Presentation of Investment in Lansdowne’s European Long Only Fund
Goldsmith

Goldsmith

No Action Required / Director Election to Review

Lansdowne Partners Limited — European Long Only Fund

UTIMCO staff received approval for the investment in Lansdowne’s European Long
Only Fund in December 2005. The Board requested that this investment be
discussed further under the Option to Review form.

The need and search for independent, research-oriented, active alpha generating
long-only managers in non-U.S. egquity spaces continues to get ever more
challenging. Research into Lansdowne as a firm has spanned both Public Markets
and Marketable Alternatives at UTIMCO. As a firm, they are independent and focused
on both client results and business stability. The particular investment spaces in
which they have engaged their talent have held much appeal to staff over the last
couple of years.

Staff believes that Lansdowne’s in-depth fundamental analysis and experienced
management team, coupled with the relative market inefficiency of the areas in which
they will be investing, provide the Endowments with a compelling and high PVA
investment opportunity. They have an impressive track record in managing European
equities and staff views that the valuation of the companies in their investment
universe are at attractive levels.

Delegation of Authority Policy; Investment Memorandum



Confidential December 1, 2005

Lansdowne Partners Limited — European Lon

Investment Recommendation
Executive Summary

Current/Pro
Forma Exposure Total Proposed Actual/Pro
UTIMCO Investment Asset in Asset Liquidity Existing Proposed and Existing Forma Total
Responsibility Description Category Category Profile Exposure Investment Exposure Miquidity
Public Markets International Developed o -
(PMY) Equities Equities 13.9%M13.9% Liquid $0 $100,000,000 | $100,000,000 N/A
INVESTMENT SUMMARY

In all investment spaces, Public Markets staff strives to uncover unigue and talented investment managers
and to leverage their skill set into structures that can deliver the highest PVA for the Endowments. In this
vein, staff began discussions with Lansdowne Partners Limited {*Lansdowne”) - who have a successful,
long-term track record in the hedge fund space - about investing in their opportunistic long-only
intemnational equity offerings. Staff recently received approval to engage Lansdowne in an Emerging
Markets mandate. Staff now proposes to hire Lansdowne to manage a European Long Only portfolio.

= LANSDOWNE PARTNERS’ MAIN COMPETITIVE ADVANTAGES

1. Rigorous fundamental analysis performed by an experienced investment team.

Access to senior management teams and key governmental officials across the European

landscape.

A strong track record of peer-leading performance in their chosen investment mandates.

4. A commitment to grow their new and existing products in a measured and controlled manner in
order to not dilute their intended portfolio performance results.

w

Lansdowne was founded in 1998 with an investment philosophy focused on delivering absolute annual
returns generated by finding undervalued companies via in<depth fundamental analysis. Over the last
seven years, assets under management have grown to % billion, managed in 4 separate hedge fund
(long/short) mandates. In early 2005, Lansdowne launched the proposed long-only product as a natural
extension of the investment research process of their established flagship European strategy.

* EXPERIENCE

Lansdowne employs experienced investment professionals whose backgrounds and experiences
complement the philosophy of the firm. The firm's portfolio managers, analysts and traders have extensive
experience managing investment portfolios and researching potential holdings, have advanced degreesin
a wide range of academic pursuits, and have a demonstrated track record of success with international
equity investing. The founding partners, Paul Ruddock and Steven Heinz, have 24 and 19 years,
respectively, of direct applicable experience. In aggregate, the firm has a staff of 52 individuals, 25 of which
are investment professionals.

1

THE INFORMATION CONTAINED IN THIS DRAFT DOCUMENT IS COMMERCIAL OR FINANCIAL INFORMATION THE DISCLOSURE OF WHICH WOULD
CAUSE BUBSTANTIAL COMPETITIVE HARM TQ UTIMCO AND/OR TO THE PERSON OR ENTITY FROM WHOM THE INFORMATION WAS CBTAINED.
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RECOMMENDATION

The need and search for independent, research-oriented, active alpha generating long-only managers in
non-U.S. equity spaces continues to get ever more challenging. Research into Lansdowne as a firm has
spanned both Public Markets and Marketable Alternatives at UTIMCO. As a firm, they are independent and
focused on both client results and business stability. The particular investment spaces in which they have
engaged their talent have held much appeal to staff over the last couple of years. Unfortunately, products
such as UK long-only equities have been closed to new clients, and the only practical remaining
opportunities are in European long-only equities and Emerging equities (which UTIMCO is committing $200
million to seed).

In sum, staff believes that Lansdowne’s in-depth fundamental analysis and experienced management
team, coupled with the relative market inefficiency of the areas in which they will be investing, provide the
Endowments with a compelling and high PVA investment opportunity. They have an impressive track
record in managing European equities and staff views that the valuation of the companies in their
investment universe are at attractive levels. As mentioned above, staff intends to invest $200 million with
Lansdowne in a dedicated Emerging Markets portfolio. The proposed investment of $100 million into the
European Long only mandate would bring the total funds with Lansdowne to $300 million.

2

THE INFORMATION CONTAINED IN THIS DRAFT DOCUMENT IS COMMERCIAL OR FINANCIAL INFORMATION THE DISCLOSURE OF WHICH WOULD
CAUSE SUBSTANTIAL COMPETITIVE HARM TO UTIMCO AND/CR TO THE PERSON OR ENTITY FROM WHOM THE INFORMATION WAS OBTAINED.
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Lansdowne Partners Limited — European Lon

Investment Recommendation
Due Diligence Memorandum

Current/Pro
Forma Total Proposed Actual/Pro
UTIMCO Investment Asset Exposure in Liquidity Existing Proposed and Existing Forma Total
Responsibility Description Category | Asset Category Profile Exposure Investment Exposure illiquidity
Public Markets International Developed o L
CPM Equities Equities 13.9%/13.%% Liquid $0 $100,000,000 | $100,000,000 N/A

INVESTMENT CHARACTERISTICS:
INVESTMENT RATIONALE

Lansdowne Partners Limited {*Lansdowne”) seeks to maximize total returns while carefully and selectively
taking risk where they believe that the long term return potential is positively skewed in their favor. In the
European Long Only ("ELQ”) strategy, Lansdowne builds a portfolio of European equities, that are
predominately non-UK with a focus on the mid-cap space, an area which is often overlooked and under-
covered by the institutional investment community.

In UTIMCO's current Developed Markets portfolio, a meaningful portion of the EAFE-based assets remain
passively managed as staff has continued to search for active managers who have the optimal mix of
organizational fraits and investment insight critical for future high PVA results. Compounding this situation,
staff has faced the increasingly common problem that many of the best international managers are refusing
to take on additional capital in fears that it would negatively impact their performance potential. The existing
managers who are taking on new capital, tend to have larger mandates and are becoming very benchmark-
oriented. As with alt past mandates, UTIMCQ's Public Markets (PM) staff insists on not paying for beta —in
other words, providing benchmark-like returns in a space that is inherently inefficient is highly undesirable.

It is staff's perspective that Lansdowne effectively addresses each of these concerns. In addition, they have
many of the classic attributes staff wishes to see in an active manager selection:

1. They are independently owned and operated with senior members of the firm having a significant
portion of their net worth invested side by side with clients.

2. They have a long term track record of success when ranked against peers and benchmarks.

3. They have judiciously built their business while keeping assets under management at a level
intended to retain future performance potential.

4. They are willing to partner with the UT Endowments on a compensation structure that is tilted
towards delivering superior retums.

The Public Markets staff views that finding experienced investment talent, and giving them the tools to
constructively build portfolios on the behalf of the UT Endowments, is a necessary undertaking in order to
remain competitive to both internal benchmarks and peers.

3

THE INFORMATION CONTAINED IN THIS DRAFT DOCUMENT IS COMMERCIAL OR FINANCIAL INFORMATION THE DISCLOSURE OF WHICH WOULD
CAUSE SUBSTANTIAL COMPETITIVE HARM TO UTIMCO AND/CR TO THE PERSON OR ENTITY FROM WHOM THE INFORMATION WAS OBTAINED.
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MANAGER RATIONALE

MANAGER BACKGROUND / CHARACTERISTICS

Lansdowne was founded in 1998 with an investment philosophy focused on delivering absolute annual
retums generated by finding undervalued companies via in-depth fundamental analysis. Over the last
seven years, assets under management have grown to nearly $6 billion, managed in 4 separate hedge
fund (long/short) mandates. In early 2005, Lansdowne launched along-only product as a natural
extension of the investment research process they were already conducting on their flagship European
strategy.

Lansdowne Partners Limited is an England-domiciled limited partnership that is owned by Paul
Ruddock and Steve Heinz — the two individuals who founded the firm in 1998. They are registered as
an Investment Advisor with the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission and are authorized and
regulated in the UK by the Financial Services Authority.

Lansdowne employs experienced investment professionals whose backgrounds and experiences
complement the philosophy of the firm. The firm's portfolic managers, analysts and traders have
extensive experience managing investment portfolios and researching potential holdings, have
advanced degrees in a wide range of academic pursuits, and have a demonstrated track record of
success with international equity investing. The founding partners, Paul Ruddock and Steven Heinz,
have 24 and 19 years direct investment experience, respectively. In aggregate the firm has a staff of 52
individuals, 25 of which are investment professionals.

A list of Lansdowne’s current senior investment staff and backgrounds are outlined below: (see Appendix A
for complete bios and an organizational chart)

Steven Heinz Paul Ruddock Peter Davies

Stuart Roden

Rale Fund Manager.

Investment
Experience

European Fund
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Research i MLIM
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Lansdowne Partners

THE INFORMATION CONTAINED IN THIS DRAFT DOCUMENT IS COMMERCIAL OR FINANCIAL INFORMATION THE DISCLOSURE OF WHICH WOULD
CAUSE SUBSTANTIAL COMPETITIVE HARM TQ UTIMCO AND/OR TO THE PERSON OR ENTITY FROM WHOM THE INFORMATION WAS OBTAINED.
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ASSETS UNDER MANAGEMENT

Lansdowne has successfully grown assets in a limited number of investment offerings since 1998. Staff
anticipates that Lansdowne will continue to build-out their product offerings in a selective fashion in a
manner than can leverage their operations base (back-office, trading, etc.). However, staff is comfortable
that future firm growth will not be at the cost of impairing current investment strategies of over allocating
capital to the Senior Portfolio Managers. As of October 31, 2005, the firm's assets under management were

as follows:

Strategy / Vehicle Senior Portfolio Manager AUM
UK Long / Short Strategy |Peter Davies / Stuart Roden $2,965
European Long / Short Strategy |Steven Heinz 2,227
European Long Only Strategy  |Steven Heinz 372
Global Financials Strategy William de Winton 375
Macro Long / Short Strateay |Richard Davidson 121
Total Firm AUM l $6,060

PHILOSOPHY / PROCESS / RESEARCH
¢ In Lansdowne's ELO mandate, the investment process is to seek companies which are:
o Misunderstood,
o Trade at a good value today and have the potential for significant value creation, and have a
o Management team that is focused on value creation.
» Typically, when ELO finds a company that meets all of the above criteria, the expected nature of the
value creation can be classified into one of three categories:
o Sum of the Parts
o Restructuring
o Growth

CRITERIA NATURE OF VALUE CREATION
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» When valuing European equities, Lansdowne's investment perspective is rooted in their belief that both
a secular case and a cyclical case can be made which support the general undervaluation for equities:
o From a secular perspective:
» There is an ongoing restructuring of Corporate Europe, which involves the
rationalization of business portfolios and corporate balance sheets.
= Equity ownership is still overrepresented at the state level, underrepresented at the
individual investor level, and hamstrung at the institutional level by a continuing focus
on benchmarks and relative return.
= Brokerage firms effectively marginalize the research of small and mid cap eguities as
fewer sell-side analysts must cover only the large cap companies, exacerbating pricing
inefficiencies in the market.
o Froma cyclical perspective:
» Approximately 12% of European companies have cash flow metrics, relative to the
cost of borrowing, where a LBO would make economic sense — a high percentage
relative to history and to the US proportion of 4%.
= The valuations of MSCI Europe relative to MSCI USA is meaningfully below the
average metrics across price to book, dividend yield and price to earnings (see chart

below):

Valuations MSCI Europe relative to MSCI USA
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PORTFOLIO CONSTRUCTION
In the ELO mandate, Lansdowne will construct a portfolio of primarity European equities expected to

outperform the DJ Stoxx 600 over a full economic cycle. In addition, the portfolio will be:

Concentrated with 20 to 30 positions accounting for greater than 80% of the NAV.
Able to hold up to 40% of the assets in cash or short term fixed income securities.
Able fo utilize leverage up to 30%, with net NAV exposure of 60% to 130%.

Predominately non-UK in exposure with an orientation towards mid-cap stocks.

December 1, 2005

In addition, the portfolio will have a beta-adjusted exposure that is significantly below net exposure and will

be constructed solely based on stock selection, with no reference to the underlying index.

Financial Characteristics

The following details are for Lansdowne’s European Long Only Mandate.

Top Holdings as of October 31, 2005

Top Ten Positions % Of Equity

VEQOLIA ENVIRONMENT 8.1%

CAPIO AB 8.7%

FRANCE TELECOM 6.3%

KGMH POLSKA MIEDZ S.A 57%

OMV AG 5.5%

PKO BANK POLSKI SA 5.3%

TELENOR ASA 5.2%

NESTLE STUB CERT 12/01/2006 5.2%

CSM CVA 5.1%

ASSA ABLOY AB-B 4.4%

Total 57.5%
Sector Breakdown as of October 31, 2005
Long Portfolio

Sector Exposure % Of Equity DJ Stoxx 600
Consumer Staples 22.0% 9.4%
Energy 21.0% 10.0%
Telecom 20.8% 7.5%
[ndustrial 15.2% 6.3%
Financial 13.7% 30.0%
Utilities 9.6% 56%
Materials 9.1% 3.7%
Consumer Discretionary 0.5% 10.0%
Healthcare 0.0% 9.7%
Technology 0.0% 7.8%
Total 112.0% 100.0%
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= Country Breakdown as of October 31. 2005

Long Portfolio

Countries Exposure % Of Equity DJ Stoxx 600
Austria 9.5% 0.6%
Belgium 4.3% 1.3%
Denmark 0.0% 1.1%
Finland 0.0% 2.1%
France 21.1% 14.1%
Germany 4.0% 10.3%
Greece 5.7% 0.8%
Hong Kong 0.0% 0.0%
Ireland 0.0% 1.3%
Italy 0.0% 5.3%
Luxembourg 0.0% 0.1%
Netherlands 5.6% 5.5%
Norway 15.9% 0.9%
Poland 15.6% 0.0%
Portugal 3.5% 0.5%
Spain 1.1% 5.8%
Sweden 14.3% 3.4%
Switzerland 6.3% 10.4%
Turkey 0.9% 0.0%
United Kingdom 0.0% 36.6%
United States 4.3% 0.0%
Total 112.0% 100.00%
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PERFORMANCE

Lansdowne’s European Long Only strategy has an attractive long-term track record, outperforming both the
MSCI EAFE Index and their stated benchmark, the DJ Stoxx 600. Please note that performance prior to
January 2005 is for actual results of a long only account which Lansdowne managed. The Fund was
faunched in January 2005 following the strong results of the internal account. Please see Appendix B for a
comparison of the MSCI EAFE Index to the DJ Stoxx 600.

Periods endina October 2005
Composite Returns 1Month 3 Month ___YTD 1year 2 year 3year  dvyear  Syear __ Jan00.Oct05
Lansdowng ELO 5.1% 13.0% 29.6% 46.7% 35.7% 27.5% 18.7% 11.5% 15.1%
DJ STOXX 600 A3% 104%  1843% 2505% 19.84% 1517% 282% @ 465% 4.2%
Active Return 9.4% 2.5% 11.2% 21.6% 15.8% 12.3% 15.9% 16.1% 19.2%
Risk (Standard Deviation) 1year 2year 3 year 4 year 3 year Jan 00 - Oct 05
Lansdowne ELO 9.8% 10.5% MN.7% 12.7% 128% 13.1%
DJ STOXX 600 119% 815%  13.50% 1664% 17.01% 17.1%
Active Risk 2.6% 2.3% -1.9% -3.9% 4.2% 4.0%
Calendar Returns 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004
Lansdowne ELQ 254% 2.0% -10.5% 18.5% 326%
DJ STOXX 600 H3% A80% 32 5% 138% 94%
Active Return % 15.0% 22.0% 4.7% 23.2%
Manager Performance
January 2000 - October 2005
I
——Lansdowne European Long Only Lansdowne European Long Only has
—_— outperformed the MSCI EAFE Index by an
MSCI EAFE Index annualized 1,419 bps and the DJ STOXX
—DJ STOXX 600 600 benchmark by an annualized 1,923
since inception

T T T T T T Y T T

Jan-00 Jul-00 Jan-01 Jul- Jan-02 Jul02 Jan-03 Jul-03 Jan-04 Jul-04 Jan-05 Jul-05
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Risk/Retumn
January 2000 - October 2005
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DUE DILIGENCE

The Managing Director of Public Markets conducted two UK visits to Lansdowne’s offices on October 12,

2004 and June 8, 2005. In addition, founder Paul Ruddock, and proposed Emerging Markets PM Amab
Banerji met at UTIMCO's offices with staff with Bob Boldt attending.

Staffs impression of Lansdowne is that they are focused and professional on both operational and
investment fronts. Their successful hedge fund experience has occurred gradually, their backoffice and

accounting processes appear sufficient, and they have been procedurally detailed in piecing together this
proposed Emerging Markets mandate

Staff believes Lansdowne is focused on providing bestin-class results while engaging in high standards of
business practices and ethics and will make a solid and long-term beneficial addition to the UTIMCO
International Equity portfolio. In addition, the MD Public Markets has met Steve Heinz and he appears to

have the focus, understanding and background necessary to deliver long-term high PVA for the
Endowments.

Staff is currently conducting both reference and background checks on key employees of Lansdowne, Staff
does not expect to uncover any issues which would negate moving forward with these investments;
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however, if staff has any concems whatsoever on the outcome of these background checks, staff will
immediately notify the CEO of UTIMCO and handile such findings accordingly.

DERIVATIVES

Lansdowne will utilize a wide range of instruments, including listed and unlisted equities, debt securities
(which may be below investment grade), options, warrants and other derivative instruments in managing
the ELO mandates. Derivafive instruments may be exchange-traded or over-the-counter.

The proposed investment for the ELO mandate would be into an existing commingled fund; while staff is
comfortable in the expertise that Lansdowne exhibits in managing derivatives, the investment structure
would limit the potential loss of the Endowments' assets to that of the invesiment only.

FEE SCHEDULES
Lansdowne's fee for the ELO mandate is a 1% annual base fee of AUM, plus an annual performance fee
equivalent to 10% of the profits.

Lansdowne would earn the 10% performance fee only if the NAV at year end is higher than it was at the
beginning of the year. In the event of a loss, the account must earn back the full amount of the loss until a
full performance fee is paid (Loss Carry-forward). However, a partial performance fee (of 5%) will be paid if
in the current year the account made positive retums, but due to previous years' activities, had not yet fully
recaptured losses.

FUNDING

Staff would use a combination of existing passive investments with BGI, intemally managed futures, and
cash to fund the ELO mandate. Staff proposes to invest in the Eurapean Long Only strategy on January 1,
2006.

CONCLUSION / RECOMMENDATION

Staff recommends the hiring of Lansdowne to manage European equity assets. Staff believes that
Lansdowne’s in-depth fundamental analysis, experienced management team, thoughtful business practices
and procedures, as well as the market inefficiency of the areas in which they will be participating - provide
the Endowments with a compellingly high PVA investment opportunity. Furthermars, staff believes that
Lansdowne has the organizational traits and investment acumen necessary to increase the probability of
their ability to deliver value added returns to the Endowments.

Approved:

BobBoldt <Ll re<le st

Larry GoldsmV{W
11

THE INFORMATION CONTAINED IN THIS DRAFT DOCUMENT 1S COMMERCIAL OR FINANCIAL INFORMATION THE DISCLOSURE OF WHICH WOULD
CAUSE SUBSTANTIAL COMPETITIVE HARM TO UTIMCO ANDJ/OR TO THE PERSON OR ENTITY FROM WHOM THE INFORMATION WAS OBTAINED.




Confidential December 1, 2005

Appendix A — Key Individuals

Paul Ruddock

Paul Ruddock (British) is a founding limited partner of the Investment Manager, a director of Lansdowne
Partners Limited and a director and shareholder of Lansdowne Partners internationat Limited of which
Lansdowne Partners Limited is a wholly owned subsidiary. Until he left in July 1998, Mr Ruddock was, from
1992, Managing Director and Head of the International Department of Schroder & Co. Inc. which he had
joined in 1984. As Managing Director, he was responsible for the US equities business in the London,
Geneva, Genolier, Paris and Amsterdam offices and was directly responsible for supervising and managing
the sales and trading operations of the department trading in equities, cptions and futures transactions.
From 1993, he was also a director of the Schroder Securities European Division of Schroders Plc and a
director of Schroder Securities Europe Limited and Schroder Securities (Switzerland) Limited in which
capacity he had considerable contact with, and experience of, European equity markets. Also from 1993 to
1995 he was a member of the executive committee of Schroder Securities Limited, the responsibifities of
which included the monitoring and approval of capital employed by the company in its trading and
underwriting activities. In 1995 and 1996, Mr Ruddock led a nine month strategic review of the world-wide
private banking activities of Schroders Plc, including the private client asset management operations in
London, Switzerland, the United States and Asia. From 1980 to 1984 he was an institutional equity
salesman at Goldman Sachs & Co. Mr Ruddock holds an MA(Hons) and a first class BA(Hons) in Law from
Mansfield College, Oxford University.

Steven Heinz

Steven Heinz (American) is a founding limited partner of the Investment Manager and a director of each of
Lansdowne Partners Limited and Lansdowne Partners International Limited. Until he left in June 1998, Mr
Heinz was, from 1995, a member of the Equity Arbitrage Group at Harvard Management Company where
he specialised in analysing and investing in European companies and equities. His responsibilities also
included hedging long positions through the use of equity short sales, currency hedges and derivatives.
From 1993 to 1995, Mr Heinz was a Vice President in the Business Development Department at Goldman
Sachs & Co in New York, where he identified and developed investment opportunities for the firm and its
clients. While at Goldman Sachs & Co., Mr Heinz was part of a group of individuals that developed and
applied investment strategies (some of which were similar to that of the Fund) for the firm and for the
private client division. Prior to joining Goldman Sachs & Co., from 1991 Mr Heinz was an Associate at
McKinsey & Company working on corporate strategy and re-engineering projects. From 1989 to 1991, Mr
Heinz was a Partner in H&W Partners which developed and evaluated middle market food, distribution and
finance company acquisitions for a private investment group. Prior to joining H&W Partners, Mr Heinz was
from 1987 an Associate in the Capital Markets Group at Chemical Bank and from 1984 to 1986 a Co-
Founder of Shiva Multisystems Corp., and BodyMatrix Inc. Mr Heinz holds a BA in Applied Mathematics, an
MS in Industrial Engineering and an MBA in Finance and Strategic Planning from the University of
California at Berkeley.

David Craigen

David Craigen (British) is a limited partner of the Investment Manager, and has been with Lansdowne
Partners Limited since December 2000. Mr Craigen is responsible for pan European research with a focus
on financial services and media. Prior to joining the Investment Manager, from 1997 to 2000 Mr Craigen
worked as an equity research analyst covering European Asset Managers for Enskilda Securiies and
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latterly SG Securities. From 1994 tc 1997 Mr Craigen worked with Baillie Gifford & Co, the largest
partnership owned money-manager in the UK. During his three years with Baillie Gifford he had spells in
the UK, US and predominantly European investment teams where he worked as an equity research
analyst. Mr Craigen holds an MA and BA in Philosophy, Politics and Economics from Keble College,
Oxford.

Arnab Banerji

From 2002 -2005 Arnab worked as the British Prime Minister's (Tony Blair's) Senior Policy Advisor on
Economic Affairs. The main policy areas, in which Amab was involved, included the Financial Sector,
Trade, and Regulation & International Development. Arnab was also a member of the China Task Force
responsible for developing closer ties with China Amab worked with the Foreign & Colonial Group from
1993 to 2002 where he was Investment Chairman and Chief Investment Officer. At the time of his
departure the group had over $100 billion invested in equity and debt. Arnab had responsibility for all
investment management activities including the investment process, policy decision-making and asset
allocation throughout the developed and emerging markets. Arnab managed a team of over 200 investment
professionals based in 7 countries. Prior to joining the Foreign & Colonial Group Arnab was a Vice
President at Citicorp Investment Management. Arnab received an M.A in Human Physiology in 1977
followed by degrees in Medicine & Surgery all from Oxford University.
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Appendix B- DJ STOXX 600 vs. MSCI EAFE

GICS Sector DJ STOXX 600 MSCI EAFE Over / Under
Financials 30.0% 28.1% 1.8%
Energy 10.0% 8.2% 1.8%
Health Care 9.7% 8.2% 1.5%
Telecommunication Services 7.5% 6.1% 1.4%
Consumer Staples 9.4% 8.1% 1.3%
Utilities 5.6% 5.0% 0.6%
Materials 7.8% 76% 0.2%
Consumer Discretionary 10.0% 12.1% -2.2%
Information Technology 3.7% 6.0% -2.3%
Industrials 6.3% 10.5% -4.2%
100.0% 100.0% 0.0%
Country DJ STOXX 600 MSCI EAFE Over / Under
UK 36.6% 25.1% 11.5%
France 14.1% 8.0% 5.1%
Germany 10.3% 6.8% 3.6%
Switzerland 10.4% 7.1% 3.3%
Spain 5.8% 3.8% 2.1%
Netherlands 5.5% 3.5% 2.0%
Italy 5.3% 3.6% 1.7%
Sweden 3.4% 2.3% 1.1%
Finland 2.1% 1.4% 0.6%
Ireland 1.3% 0.8% 0.5%
Denmark 1.1% 0.8% 0.3%
Greece 0.8% 0.6% 0.2%
Portugal 0.5% 0.3% 0.2%
Norway 0.9% 0.7% 0.2%
Austria 0.6% 0.4% 0.1%
Belgium 1.3% 1.3% 0.0%
Luxembourg 0.1% 0.2% -0.1%
New Zealand 0.0% 0.2% -0.2%
Singapore 0.0% 0.8% -0.8%
Hong Kong 0.0% 1.7% -1.7%
Australia 0.0% 5.2% -5.2%
Japan 0.0% 24.4% -24.4%
100.0% 100.0% 0.0%
14
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Agenda Item:
Developed By:
Presented By:
Type of ltem:

Description:

Recommendation:

Discussion:

Reference:

Agenda ltem
UTIMCO Board of Directors Meeting
January 17, 2006
Discussion of Investment Environment and Opportunities
Boldt
Boldt

Information Item

This agenda item is intended to provide an opportunity for an open-ended discussion
on issues, expectations, and opportunities in the current investment environment.

None

We hope to get input from Board members on issues, concerns, and opportunities in
the current investment environment. The conversation will be unstructured and
open-ended. Staff will come prepared to initiate discussions on several topics, but
we are far more interested in what Board members want to talk about. We wouid
like to come away from each of these sessions with at least one “fat pitch”
investment idea.

None
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Agenda ltem:

Developed By:

Presented By:

Type of ltem:

Discussion:

Reference:

Agenda ltem
UTIMCO Board of Directors Meeting
January 17, 2006

Presentation of 2005 Annual Report
Moeller

Moeller

Information item

This is the third year of the new reporting format that includes separate reports for
the UTIMCO Annual Report, PUF, LTF, FAQ, and separate “stories” for each
institution as well as a compact disc with the audited financial statements. As in
previous years, UTIMCO staff worked with an advisory group consisting of
development staff from several UT System institutions to improve the reporting.
The advisory group recommended the concept for the “Texas” theme this year.

We continue to receive positive feedback from the institutions. The reports have
been available the first week of December the past two years. In prior years, the
reports were normally available at the end of December/early January and our
efforts to move the completion date several weeks earlier has been very helpful to
the institutions to meet their own reporting deadlines. In order to achieve earlier
delivery dates, we began the annual report process in June and it was a team
effort with all of the senior management staff involved in the theme and design
process as well as contributing certain sections to the reports. In addition, several
members of the UTIMCO staff were involved with preparation of the written
materials and graphs, proofreading, and mail out of the reports.

Over 7,800 reports were sent out this December. The institutions requested more
copies of their stories this year, and each institution became more engaged in the
process of producing a great story.

The annual reports are also available on-line on UTIMCO's website under
‘UTIMCO Publications.” Individual feature stories published in the prior annual
reports over the past six years are available on-line as well.

UTIMCO Annual Report, PUF Annual Report, LTF Annual Report, Frequently
Asked Questions Report, a feature story from 14 components, a PUF feature story
provided by Texas A&M, and disc with Audited financial statements.
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